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CITY OF ST. JOHNS

CITY COMMISSION MEETING
PROPOSED AGENDA

Monday, December 9, 2024, 6:00 p.m.
Room 2200 — Clinton County Courthouse

Due to reconstruction at the south entrance, please use the north entrance door

and proceed to the single elevator on the left to get to the 2" floor.

*Listen to Meeting Via Telephonic Conference
Dial 1 929 205 6099
https://zoom.us/j/2050014286
Meeting ID: 205 001 4286
*Please note, you will not be able to make public comments through Zoom;
only in-person attendees will be able to participate in public comments.
(Times for agenda items are estimated times)

A. OPENING: (6:00 pm — 6:05 pm)

1.
2.
3.

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Consent Agenda (Action Item)

The staff proposes the following items for the Consent Agenda. If any Commissioner wishes to
discuss any of these items, it should be placed on the regular agenda. The remaining items and
recommendations may be approved en masse:

a. Approval of Minutes
-Special meeting minutes of November 25, 2024
-Regular meeting minutes of November 25, 2024

b. Receipt of Warrants
-In the amount of $414,136.40

c. Board Re-appointments
-Staff recommends the city commission reappoint the following: Kerry Nobis, Parking
Committee (two-year term expiring November of 2026); appoint Linda Beeman — Sister
City Board. (no enclosure)


https://zoom.us/j/2050014286

d. Wastewater Sludge Transfer Pump Replacement
-Staff recommends the city commission approve the purchase of the Wemco sludge
transfer pump from Detroit Pump in the amount of $33,990.00.

e. Andy Vandervest - Merit Bonus
-Staff recommends the city commission approve the $900 Merit Bonus to Andy Vandervest
in recognition of his successful completion of his D-3 Certified Drinking Water operator
license.

f. Fantasy Forest Lighting and Camera Sole Source Vendor
-Staff recommends the city commission approve ESM as the designated sole source vendor
for lighting and camera equipment for the Fantasy Forest 2.0 Project and all other City Park
camera and lighting needs. It is further recommended that the proposed contract with
ESM’s for the installation of the camera and lighting system, as shown in their proposal,
be awarded for the amount of $136,000.

4. Approval of Agenda:

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

PRESENTATIONS:

PERSONS WISHING TO PRESENT TESTIMONY:

1. Public comment - agenda & non-agenda items
Each speaker is only entitled to one (1) three-minute time during each Public Comment period.

2. Audit Presentation — Jordan Smith, Maner Costerisan
COMMUNICATIONS:

OLD BUSINESS:

NEW BUSINESS:

I. Establishment of Building Use Policy

(Presenter: Chad Gamble, City Manager)

2. Discussion of Fire Department Chief Position and Impacts to Fire Service Agreements

(Presenter: Chad Gamble, City Manager)

3. Lead Service Line Replacement Plan
(Presenters: Chad Gamble, City Manager,; Justin Smith, Director of Public Services)

4. E-Notify Categories
(Presenter: Chad Gamble, City Manager)

5. Designation of City Manager to Board of Directors for 101 W. Cass St. Condominium Association
& Signatory to Closing Documents
(Presenter: Chad Gamble, City Manager)




6. Commission Board & Committee Assignments
(Presenter: Scott Dzurka, Mayor)

7. City Manager Comments

8. Commissioner Comments

H. ADJOURNMENT:

(Next Regular Meeting Scheduled for Monday, January 27, 2024, 6:00 p.m.)

NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should
contact the city clerk 989-224-8944 at least two working days in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be
made to provide reasonable accommodation.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
CITY COMMISSION MINUTES
SPECIAL MEETING
NOVEMBER 25, 2024
The special meeting of the St. Johns City Commission was called to order by Mayor Dzurka

at 4:03 p.m. at the Clinton County Courthouse, 100 East State Street, 2" Floor, Suite
#2200, St. Johns, Michigan.

CITY COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Eric Hufnagel, Brad Gurski, Scott
Dzurka, Chris Hyzer, Chris DeLiso

CITY COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: None

STAFF PRESENT: Chad Gamble, City Manager; Mindy J.

Seavey, City Clerk; Kristina Kinde, City
Treasurer; Justin Smith, Director of
Public Services; David Kirk, Police Chief

Oath of Office

Clerk Seavey gave the oath of office to Commissioners Hufnagel, Gurski & DeLiso.

Motion by Commissioner Hyzer seconded by Commissioner Gurski to approve the agenda
as presented.

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso

NAY: None

Motion carried.

Presentation of Strategic Plan Process and Discussion of Commission Memo

City Manager Gamble said this is a kickoff of our city budgeting process. He discussed:
e Strategic Planning Process

The strategic planning process was discussed, focusing on updating the five-year
plans for the city, parks and recreation, and downtown. The aim is to refine goals
into specific objectives and activities for the fiscal year 2024-25.

e Economic Development Goals

The goal of pursuing economic development was highlighted, with a focus on
creating specific objectives and activities to achieve this goal annually.

e Departmental Goals and Metrics
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The need to establish metrics for departmental goals was discussed, with plans to
incorporate these into the budget process using ClearGov software.

Commissioners were invited to provide input on goals, with discussions on branding,
business development, intergovernmental partnerships, and capital improvements:

Housing and Industrial Growth

The need for affordable housing and managing industrial growth was discussed,
emphasizing the importance of planning and communication with residents.

Capital Budget and Replacement Schedule

The importance of having a capital budget and replacement schedule was raised,
with questions about planning for infrastructure and equipment needs.

Cultural and Arts Planning

The potential for cultural and arts planning was discussed, considering how to
integrate arts and cultural activities with existing city plans.

Parks and Recreation Plan

The Parks and Recreation Plan was discussed, with a focus on ensuring that
priorities are aligned with available resources and grant opportunities.

City Planning and Development Strategies

City-wide Funding Policy

Discussion on developing a city-wide funding policy, focusing on capital
improvement projects (CIPs) for utilities and streets. The conversation included
considerations for bonding versus cash funding and the financial positioning of the
city.

Fixed Asset Replacement Strategy

The discussion centered on the replacement schedule for fixed assets like fire trucks
and utility projects. It included considerations for cash funding versus loans and the
establishment of a vehicle replacement fund.

Housing Strategy

The conversation focused on developing a housing strategy to attract specific types
of housing developments. It included discussions on market demands, developer
capital, and the use of housing TIFs as part of the economic development toolbox.
Goals and Objectives

Discussion on aligning objectives with the overall goals of economic development,
placemaking, and community bonds. The conversation included the need to
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differentiate between goals and objectives and how they fit into the broader strategic
plan.

City Development and Strategic Planning

Strategic Planning and Goals

The discussion focused on the importance of strategic planning, emphasizing that
while goals remain broad and stable, objectives can change. There was a particular
focus on housing and the effective use of tools like TIFs to incentivize desired
outcomes.

Communication Improvements

The meeting highlighted the need for improved communication, with examples like
newsletters and the use of ClearGov budgeting software. Suggestions were made to
identify specific communication objectives for future meetings.

Downtown Streetscape and Development

There was a discussion about the need for a downtown streetscape plan due to
structural and aesthetic issues. The idea of partnering with the DDA for a
redevelopment plan was proposed, which could aid in grant development.

Capital Investment and Savings Plan

The conversation included plans for a savings strategy for capital investments,
particularly for the city park's Fantasy Forest 2.0. The importance of maintaining
and replacing equipment was emphasized.

Property Development and Assembly

The meeting discussed the city's role in property assembly for economic
development, particularly regarding the silo property and potential industrial park
expansion. The need for a strategic approach to property acquisition was
highlighted.

Sidewalk and Non-Motorized Network Improvements

The discussion covered the Safe Routes to School initiative and the need for a
comprehensive plan for sidewalk improvements. The importance of partnerships
and capital investment for design and construction was noted.

Parks and Recreation Planning

The meeting touched on the need for a detailed capital improvement plan for the
parks department, focusing on equipment replacement and maintenance. This aligns
with the broader objective of enhancing recreational facilities.

City Planning and Management

Tree Management and Beautification
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The discussion focused on city protocols for tree removal, the importance of
selecting appropriate tree species for urban areas, and the city's efforts in
beautification through plantings and displays. The need for a more formalized tree
inspection process and increased investment in tree removals was highlighted.

e Budget Planning and Strategic Goals

The meeting addressed the need to align current projects with strategic goals for the
upcoming budget cycle. Emphasis was placed on ensuring specific tasks are
budgeted for and that past objectives remain relevant. The importance of
operationalizing strategies was also discussed.

Public Comments

Mayor Dzurka asked if there were any public comments.

There were none.

Adjournment

Motion by Commissioner Gurski seconded by Commissioner Hyzer that the city
commission meeting be adjourned.

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso

NAY: None

Motion carried.

The meeting was adjourned at 5:18 p.m.



CITY OF ST. JOHNS
CITY COMMISSION MINUTES
NOVEMBER 25, 2024

The regular meeting of the St. Johns City Commission was called to order by Mayor
Dzurka at 6:02 p.m. at the Clinton County Courthouse, 100 East State Street, 2" Floor,
Suite #2200, St. Johns, Michigan.

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Eric Hufnagel, Brad Gurski, Scott Dzurka, Chris
Hyzer, Chris DeLiso

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: None

STAFF PRESENT: Chad Gamble, City Manager; Kristina Kinde, City
Treasurer; Mindy J. Seavey, City Clerk; Justin Smith,
Director of Public Services; Anne Seurynck, City
Attorney

REORGANIZATION

ELECTION OF MAYOR

Mayor Dzurka opened the nominations for mayor.

Commissioner Hufnagel nominated Scott Dzurka for Mayor, Commissioner Gurski
seconded the nomination.

There were no other nominations.

Motion by Commissioner Hyzer seconded by Commissioner DeLiso that the city
commission close the nomination and cast a unanimous ballot for Scott Dzurka as mayor.
Clerk Seavey called a roll call vote:

YEA: Hyzer

YEA: Hufnagel

YEA: DeLiso

YEA: Gurski

YEA: Dzurka

NAY: None

Motion carried.

ELECTION OF VICE MAYOR
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Commissioner Hyzer nominated Brad Gurski for Vice Mayor, Commissioner Dzurka
seconded the nomination.

There were no other nominations.

Motion by Commissioner Hufnagel seconded by Commissioner Hyzer to close the
nominations.

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso

NAY: None

Motion carried.

Motion by Commissioner Hyzer seconded by Commissioner Deliso that the city
commission nominate Brad Gurski as Vice Mayor.

Clerk Seavey called a roll call vote:

YEA: Hyzer

YEA: Hufnagel

YEA: DeLiso

YEA: Gurski

YEA: Dzurka

NAY: None

Motion carried.

Mayor Dzurka asked if any of the commissioners or persons present wished to discuss
any of the items on the consent agenda.

Motion by Commissioner Gurski seconded by Commissioner Hufnagel that the consent
agenda be approved as presented.

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso

NAY: None

Motion carried.

a. Approval of Minutes

Motion by Commissioner Gurski seconded by Commissioner Hufnagel that the minutes
of the September 23, 2024 and October 22, 2024 special meetings and October 28, 2024
regular meeting be approved as presented.

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso

NAY: None

Motion carried.

b. Receipt of Warrants
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Motion by Commissioner Gurski seconded by Commissioner Hufnagel that warrants be
approved as presented in the amount of $967,027.77.

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso

NAY: None

Motion carried.

c. Board Re-appointments

Motion by Commissioner Gurski seconded by Commissioner Hufnagel that the city
commission reappoint the following: Terry Thelen and Mark Crosby, Board of Review
(three-year term expiring November of 2027); Peter Motz, William Pioszak, and Suzanne
Fromson, Parks and Recreation Board (two-year term expiring November of 2026); Anne
Rademacher, Zoning Board of Appeals (three-year term expiring November of 2027);
Brian Mills, Mark Holden, Planning Commission (three-year term expiring November of
2027); Robert Craig, Brad Gurski, Brownfield Authority (three-year term expiring
November of 2027).

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso

NAY: None

Motion carried.

d. Merit Bonus Recommendation — Noah Woodbury

Motion by Commissioner Gurski seconded by Commissioner Hufnagel that the city
commission approve the $900 Merit Bonus to Noah Woodbury in recognition of his
dedication to efficiently serving the City of St Johns.

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso

NAY: None

Motion carried.

e. Cooperative Public Safety Records Management Agreement

Motion by Commissioner Gurski seconded by Commissioner Hufnagel that the city
commission authorize the Chief of Police to endorse and enter into the user agreement
with the Clinton County Sheriff’s Office and Central Square Technologies LLC for
utilization of and access to the Cooperative Public Safety Records Management System.
YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso

NAY: None

Motion carried.

AGENDA
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Mayor Dzurka asked if there were any additions or deletions to the agenda.

Motion by Commissioner Hyzer seconded by Commissioner Hufnagel that the city
commission approve the agenda as presented.

AGENDA
A. OPENING:
I. Invocation
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Reorganization

a. Election of Mayor
b. Election of Vice Mayor
4. Consent Agenda

The staff proposes the following items for the Consent Agenda. If any

Commissioner wishes to discuss any of these items, it should be placed on the

regular agenda. The remaining items and recommendations may be approved

en masse:

a. Approval of Minutes
-Special meeting minutes of September 23, 2024
-Special meeting minutes of October 22, 2024
-Regular meeting minutes of October 28, 2024

b. Receipt of Warrants
-In the amount of $967,027.77

c. Board Re-appointments
-Staff recommends the city commission reappoint the following: Terry
Thelen and Mark Crosby, Board of Review (three-year term expiring
November of 2027); Peter Motz, William Pioszak, and Suzanne Fromson,
Parks and Recreation Board (two-year term expiring November of 2026);
Anne Rademacher, Zoning Board of Appeals (three-year term expiring
November of 2027); Brian Mills, Mark Holden, Planning Commission
(three-year term expiring November of 2027); Robert Craig, Brad Gurski,
Brownfield Authority (three-year term expiring November of 2027).

d. Merit Bonus Recommendation — Noah Woodbury
-Staff recommends the city commission approve the $900 Merit Bonus to
Noah Woodbury in recognition of his dedication to efficiently serving the
City of St Johns.

e. Cooperative Public Safety Records Management Agreement
-Staff recommends the city commission authorize the Chief of Police to
endorse and enter into the user agreement with the Clinton County
Sheriff’s Office and Central Square Technologies LLC for utilization of
and access to the Cooperative Public Safety Records Management System.

4. Approval of Agenda:

B. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
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C. PRESENTATIONS:

D. PERSONS WISHING TO PRESENT TESTIMONY:
1. Public comment - agenda & non-agenda items

E. COMMUNICATIONS:

F. OLD BUSINESS:
1. Credit Card Issuance and Rebate Program Approval

G. NEW BUSINESS:

1. Reappointment of Fire Chief

2. Resolution #37-2024 — Regular Meetings of the Planning Commission and
Zoning Board of Appeals

3. Fantasy Forest Playground Equipment Vendor Selection

4. Resolution #38-2024 — Resolution to Introduce an Ordinance to Amend Title IX:

General Regulations, Chapter 93: Nuisances of the City of St. Johns Code of
Ordinances Regarding Noise Control

5. City Manager Comments

6. Commissioner Comments

H. ADJOURNMENT:

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso
NAY: None
Motion carried.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

PRESENTATIONS

PERSONS WISHING TO PRESENT TESTIMONY

1. Public Comment

Mayor Dzurka asked if there were any public comments. He discussed: the handout that
gives some guidelines for participating in the meeting; the way we conduct public
testimony; this is our chance to listen to you and your concerns and our public comments
are not billed as a dialogue with commission, the board does not respond we just listen at
this time; at the end of the meeting we do have time where our commission comments
and many times we will respond at that time to any public comments brought forth if
there's something that we feel we need to address.
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Holly Thoms, Capital Area Humane Society, was present. She discussed the recent
change to Chapter 92, making it unlawful to feed feral cats in the city and feral cat
management. She discussed the catch-neuter-release program.

Nick Boyer, General Manager of Sirens, was present. He said over the summer they
brought in a food truck and the rate was $50 per month and without notice it went up to
$200. He raised concerns about the food truck fees.

James Terpening, 117 Lewis Street, was present. He said he sent everyone an email on
November 13" asking questions. He discussed the city's use of Facebook for public
communication and the lack of response to public inquiries. Concerns were raised about
transparency and the city's investment of $125,000 on transparency.

Mayor Dzurka said he acknowledged receipt of the email. You had 17 questions, and
some were legal questions.

COMMUNICATIONS

OLD BUSINESS

1. Credit Card Issuance and Rebate Program Approval

City Manager Gamble discussed the substitute policy; modified the RCA; the Mercantile
sample agreement; and we recommend two separate motions if there is support.

The city discussed the implementation of a credit card issuance and rebate program for
employees.

Motion by Commissioner Hufnagel seconded by Commissioner DeLiso that the city
commission recommend that we direct city administration with the issuance of
procurement cards to employees filling the positions listed above and at the individual
and monthly limits noted, and for the Administration to produce and implement the
necessary cardholder agreement with Mercantile Band pending City Attorney approval
and to authorize the City manager to sign the credit card agreement.

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso

NAY: None

Motion carried.

Motion by Commissioner Hufnagel seconded by Commissioner Gurski that the city
commission approve the updated credit card policy.
YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso
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NAY: None
Motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS

1. Reappointment of Fire Chief

City Manager Gamble discussed the biannual reappointment of the fire chief following
the election of city commissioners. We recommend Chief Whitford be reappointed for
that term.

Motion by Commissioner Hyzer seconded by Commissioner Hufnagel that the city
commission appoint Jordan Whitford as Fire Chief.

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso

NAY: None

Motion carried.

2. Resolution #37-2024 — Regular Meetings of the Planning Commission and Zoning
Board of Appeals

Mayor Dzurka said Resolution #37-2024 was to adopt the regular meetings of the
Planning Commission and the Zoning Board of Appeals. He said both boards have
looked at the dates and are aware of this.

Motion by Commissioner Hufnagel seconded by Commissioner Hyzer that the city
commission adopt Resolution #37-2024 Establishing and Approving the Dates for the
2025 Regular Meetings of the City Planning Commission and the City Zoning Board of
Appeals.

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso

NAY: None

Motion carried.

3. Fantasy Forest Playeround Equipment Vendor Selection

Mayor Dzurka thanked Bill Schafer, Chad Gamble, the Parks and Recreation Board and
Friends of the Fantasy Forest Group.

Parks and Recreation Director Schafer discussed the process for selection of a vendor for
the Fantasy Forest Playground equipment. He said Great Lakes Recreation was
recommended as the vendor. He thanked Katie Dennis with Wade Trim, the Fantasy
Forest Core Team and the St. Johns Area Community Fund.



CITY COMMISSION MINUTES
NOVEMBER 25, 2024 PAGE 8

City Manager Gamble recognized Director Schafer for being the point on this as well as
Director Smith.

Director Schafer said this is just for the playground equipment; installation will come
back to you for your approval.

There was a discussion of:
* The selection process and the partnerships.

Motion by Commissioner Hufnagel seconded by Commissioner Gurski that the city
commission approve Great Lakes Recreation to provide the playscape and related
playground equipment for the Fantasy Forest 2.0 Project and be so designated as a sole
source vendor for same. The authorization for this purchase is for the full amount of the
SPARK funding of $844,000 including an additional amount of up to $56,000, for a total
vendor expenditure of $900,000.

Commissioner Hyzer asked about $882,000 instead of $900,000.

City Manager Gamble said there may be other benches or amenities with the final design
and this provides a little room.

There was a vote on the motion.

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso
NAY: None

Motion carried.

4. Resolution #38-2024 — Resolution to Introduce an Ordinance to Amend Title IX:
General Regulations, Chapter 93: Nuisances of the City of St. Johns Code of Ordinances
Regarding Noise Control

City Manager Gamble discussed our current noise ordinance and said it was very
subjective, and it would be helpful to have it be objective.

The city discussed amending the noise control ordinance to establish objective noise
levels and enforcement criteria.

Concerns were raised about:
e The timing and impact on agricultural operations.
* 8 pm shut down time; summer months.
* Commercial noise and individual property noise.
* Time conflicts under section 93.22.
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Section 93.23 and the Right to Farm.

There was no action taken and it will be brought back to the meeting on December 9.

5. City Manager Comments

City Manager Gamble discussed:

1.

W

E-Notify, the community engagement module from our website management
company Core, is set our is set to go live soon after the new year. In doing so we
are in need of designating categories of the announcements. Our initial thoughts
are:

a. City Meetings (agenda and meeting information distribution for major City
Committees).

b. Community Communications (including non-urgent but important and
timely information — parade closures, trash delays for snow, storm impact
notifications etc.).

c. City Office News. (Tax payments, election notices, federal holiday closures
etc.).

This will be on the agenda for next meeting but wanted to present this to you for
information and consideration and thoughts before then.

Presentation and discussion of social media report from King Media.

Presentation of Letter addressed to Mayor Dzurka from Mayor Kunio Ikuta City of
Konan, Shiga Province, Japan (Linda Beeman).

OPRA Update regarding Prevail Solar.

. City Commission Sub-Committee for City/Bingham Township will meet

tomorrow to discuss details of the newest version of the agreement and input from
finance representative. (current draft #3 was distributed for your information).
Reminder of joint City Township meeting #3 set for December 3 at 5:30.
Lead Service Complete Distribution System Materials Inventory - CDSMI
communications plan and presentation set for December meeting.
Fire Service Staffing Update & Impacts to Fire Agreements
a. Request for feedback on the development of full-time position for Fire
Chief/Code and Rental Housing Inspector.
1. There was a discussion of the code/rental inspector and the cost to
townships.
Fantasy Forest 2.0 update
a. Fantasy Forest is now closed for demolition.
b. I will be sending out follow up letters to surrounding townships to formally
request a decision on funding contributions next week.
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c. One contract to go that will be issued in January and final scoping on
budgets will happen at that time frame to set final phase 1 playscape and
site improvements.

d. Thank you to the commissions and all members of the FFCT for their
efforts over the past year.

9. Time of giving thanks, thank the Commission for their support and leadership
through the last 1.5 transformative years, and wishing the Commission and all a
Blessed and Happy Thanksgiving.

7. Commissioner Comments

Commissioner Gurski thanked the commission for their support for him as Vice Mayor.
He discussed Senate Bill 663 which would drastically impact water and wastewater rules
and will likely have some financial impacts to us. Also, look at the earned sick time act
that would be coming into effect in February 2025. It will put a lot of liability back on
the city. Happy holidays and thank you.

Commissioner DeLiso thanked everyone for their support in getting him into this
position. He looks forward to serving the city and said he has been blessed in living here
for the last 30 years. He hopes to give back in a meaningful way. Happy Thanksgiving.

Commissioner Hufnagel said congratulations to Commissioner DeLiso and he looks
forward to working with him. Happy Thanksgiving to staff, commissioners and guests.

Commissioner Hyzer said congratulations to those who put on the Veterans Day Parade.
He said tax bills will be seen in the mail this coming Saturday or Monday. He said a lot
of hard work goes into getting those out each year.

Mayor Dzurka said congratulations and welcome to Commissioner DeLiso. We will be
recognizing former Commissioner Jean Ruestman at a later meeting. He thanked them
you for the vote of confidence in allowing him to serve as chair of this distinguished
board. I'm a commissioner first and privileged to have that responsibility, but as you
know, there's five of us and it certainly takes all of us to really accomplish the work here.
We know there's opportunities to go deeper. [ appreciate the experience each of you
bring. In saying that as well, one of the first duties we always do are our committees. I'll
be looking at those. If you have any suggested changes or interest in committees with
which you're on, please let me know, I'll be taking care of that between now and our next
meeting. Commissioner Gurski said this during the strategic planning, it's important to
acknowledge our interest in building trust amongst this board, not only individually as we
work amongst ourselves, but also to the general public at large. Everyone up here did
their best to make sure they were responsive to the public. Kudos to Chad and the team.
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As Commissioner Hufnagel said communication is still important to us. We want to make
sure that the residents of St. Johns are afforded any information that they are looking for.
He discussed the AmeriCorps grant and we have an AmeriCorps volunteer that
participates with us that helps with Parks and Recreation. There is a letter of support
from mayors around the nation expressing to Congress to continue that AmeriCorps
program. Unless there's objection, he would like to sign on to that letter. In our bills,
there was our payment to the Clinton Area Ambulance Service of $115,000 this year. Ed
Thelen and Commissioner Gurski serve on that board. It's a valuable service that this city
supports and it's a significant amount of money; the city contributes along with partners
around the greater Clinton Area to the ambulance service. He discussed the comments
from the Humane Society and hopefully the commission members can look at that. He
discussed the food truck comments. He said there was a question of food trucks that are
on public ground versus private ground. Did we come to any resolution there?

City Manager Gamble said as we approach springtime it will allow us to tighten down a
little bit the public vs. private property and the fee structure. He said Nick’s comments
were very well taken and we are trying to compensate for businesses that do not have
brick and mortar downtown. He discussed food trucks on an intermittent basis, which is
the purpose of these permits.

Commissioner Hufnagel discussed feral cats, and said it is an issue people have talked
about to him. He said he did have a conversation with someone from county animal
control and they have limitations and can’t accept cats. He asked if there is a role the
county could play as well as the city. He discussed the catch-neuter-release program.

Mayor Dzurka said one of our presenters discussed our communications contract. Some
of you have served in the last year and know the commission has delved deeply into the
communications bills. Our management has changed, and our interns are providing great
communications. Hopefully, people that have an interest will look back at conversations
that have occurred within this body regarding that.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion by Commissioner Hyzer seconded by Commissioner Gurski that the meeting be
adjourned.

YEA: Hufnagel, Gurski, Dzurka, Hyzer, DeLiso

NAY: None

Motion carried.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:29 p.m.



CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN
REQUEST FOR COMMISSION ACTION

December 9th, 2024
Department: Wastewater Attachments: Submitted to
CA for
Review
Subject: Wastewater Sludge Transfer Pump | [X] Detroit Pump Quote-Wemco | [NA]
Replacement [X] DuBois Cooper Quote-
Wemco
[X] DuBois Cooper Quote-
Hidrostal
[X] FHC Quote
Prepared by: Jordan Whitford, Approved by: Chad A. Gamble, P.E.,
Wastewater Supervisor City Manage

SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHT: The FY24-25 budget includes funds for the replacement of one of
the sludge transfer pumps at the wastewater treatment plant. The existing pump, installed in the
late 1970s, has surpassed its useful life, and replacement parts are no longer available. This pump
is essential for transferring sludge between digesters and for pumping sludge from the digesters
to tankers during the annual sludge haul-out.

Two vendors were solicited for a replacement pump: DuBois Copper and Detroit Pump. Both
offer Wemco pumps, which is a direct replacement for the current model. Additionally, DuBois
Copper provided an alternative pump manufactured by Hidrostall, which is slightly more
affordable but requires piping modifications by a contractor (FHC). These modifications result in
the overall cost of the Hidrostall pump exceeding that of the Wemco direct replacement.

Detroit Pump (Wemco) $33,990.00
DuBois Copper (Wemco) $39,430.00
DuBois Copper (Hidrostall & Modifications) $39,620.00

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: Wemco pumps have been in operation at the WWTP for over
50 years. They have demonstrated exceptional durability, ease of maintenance, and reliable
customer support.

STRATEGIC PLAN OBJECTIVE: Public Facilities — Goal #1: Continue to offer High Quality
Services and Facilities for Residents

FISCAL IMPACT: This amount exceeds the $23,000 which was allocated in the budget.
However, due to other projects within the same line item coming in under budget, adequate funds
are available for this purchase in account # 592-560-818.077.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the City Commission approve the purchase of the
Wemco sludge transfer pump from Detroit Pump in the amount of $33,990.00.



Trillium Pumps USA Inc i‘* TRILLIUM

Quotation Summary

20 Aug 2024

City of St. Johns Quotation number: 2183395
100 East State Street, Suite 101 Revision: 003

St. Johns, Ml 48879

Attn: Jordan Whitford

Project: Replacement for 7893854-4

The following is a price summary for this quotation. Please see item specific pages for more details.

Item number Service Size Unit Price Unit Freight Qty Extended Price

001 SLUDGE TRANSFER 4" Model C $38,280 $1,150 1 $39,430
Grand Total $39,430

PUMP FEATURES: All Trillium Pumps USA INC are designed to reduce maintenance costs through greater pump
reliability and improved mean time between failure.

SCOPE OF SUPPLY: Only that material detailed in this quotation is being offered. No assumptions should be made that
anything not specifically specified is included.

QUALITY STANDARDS: Trillium Pumps USA INC is an ISO ISO 9001:2015 certified plant.

PRICE BASIS: This offer is valid for 30 days from date issued. Quoted prices are based on current material and
commodity rates. Due to the volatility of both, market prices may change and must be confirmed at the time of order
placement.

PRICE: Price quoted is for all items purchased at one time. In the event of a partial order, we will review and adjust
accordingly.

SHIPMENT: Approximately 28-30 weeks after receipt of approved purchase order and/or final approval of submittal and
drawings.

START-UP: Included.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: The Terms and Conditions of Sale attached hereto as Trillium Global Terms and Conditions
of Sale (July 2022) ("these Terms") apply to the sale of goods and ancillary services (collectively, "Goods") by Seller to

its customer (the "Buyer"). These Terms are the only terms and conditions, oral or written, applying to the sale of Goods
to Buyer except for additional terms consistent with these Terms regarding prices, quantities, and the description of the
Goods as set forth in an order form accepted by Seller ("Order"). Seller expressly rejects any additions to or modifications
of these Terms, or terms and conditions in Buyer's purchase Order(s). Buyer's assent to these Terms is conclusively
established by Buyer's: (i) issuance or placement of a purchase Order or (ii) acceptance of any of the Goods covered by
these Terms.

PAYMENT TERMS: 100% Net 30 days (subject to credit approval). Purchase orders must be made out to Trillium Pumps
USA INC.

Trillium Pumps USA Inc - 2495 Golden State Blvd - Fresno, California 93706
phone: 801 359 8731 - www.trilliumflow.com
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Customer Technical Offer

Customer St. Johns WWTP Size / Stages 4" Model C /1
Iltem number 001 Pump speed 1040 rpm
Customer reference Quote number 2183395

Qty

Description

1

4" Model C
General Pump Options
Pump Options
Clockwise rotation (CW)
Steel pump hardware
Bearing lubrication
Oil lubricated bearings
Nitrile elastomers
Case Assembly
4x4 Case
Vertical Top
High chrome case (650+ BHN hardness)
No case vent & drain
Standard suction connection
Rotating Assembly
Rotating Assembly
High chrome impeller (650+ BHN hardness)
Static balance
Steel shaft
Steel impeller bolt
Pump Sealing
Pump sealing
Seal Type: Single Mechanical Seal
Slurry Dynamics Single Mechanical Seal Slurry Seal
No shaft sleeve
Hi-Chrome Gland Housing Material/Backplate
Stainless steel gland
Driver
Motors
Trillium Supplied Motor: Trillium Supplied Motor
30HP 326T 1200RPM Premium Efficiency TEFC Horizontal Motor

All motors are sized and selected in accordance with Hydraulic Institute Grade 2 - 2B performance test acceptance grades and tolerances
which adds 8% to the rated horsepower requirement of the pump. This calculation has not changed the rated horsepower or efficiency shown
on the Performance Data Sheet. View the link for more information from Hydraulic Institute.

Motor manufacturer - Trillium Standard
Baseplate and Drive
Belt Drive Baseplate - Side Mount
Steel Baseplate
Trillium Standard Baseplate Design
Steel Baseplate Hardware
Fiberglass/Polyethylene Guards
Left Hand Side Mount Motor
Belts and Sheaves
Constant Speed Belts and Sheaves - Trillium Decision
Protective Coatings
Paint type
Epoxy 2 Coat Paint - Blue (Prime and Top Coat) - Option #8A
Unless otherwise noted all motors will be supplied with manufacturer's standard coating only

Trillium Pumps USA Inc - 2495 Golden State Blvd - Fresno, California 93706
phone: 801 359 8731 - www.trilliumflow.com
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Qty Description
Packing & Shipping
Shipping

No Boxing

Trillium Decision Carrier
Freight Rates
Freight Rates - Michigan: Michigan
Material Testing
Material Testing
No Hardness Testing
No Non-Destructive Testing
Testing
Testing
No Testing
Estimated Weights
Bareshaft Pump: 890.0 Ib
Baseplate: 440.0 Ib
Driver: 560.0 Ib
Misc. Weight: 0.00 Ib
Misc. Weight: 0.00 Ib
Misc. Weight: 0.00 Ib
Total Per Unit Weight: 1,890.0 Ib

Trillium Pumps USA Inc - 2495 Golden State Blvd - Fresno, California 93706
phone: 801 359 8731 - www.trilliumflow.com
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Pump Performance Datasheet

Customer
Customer reference
ltem number
Service

Quantity

. St. Johns WWTP
: 001

1
Operating Conditions

Quote number

Size

Stages

Based on curve number
Date last saved

: 2183395

14" Model C

1

:4C_P10C-D56

1 20 Aug 2024 2:22 PM

Flow, rated 1400 USgpm Liquid type : User defined
Differential head / pressure, rated (requested) :55.0 ft Additional liquid description :
Differential head / pressure, rated (actual) 1552 ft Solids diameter, max :0.00in
Suction pressure, rated / max :0.00/0.00 psi.g Solids concentration, by volume :0.00 %
NPSH available, rated : Ample Temperature, max :68.00 deg F
Site Supply Frequency 160 Hz Fluid density, rated / max :1.000/1.000 SG
Performance Viscosity, rated :1.00 cP
Speed criteria : Synchronous Vapor pressure, rated :0.00 psi.a
Speed, rated : 1040 rpm Material
Speed, maximum : 1500 rpm Material selected : Standard
Speed, minimum : 600 rpm Pressure Data
Efficiency :31.52 % Maximum working pressure 1 27.46 psi.g
NPSH required / margin required :-/0.00ft Maximum allowable working pressure : 85.00 psi.g
Ns (imp. eye flow) / Nss (imp. eye flow) 11,830 /- US Units Maximum allowable suction pressure - N/A
MCSF :20.0 USgpm Hydrostatic test pressure :N/A
Head maximum, rated speed 16341t Driver & Power Data (@Max density)
Head rise to shutoff 114.93 % Driver sizing specification : Rated power
Flow, best eff. point 1799 USgpm Margin over specification :0.08 %
Flow ratio, rated / BEP :50.08 % Service factor - 1.00
Speed ratio (rated / max) 169.33 % Power, hydraulic :5.58 hp
Head ratio (rated speed / max speed) :45.87 % Power, rated :17.69 hp
Cq/Ch/Ce/Cn [ANSI/HI 9.6.7-2010] :1.00/1.00/1.00/1.00 Power, maximum, rated diameter :30.00 hp
Selection status : Acceptable Minimum recommended motor rating :30.00 hp / 22.37 kW
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Trillium Pumps USA Inc Quote No. 2183395

20 Aug 2024 2:22 PM
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Pump Performance Curve
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Customer : St. Johns WWTP Size : 4" Model C Flow, rated 1400 USgpm
Customer reference : Stages 1 Differential head / pressure, rated :55.0 ft
Item number 1 001 Speed, rated : 1040 rpm Fluid density, rated / max :1.000/1.000 SG
Service : Based on curve number :4C_P10C-D56 Viscosity :1.00 cP
Quantity 1 Efficiency 131.52 % Cq/Ch/Ce/Cn [ANSI/HI 9.6.7-2010] :1.00/1.00/1.00/1.00
Quote number 12183395 Power, rated :17.69 hp
Date last saved 1 20 Aug 2024 2:22 PM NPSH required -

Trillium Pumps USA Inc Quote No. 2183395

20 Aug 2024 2:22 PM



8 7 6 | 5 v 4 I 3 I 2 | 1
Setom PUMP SIZED BY: SUCTION X DISCHARGE / ALL DIMS. IN INCHES
G| MOTOR | E | F |6 | L N NX | V| x|z |cB|cc|cp RA RX | orpr b |1 | ow
CTR.
_ = 2 1827 — 1 3 1 1 18 1/8 -
= | 4X4 N 48 5 |5 3|17 | 20 [10%| 47 | 45 A 4 )
/ ! € 286T — 16 1 T 22 5/8 | g 3
VOTOR F2 / i W sx4| “sest Y R 48 1| 3 | 20|22 3|15 | 60 | 58 51_ s 5ot 6 2 1
ASSEMBLY [P e\ui ‘, 1821 —| 4 511 |5 3[171] 20[10f] 47 ] 45 2 1818 - 4 16
— Xz, \\%: /) ox4 zgg;ﬂ— 12 |41 1 1 22 5/8 —| g 3
= o o o 5121 3 | 20|22 F113 | 60 | 58 225,83
\Nl NOTES: B
(i) PUMP AS SHOWN IS AS VIEWED FROM SUCTION END.
/O ONAL RIGHT HAND MOTOR MO N DESIGNATED ROTATION AND MOTOR LOCATION IS AS
VIEWED FROM SHAFT END.
2. SUCTION AND DISCHARGE FLANGES MATE WITH STD.
NX | 150 LB. ANSI FLANGES,
} ! 3. DIMENSIONS ARE NOT FOR INSTALLATION C
N r 1/4” NPT STUFFING BOX WATER CONNECTION PURPOSES UNLESS CERTIFIED.
- FEX1/16--Ex1/16
—RAH OIL FILL —L +1/4- / /
W /VENT L 9, DISCHARGE
(FAR SIDE) I T MOTOR
T il .
1 f 5 | B w
\ I — ] H
A Iy :i - ’ = N
i i 2 Aie
| —H ! - - ¢ sucTioN <
h S~ — | = |N=:
1 o g
I il — =
|l o u B
| h ‘ u ’ 4 LIFTING
L : = EYE—-BOLTS
BELT IS T Q=
GUARD i e W Py T (4) #7/8 HOLES
7 FOR 83/4
-1 1/4 TYP
T \ / g ANCHOR BOLTS
RY ‘ X — CcD 17 TYP.
OIL DRAIN - ‘ \ ' cc '
(FAR SIDE) 3/4 NPT SCUPPER DRAIN ~ SHAFT CTR. TO CTR-—
OIL LEVEL
(FAR SIDE) T TS AT R E T
STANDARD LEFT HAND MOTOR MOUNT | ESfweboms st | - UNEss omeiis srecrieo @) TRILLIUM R:ﬂ"j& A
e mypa OUT THE BEPFESS WRTIEN ATHORTY OF MER. | MACHINED TOLERANCES FLOW TECHNOLOGIES™ - :
VERTICAL UP DISCHARGE o 207 RS R SURFACES X 08 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
XXX +.010 4" MODEL "C
e R
,,,IN? CBL'M S 4%12[22) e ADDED NOTE 3 TO SHEBECI'NF;MAD 6X4 TO TAB » o S I B S I3 5435‘;’& = AUTOCAD S DRANN BY D‘E _
e 43603 REVISED NOTES ON SHEET 3 g & c::f«m D‘:ﬁ% 93 [oo w. 78213-1 [sweer 1 oF 3 [ oo no. 405/AAA 320
E 3 | MD RF RF_[57810 ADDED PART NUMBERS TO BOM H I Sxi\@ ;;12_94 ,S:SEE 56 ?%21 3 w:\nsssou
[ cHo. [ IRS 1-18-94
8 7/ | 6 5 4 4 3 | 2 | 1



jmoor
Arrow

jmoor
Arrow

jmoor
Rectangle

jmoor
Rectangle

jmoor
Rectangle

jmoor
Rectangle

jmoor
Rectangle


11

1z

21

2.2

23

31

§ /) TRILLIUM

FLOW TECHNOLOGIES™

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE

In the Contract the following definitions apply as well as any definitions defined locally within these Terms
and Conditi or the i Purch Order:

“Affiliate” means any entity that directly or indirectly controls, |s controlled by or is under commaon control
with, anather entity;

“Applicable Law” means all applicable laws, legislati and g tal guidance having
binding force, whether local or national, and having jurlsdlctlon over the parties in relation to the Contract;
“Contract” means these Terms and Conditions and the applicable Purchase Order;

“Customer” means the person specified in the Purchase Order who purchases Goods and/or Services from
Trillium, and such person’s SUCCEsSOrs;

*Customer Plant” means Customer's plant, machinery, goods and/or equipment which is to be sarviced by
Trillium as part of the Services;

“Defect” has the meaning given in clause 8.2, and “Defective” shall be construed accordingly:

“Force Majeure™ means an event or sequence of events beyond a party’s reasonable control, preventing or
delaying that party from performing its obligations under the Contract, including; (a) an act of God, fire, flood,
lightning, earthguake or other natural disaster, epidemic or pandemic: {b) any action taken by a governmental
or public autherity, including imposing an export or import restriction, quota, or other restriction or prohibition
or any complete or partial government shutdown; (c) war, riot or civil unrest; (d) interruption or failure of
supplies of power, fuel, water, transport, equip i, ions service, or required for
performance of the Contract: or (e) strike, lockout or boveott or other industrial action including those involving
Trillium or its workfarce;

“Goods™ means all goods, products and ancillary equipment and spare parts specified in the applicable
Purchase Order;

“Intellectual Property Rights” means patents, utility models, rights to inventions, copyright and neighbouring
and related rights, trade marks, business names and domain names, rights in get-up and trade dress, goodwill
and the right to sue for passing off, rghts in designs, rights in computer software, rights in Confidential
Information, database rights, and all other intellectual property rights, in each case whether registered or
unregistered and including all applications and rights to apply for and be granted, renewals or extensions of,
and rights to claim priority from, any rights and all similar or equivalent rights or forms of protection that
subsist or will subsist now or in the future in any part of the world;

“Price™ means the price payable by the Customer to Trillium for the applicable Goods and/or Services (as
applicable);

“Purchase Order” means the document agreed by the parties that sets out details of the Goods and/or
Services that are to be provided by Trillium to the Customer in accordance with these Terms and Conditions
and any terms mutually agreed in the Purchase Order;

“Site” means the address of the place where the Sernvices are to be p
Order;

“Services” means the services set out in the Purchase Order that are to be performed by Trillium or by the
Sub-Suppliers, as the case may be;

“Sub-Supplier” means any agent, sub-contractor or other third party engaged by Trillium in relation to the
provision of the Goods and/or Services;

“Sub-Supplier Personnel” means all employees, officers, staff, other workers, agents and consultants of a
Sub-Supplier;

“Terms and Conditions” means these terms and conditions of sale in relation to the applicable Contract;
“Trillum" means the Trilllum entity specified in the Purchase Order that provides the Goods and/or Services
1o the Customer, and such Trillium entity’s successors;

“Trillium Indemnitees” means Trillium, Its Affillates and Sub-Suppliers, and its and their respective personnel;
and

“Trillium Personnel” means all employees, officers, staff, other workers, agents and consultants of Trillium
and its Affiliates who are engaged In the performance of Trilllum'’s obligations under the Contract from time
1o time.

d in the P
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The parties agree that: (g) the headings to the clauses in these Terms and Conditions are inserted for
convenience of reference and shall not affect their interpretation; (b) in case of any conflict or inconsistency
between these Terms and Conditions and the terms of the Purchase Order, the terms of the Purchase Order
shall prevail: and (c) English shall be the language of the Contract, and all communications, written or oral,
and documents under the Contract shall be in the English language unless otherwise stated elsewhere in the
Contract.

Applicability. These Terms and Conditions apply to all orders for Goods and/or Services made by the Customer
pursuant to a Purchase Order. Unless expressly agreed in writing by Trilllum, any terms or conditions in the
Customer's request or other documents provided by the Customer shall not apply to any Goods or Services
provided by Trillium and shall not bind Trillium, and Trillium explicitly rejects any such terms or conditions.

Contract F ion., Where the C wishes to purchase Goods and/or Services from Trillium it will
a i its requi to Trillium, Upon receipt of such request, Trillium may produce a draft
document setting out the details of the Goods and/or Services that Trilllum proposes to provide and shall
provide this draft document to the Customer, If applicable, the terms of the draft document shall be valid for
the time period stated in that draft document and thereafter are subject to change. The Contract between
Trillium and the Customer is formed upon the parties formally executing or otherwise acknowledging in writing
a Purchase Order and shall continue until each party’s cbligations are completed in accordance with the
terms of the Contract, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of the Contract {the “Term”).
Trillium has no obligation to agree to any Purchase Orders.

Changes. The Customer may request modifications as to the amount, scope and/or nature of the Goods
and/or Services via a written change reguest. If, in Trillium's sole opinion, any such modification will affect
the agreed Price and/or time of delivery, Trilllum will notify the Customer in writing and will not be obligated
to perform any modification unless the Customer agrees in writing to such Price and/or time of deilvery
amendment. The Customer shall not tamper with, or make changes or additions to, the Goods, including any
labels, plates, markings and any other feature carned by the Goods.

Price and Payment Terms. The Price and payment terms shall be as set out in the Purchase Order. Where no
Price for Services is set out in the Purchase Order, it shall be calculated on a time and materials basis in
accordance with Trillium's price schedule then in force. Where no payment terms are set out in the Purchase
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Order, payment of each invoice shall be due and payable thirty (30) days after the date of the invoice. All
invoices shall be paid without any set-off, counterclaim or deduction whatsoever,

Additional Charges. Any | documents, insp reports, luation or cpinion requested by the
Customer in connection with the Contract shall be chargeable, such charges to be agreed by the parties. Any
time that Trilllum Personnel or Sub-Supplier Personnel are required at the Site(s) outside of the agreed
working hours shall be chargeable as overtime, If Trilllum incurs any costs due to the Customer's failure to
comply with any of its obligations under the Contract, the Customer shall be responsible for such costs.

Excluded Charges and Tax. Unless expressly provided otherwise in the Purchase Order: (8) transportation
charges, delivery charges, duties, ir charges, p ging costs, consular fees, and any other
similar charges are not included in the Price; and (b) the Customer shall be responsible for all taxes (other
than taxes based on the income of Trillium), charges and assessments levied or imposed on the sale(s) made
under the Contract. In the event that Trillium is required to pay any such tax, charge, or assessment, the
Customer agrees to promptly reimburse Trillium for said amount{s).

Interest on Overdue Amounts. If the Customer fails to pay any Invoica by the due date for payment, Trllllum
shall be entitled, without prejudice to any other right or remedy, 1o suspend (without notice) any or all further
performance of its obligations under the Contract and charge interest on any amount outstanding at a rate
of the lesser of: (a) eighteen per cent (18%) per annum {one and a half per cent (1.5%) per month); or (b) the
maximum rate allowed by Applicable Law, such interest being charged from the due date until paid as a
separate, continuing obligation not merging with any judgment, together with any statutory debt recovery
costs.

Escalation. In the event of a delay of two weeks or more or the increase of actual costs of Goods and/or
Services of 5% or more, E b the effi date of the Contract and the date of shipment of the
Goods or performance of the Services from causes beyond the reasonable control of Trillium, including but
not limited to any foreign exchange fluctuation, import or export duties, costs of labor, transportation,
materials and other costs of manufacture, any change in delivery dates, quantities or specifications for the
Goods or Services, or any delay caused by any instructions or omissions by Customer, the Price or Contract
requirements will be equitably adjusted via written notice to Customer at any time prior to shipment of the
Goods and/or performance of the Services.

Delivery. Delivery terms for Goods shall be as per the INCOTERM 2010 stated in the Purchase Order. Where
no INCOTERM 2010 is stated in the Purchase Order, delivery shall be EXW INCOTERM 2010 Trillium's

d premises. The must collect the Goads, or arrange for the Goods 1o be collected, within
seven (7) days of notice from Trillium that the Goods are ready 10 be collected. If the Goods are not collected
within such time period, Trillium may, at its discration: (a) where title has not passed to the Customer, sell the
Goods at the best price readily obtainable and recover from the Customer any shortfall between the Price for
the Goods and the price obtained by Trillium; or (b} arrange for the storage of the Goods, which, unless
otherwise agreed, shall be at the G 's excl cost and Where storage is not at Trillium's
premises, risk In the Goods will pass to the Customer upon the Goads leaving Trilllum's premises. The time
of delivery shall not be of the essence and if Trillium is unabile for any reason to fulfil any delivery of the Goods
on the specified date, Trillium shall not be treated as being in breach of the Contract and the Customer shall
not be entitled to reject delivery, terminate the Contract, nor to any compensation in respect of such delay.
This clause shall not affect any agreed Liguidated Damages payable for late delivery of the Goods in
accordance with clause 4.4,

Testing. Goods manufactured by Trillium will be subject to Trillium's standard tests. Any additional testing
requested by the Customer will be subject to the by the C: of additional charges.

Acceptance, Following delivery of the Goods in accordance with the Contract, and unless expressly excluded
by the Customer to Trillium in writing, the Customer shall accept the Goods,

Liguidated Damages. Where the parties have agreed in the Purchase Order that any sum will be payable for
late delivery of the Goods, if delivery of the Goods is delayed beyond the agreed delivery date due to an act
or omission of Trillium then Trillium shall pay to the Customer a sum calculated at the percentage rate {stated
in the Purchase Order) of the price of the delayed Goods for each week between the agreed delivery date and
the actual date of defivery. up to the maximum amount specified in the Purchase Order. Such sum shall be
the Customer's sole and exclusive remedy and paid as liquidated and ascertained damages by Trillium to the
Customer in full and final settlement and satisfaction of Trillium's entire liability for any loss, damages, costs
ar suffered or i d by the Cy arising from such delay {“Liquidated Damages”). Liguidated
Damages are not applicable to the delivery of spare parts or Services.

Provision of D Where the F Order requires Trillium to provide documents for approval by
the Customer, Trillium shall provide such documents within the time period agreed, or if no time period is
agreed, within a reasonable time from receipt of the Purchase Order.

T 5H,

Tithe and Risk. Title and property in all Goods shall remain vested in Trillium until receipt by Trillium of payment
in full of the Price (including any storage costs and expenses and default interest) for such Goods from the
Customer. Risk in the Goods shall pass to the Customer in accordance with the agreed INCOTERM 2010,
Customer shall provide access to the Customer’s premises in order for Trillium to recover Goods in respect of
which title and property has not passed to the Customer.

Trilllum Property. Any Goods delivered by Trillium to the Customer where title and property remains vested in
Trillium: {a) shall be stored by the Customer separately from any other goods or materials; (b) shall not be
Incorporated in or mixed with any other goods or materials; and (¢} may be sold or used by the Customer in
the ordinary course of the Customer's business at the full market value and to the account of Trillium, The
entire proceeds from such sale or use shall be held by the Customer in trust in a separate account for the
benefit of Trillium,

Customer Plant. In respect of Customer Plant: (a) the Customer warrants that it is the owner, or the authorized
agent of the owner, of the Customer Plant with express authority to contract with Trillium on the terms and
conditions of the Contract; and (b) all Customer Plant delivered to Trillium shall be at the sole risk of the
Customer, and Trillium shall be under no cbligation to the Customer for any loss or damage to the Customer
Plant. horwsoever caused, except for any damages caused by the negligence of Trillium Personnel or Sub-
i the Customer should make such arrangements for insurance thereof as it
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£5. The Services shall be performed at the Site(s) on the date(s) specified in
the Puvchase Order by Trillium or any Sub-Supplier appointed by Trillium; however, time of perfformance of
the Services is not of the essence, If the Contract provides for any estimated dates for the performance of
the Services, Trillium shall use its reasonable endeavors to meet such estimated dates, provided that the
Customer agrees that any such dates are indicative only and that Trillium shall not be liable for any failure to
meel any dates where such fallure is caused by an act or omission of the Customer, its agents,
subcontractors, consultants or employees.

Provision of Data. The Customer shall promptly provide to Trillium all applicable data that is relevant to the
provision of the applicable Goods and/or Services, including full condi inf o,
Instructions, procedures, technical documents and drawings. Trillium shall provide the Customer with the
general arrangement or outline drawings for the Goods (or part thereof), only as is strictly necessary and in
accordance with the Purchase Order's requirements. Where required, the Customer shall promptly retum one
(1) set of applicable drawings marked with its approval, Approval delays can result in delayed fabrication,
extended shipping dates, and increased costs to the Customer.

Site{s). The Customer shall provide Trillium, Trillium Personnel, Sub-Suppliers and Sub-Supplier Personnel all
access to the Site(s) as is necessary in order for Trillium to comply with its obligations under the Contract and
shall ensure that it has in place all necessary licenses, permits and authorization to allow such access. The
Customer shall ensure, and it shall cause any applicable third party to ensure, that the Site(s) isfare in a
condition allowing the performance of the Services to commence in accordance with the Contract and without
any health and safety risks to those attending the Site{s) and it shall carry out all the preparatory work in
accordance with any documents and instructions supplied by Trillium with all due care and in accordance
with good industry practices. The Customer shall take all measures required by Applicable Law in respect of
the provisicn of the Services and the presence of the Trillium Personnel and of the Sub-Supplier Personnel at
the Site(s) or elsewhere where the Services are to be supplied. If the Customer fails to take such measures
and if the safety of Trllium Personnel or Sub-Supplier Personnel is not guaranteed, Trillium may at any time
refuse or interrupt the provision of Services as well as remove the applicable personnel from the Site(s), until
the issues have been fully rectified by the Customer, and shall have no liability to the Customer for such
actions or any including any d; or loss) of such actions. The Customer shall indemnify
and hold the Trillium Indemnitees harmless for all claims, demands, losses, damages. liability, costs and
expenses (including legal and other professional fees), fines and penalties incurred by the applicable Trillium
Indemnitees arising out of or in connection with the licabde Trillium | i " attendance at any Site
in order to provide the Services.

Decontamination. Any Defective Goods returned to Trillium and any Customer Plant made available to Trillium
in respect of the Services shall, prior to being retuned or made available, be cleaned by the Customer of all
process related materials ("Decontamination”). The Customer shall provide Trillium with a certificate of
Decontamination in respect thereof. Goods and Customer Plant delivered to Trillium {for whatever reason)
without having been so cleaned or without a certificate of Decontamination may be returned at any time and
otherwise shall be g tined and subjected to an inc D nination at the Customer’s expense
and Trillium shall have no obligations in respect of such Goods or Customer Plant. The provision of Goods
and/or Services {as applicable} shall be withheld pending of any o charges. The
Customer shall indemnify and hold the Trillium Indemnitees harmiess for all claims, demands, losses,
damages, ligbility, costs and expenses [including legal and other professional fees), fines and penalties
incurred by the applicable Trillium Indemnitess arising out of or in connection with any Goods that are not
Decontaminated.

Erection/Commissioning, Where the Services include the erection and/or commissioning, or supervision of
erection and/or commissioning, of Goods and/or Customer Plant, the Customer will pravide, at its expense,
all other labor, all amenities, suitable access to and occupation of the Site(s), proper foundations ready to
receive the Goods and/or Customer Plant (as applicable), adequate cranes, lifting gear and machines,
scaffolding, masoen's, joiner's and builder's work, suitable protection for the Goods and/or Customer Plant
(as applicable), and all other facilities and assistance reasonably required by Trillium or any Sub-Supplier,

Warranty Period. Trillium's warranty obligations under the Contract shall not commence until the full contract
Price has been received by Trillium for the applicable Goods and/or Services, Unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the parties, the “Warranty Period” for: (a) agreed deliverables provided as part of the Services
{"Deliverables”) shall be twelve (12) months from the date of completion of the Deliverables in accordance
with the specification set out in the Purchase Order; (b) all Goods (excluding spare parts) provided by Trillium
shall be the period of; (i) twelve (12) months from the date that the Goods are installed; or (i} eighteen (18)
months from the actual delivery date, whichever is the earlier; and (c) for any spare parts provided by Trillium,
shall be the period of twelve (12) months from the date of the delivery of the applicable spare part.

During the Warranty Period, Trillium that any D» bles shall

conform to thelr description and specification specified in the Purchase Order and that any Goods shall be
free from material defects in the design, materials and workmanship {the “Trillium Warranty"). iIf the
Deliverables or Goods (as applicable) do not conform to the Trillium Warranty during the Warranty Period {a
“Defect”), as the Customer’s sole and exclusive remedy, Trilllum shall, at ts sole option, remedy the Defect
(by reperforming the Services relating 1o the Defective Deliverable or repairing or replacing the Defective
Goods (as applicable)) or refund the Price for the licable D Deli or Defective Goods,
provided that, within the Warranty Period, the Customer serves a written notice to Trilllum with a detailed
description and reasonable evidence of the Defect within seven (7) days of the date on which the Customer
discovered the Defect or should have reasonably discovered the Defect. The Customer shall give Trillium a
reasonable opportunity to examing the Customer's claim of a Defect (including Inspecting the Goads ar
Deliverables (as applicable)) and shall promptly cooperate to any extent necessary to grant Trillium sufficient
time to da so. Any reparformance of the Services relating to the Defective Deli or repair o repl

of Defective Goods shall not extend the Warranty Period for those Goods or Deliverables and the Warranty
Period for the repaired or replaced Goods or Deliverables shall expire on the same date as the Warranty
Periad for the original Goods or Deliverables, The Customer shall only be entitled to request a refund of the
Price in respect of Defective Goods or Defective Deliverables in the event that Trillium fails to replace or repair
the applicable Defective Goods or Defective Deliverables.

Warranty Exclusions. The Trillium Warranty and remedies provided under clause 8.2 shall not apply in respect
of, and Trillium shall not be liable for: {a) the effects of erosion or corrosion; (b) fair wear and tear; (c) any
cor {i ing lubri . seals, gaskets, O-rings etc.); nor (d) Defects that arise due to, or as a result
of the Customer, or any third party (not acting on behalf of Trillium): (i) failing to install or maintain, or
incorrectly installing or maintaining, the Goods or Deliverables; (i) incomectly using the Goads or Deliverables;
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(iii) repairing or altering the Goods or Deliverables without Trilium's written consent; (v} improperly storing
the Goods or Deliverables; or (v) tampering with the Goods or Deliverables,

Location of Repair. If the parties agree that Defective Goods shall be repaired at & location specified by
Trillium, the Customer shall deliver such Defective Goods to such location at the Customer's expense, subject
to the Decontamination requirements at clause 7.3. Repaired or replaced Goods shall be redelivered by
Trillium free of charge to the original point of delivery but otherwise in accordance with and subject to these
Terms and Conditions. Where it is agreed that Trillium is to repair or replace Defective Goods at the
Customer’s premises, Trillium shall not be responsible for any on-site costs, including removal and
reinstallation of any Goods.

Customer Wamanty. The C warrants and rep that: (a) it has provided Trillium with all relevant,
full and accurate information as to the Customer’s business and needs, as well as all the information required
in order for Trillium to perform its obligations under the Contract; and (b} it is properly financed and organized,
it is solvent and has not made a general assignment for the benefit of creditors nor has it been adjudicated
bankrupt or insolvent and it is not aware of any fact or event based upon which, in its reasonable opinion, it
may face any such situation of financial distress described in this clause before the completion of all its
obligations under the Contract.

£
Indemnity. The Customer shall indemnify and held the Trillium Indemnitees harmless for all claims, demands,
losses, damages, liability, costs and expenses (including legal and other professional fees), fines and
penalties incurred by the i Trillium Inds i arising out of or in connection with the Customer's
breach of any of the Customer’s obligations under the Contract or Applicable Law.

Insurance. The Customer shall have in place ¢ of ir with rep insurers incorporated In
its country of establishment to cover its obligations under the Contract. On reguest, the Customer shall supply
evidence of the maintenance of the insurance and all of its terms from time to time applicable, The Customer
shall, on request by Trillium, assign to Trillium the benefit of such insurance,

UNLIMITED LIABILITY. NOTHING IN THE CONTRACT LIMITS ANY LIABILITY OF THE PARTIES FOR: (i) ANY
INDEMNITY PROVIDED UNDER THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS; (il) DEATH OR PERSONAL INJURY CAUSED
BY NEGLIGENCE; (iii) FRAUD OR FRAUDULENT MISREPRESENTATION; OR (iv) ANY LIABILITY WHICH CANNOT
LEGALLY BE LIMITED.

EXCLUSIONS. SUBJECT TO CLAUSE 10.1 ABOVE AND NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING IN THE CONTRACT TO
THE CONTRARY, TRILLIUM SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE OR HELD LIABLE TO THE CUSTOMER OR ANY THIRD-
PARTY FOR ANY SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, DELAY, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGES, OR FOR ANY LOSS OF PROFIT, PRODUCTS, BUSINESS, REVENUE, GOODWILL, SAVINGS, USE,
CONTRACTS OR POWER, OR ECONOMIC LOSSES, OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTIONS, OR OTHER SIMILAR
DAMAGES (WHETHER SUCH DAMAGES ARE CHARACTERIZED AS DIRECT OR INDIRECT), REGARDLESS OF
WHETHER TRILLIUM WAS INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH, AND HOWEVER THE SAME MAY BE
CAUSED, INCLUDING BREACH OF CONTRACT OR WARRANTY, TORT (INCLUDING MNEGLIGENCE), OR STRICT
LIABILITY OF TRILLIUM.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. SUBJECT TO CLAUSES 10.1 AND 10.2 ABOVE AND NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING
1N THE CONTRACT TO THE CONTRARY, THE MAXIMUM AGGREGATE LIABILITY, IF ANY, OF TRILLIUM (WHETHER
ARISING IN CONTRACT, TORT, NEGLIGEMCE, STRICT LIABILITY, EREACH OF WARRANTY, BREACH OF
CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE) UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE CONTRACT SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN
AMOUNT EQUIVALENT TO ONE HUNDRED PERCENT (100%) OF THE TOTAL PAYMENTS RECEIVED BY TRILLIUM
FROM THE CUSTOMER IN RESPECT OF THE PARTICULAR GOODS OR SERVICES (OR PART THEREOF) GIVING
RISE TO THE CLAIM.

WARRANTY DISCLAIMER. EXCEPT FOR THOSE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET OUT IN THE CONTRACT, TO THE
FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, THE CUSTOMER EXPRESSLY WAIVES, AND TRILLIUM
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS, ANY AND ALL REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, WHETHER
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THOSE OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR
PURPOSE. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY STATUTORY WARRANTIES THAT
ARE INCONSISTENT WITH THE WARRANTIES PROVIDED IN THE CONTRACT ARE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED BY
TRILLIUM AND WAIVED BY THE CUSTOMER. TRILLIUM'S OBLIGATIONS CONTAINED IN ANY WARRANTY
PROVIDED BY TRILLIUM TO THE CUSTOMER UNDER THE CONTRACT SHALL CONSTITUTE TRILLIUM'S SOLE
LIABILITY AND THE CUSTOMER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY WITH RESPECT TO THE ISSUE(S) GIVING RISE TO THE
WARRANTY CLAIM, IRRESPECTIVE OF TRILLIUM'S FAULT, NEGLIGEMCE OR LIABILITY WITHOUT FAULT,
ELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Trillium IP. The Customer acknowledges that, unless otherwlse agreed in the Purchase Order, all Intellectual
Property Rights in any Goods, Deliverables, designs, S, ¢ and/or software or any items
related thereto, or any other items provided to the C during the p of the Contract
{collectively referred to as "Trillium IP"), belong solely and exclusively to Trillium or to Trillium's licensor(s) (as
applicable). Subject to the terms of the Contract, Trillium grants the Customer a revocable, non-exclusive,
nor-transferrable, non-sublicensable license to use the Trillium IP, to the extent such Trillium IF is embedded
in Goods or Services provided by Trillium to the Customer under the Contract, solely for the purpose and to
the extent necessary to enable the Customer to exercise its rights under the Contract (including to operate
and maintain the Goods or to receive the Services) in accordance with its terms (the "Permitted Purpose”).
The Customer undertakes that it will not use, except for the Permitted Purpose, nor make available to any
third party (in any form) any Trillium IP without the prior written consent of Trillium. Subject to clause 5.2, this
clause shall not prohibit the Customer’s right to sell Goods in the ordinary course of the Customer’s business.
For the avoidance of doubt and notwithstanding any other provisions in the Contract, Trilium shall not be
required to provide to the Customer, and no license is granted under the Contract to use, shop or
manufacturing drawings nor any of Trillium’s confidential rruanu(aclurlng drawings, designs, in-house
standards or know-how, nor the confidential details of or i
belonging to Trillium or its licensors (as applicable).

Customer Materials. If the Customer provides specific documentation and/or information to Trillium in
relation to the performance of the Contract (“Customer Materials™), the Customer shall indemnify and hold
the Trillium Indemnitees harmless for all claims, demands, losses, damages, liability, costs and expensas
(including legal and other professional fees), fines and penalties Incurred by the applicable Trillium
Indemnitees arising out of or in connection with any action, demand or claim thet the Trillium Indemnitees’
use of the Customer Materials infringes the rights {including Intellectual Property Rights) of any third party.
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FLOW TECHNOLOGIES™

( TV Any document, data, drawings, plans, designs, images, specifications, technical data and
any other ‘material or information supplied or made available by one party (“Discloser’) to the other party
{"Recipient”) as part of the Contract or any other documentation or information in whatsoever form provided
by the Di to the during the perfo of the Contract {“Confidential Information”}, shall
be treated as strictly confidential and shall not be divulged by the Recipient to any person, except as required
by law or to the Recipient's personnel, subcontractors or professional advisors, who need to know such
Confidential Information in order for the Recipient to comply with its obligations under, or receive the benefit
of, the Contract anu provided that such recipients are subject to obiigations of confidentiality In respect of
such Confid, | 1. AS the Reci and the Di: . the Discloser retains title 1o all of
Its Confidential Informaticn.

PRO P A - Each party agrees to process the personal data acquired from the other
party dunng the parformance of the Contract (the “Personal Data®) in compliance with applicable Data
Protection Laws, including where relevant, the provisions of General Data Protection Regulation (EU)
2016/679 and the United Kingdom Data Protection Act 2018, as amended from time to tme and every law
and provision concerning personal data protection, which may be applicable from time to time {hereinafter,
collectively 1o as “Data P ion Laws”). For the purpose of this Contract’s management and
performance, each party (i) should be considered as acting as an independent data controller with regard to
the Personal Data it p jasa ™ Data Ce yand which have been provided by the other
party {“Primary Data Controller™). Such Primary Data Controller undertakes to duly inform its personnel of
such disclosure on behalf of the Secondary Data Controller. Each party, for the parts it is responsible for, is
specifically obliged to comply with, when necessary, obligations conceming information to be sent to the data
subjects (including ensuring appropriate legal basis for processing) and 1o obtain, when necessary, from the
same all required consent in relation to the processing of the Personal Data transferred to and processed by
the other party and to meet any obligations provided for by Data Protection Laws. The parties declare that
their respective internal and external personnel and staff members processing the Personal Data, directly
and/or indirectly concerned with the performance of the Contract, have been informed of the confidential
nature of, and legal requirements {including those under the Data Protection Laws) relating to, such Personal
Data and have received suitable training on their responsibilities to protect the Personal Data. Where
additional services would be contemplated between the parties, involving the processing of Personal Data by
a party on behalf of the other, the parties undertake to discuss in good faith of the term of any data processing
agreemeant which may be required,

Applicable Law, The Customer represents and warrants that it is, and wlll remain, fully compliant with all
Applicable Law, instructions and policies, including, but not limited to all statutory licenses or permits required
for the receipt of the Goods and/or Services and the performance of its obligations under the Contract. Each
party shall comply with all Applicable Law in connaction with bribery or anti-corruption. If required by Trillium,
the Customer shall complete and sign an end user certificate before the Customer receives the Goods or
Services. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, Trillum accepts no responsibility or liability for failure to comply
with statutory or local reguiations or by-laws that affect the siting, construction or operation of the Goods
supplied under the Contract. Any relevant consents or approvals required shall be the responsibility of, and
abtained by, the Customer.

Export and Dual Use Law. The Customer acknowledges that Trillium is required to comply with all applicable
export laws, controls and regulations relating to the sale, exportation, transfer, assignment, disposal, and
usage of Goods to be supplied under the Contract, as well as any laws or regulation relating to “dual use™
goods, including, but not limited to, U.5.. United Kingdom and European Union export rules and any expart
license reguirements {collectively, the “Export and Dual Use Law”). The Customer agrees it shall not at any
time directly or indirectly use, export, sell, transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of the Goods in @ mannaer
which will result in non-compliance with applicable Export and Dual Use Law. If any of the Goods fall under
the definition of "dual use” item, the Customer shall cooperate with Trillium for the purpose of obtaining any
required licenses and approvals and shall provide any and all information necessary. The Contract may also
involve information or items that are subject to military defense or nuclear export controls, and the Customer
agrees that Jl will comply with said controls and shall not export or re-export, directly or indirectly, any

defi service, ir or technical data provided by, through, or with the
cooperatmn ofTrlIIlum toany party, including ployed by or d with, or under contract with,
the Customer or the Customer's lower-tier suppliers without the prior written consent of Trillium and without
first obtaining any required export license or other approval.

Restricted Party Lists. The Customer represents that neither the Customer nor any of its Affiliates are included
on any of the denied, or i party lists maintained by the government of the country(ies) in
which Trillium or its Affiliates are based. The Customer shall promptly notify Trillium in writing if the Customer
is, or becomes, listed in any such lists or if the Customer’s export privileges are otherwise denied, suspended,
or revoked in whole or in part by any governmental authority.

Termination. The Customer may terminate the Contract or any part thereof for any reason by written notice to
Trillium, provided that (other than where such termination is due to a material default of the Contract by
Trillium) the Customer shall pay to Trillium the total costs which have been incurred by Trillium as of the date
such termination is effective plus a reasonable profit margin, less any payments previously received. In
addition, the Customer shall reimburse Trilliem all reasonable documented direct and indirect costs incurred
by Trillium as a result of the termination and, if any, costs Trillium may incur from its vendors as a result of
the Customer's termination. Without affecting any other right or remedy available to it, Trillium may terminate
the Contract (in whole or in part) immediately by written notice to the Customer, if the Customer: (&) is in
material or continuing breach of any provision of the Contract, which cannot be remedied or is not remedied
within fourteen {14) days of notice of breach from Trillium; or (b} becomes bankrupt or insolvent, has a
receiving crder made against it, makes ag with its creditors, o be wound up (except for
a voluntary winding up for the purpose of sclvent reconstruction or amalgamation), or carries on its business
under a receiver for the benefit of its creditors or any of them.

Consequences of Termination. Upon the Contract ending for any reason, the Customer shall return all of
Trillium’s documents, drawings and any other items or information (including all Confidential Infarmation) in
the Customer's possession.

Notices. Any notice given by & party under the Contract shall be: {a) in writing and in English; (b) signed by, or
on behalf of, the party giving it (except for notices sent by email); (c) sent to the relevant party at the address
set out in the Contract; and {d) served by: (i) email (in a form that identifies the sender and clearly indicates
the subject matter of the notice in the subject heading of the email} to the email address set out in the
Contract or s ctherwise notified from time to time, and it will be deemed to have been duly given or made
{and duly received by the addressee) at the time of transmission by the sender {as recorded on the device of
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the sender); or (i) hand (which will include by courier, whether local or international) to the address set out in
the Contract or as otherwise notified fram time to time, and it will be deemed to have been duly given or made
{and duly received by the addressee) at the time of delivery. The parties may not senve documents relating to
formal legal procesdings by email,

Force Majeure. If, by reason of an event of Force Majeure, either of the parties shall be delayed in, or
prevented from, performing any of the provisions of the Contract (other than the Customer's obligation to
make payments in accordance with the Contract) then, provided that the affected party promptly notifies the
other in writing of the nature and extent of such event as soon as practicable, such delay or non-performance
shall not be deemed to be & breach of that party's obligations under the Contract and no loss or damage shall
be claimed by either of the parties hereto from the other by reason thereof. If Trillium suffers delay and/or
incurs any costs by reason of an event of Force Majeure, Trillium shall be entitled to an extension of time
under the Contract (including time for demobilization and redeployment of Trillium Personnel or any Sub-
Supplier Personnel). If the Force Majeure event continues to delay or prevent either party's performance of
the provisions of the Contract for a continuous period of more than sixty (60) days, either party may terminate
the Contract by written notice to the other party.

COVID-19. The parties are awars of the current outbreak of COVID-19 (the “COVID-19 Pandemic”) which is
impacting or may impact Trillium's performance of the Contract. The parties agree that Trillium is entitled to
any potential cost compensation, extension of time, or other reasonably required contractual adjustments, if
any conseguences, whether directly or indirectly resulting out of, or in connection with the COVID-19
Pandemic, affects any of its obligations under the Contract and, if required by Trillium, the parties shall
renagotiate the Contract in good faith to achieve, as nearly as possible, its original commercial intent. Trillium
expressly reserves the right 1o adjust any Contract terms which are impacted by COVID-18 Pandemic related
guidelines and restrictions issued by competent autherities and/or by Trilllum and/or any of its Affiliates.

MNo Employment. Trillium and each of its Sub-Suppliers shall act as an independent contractor with respect to
the Servioes and neither Trillium Personnel nor any Sub-Supplier Personnel shall be deemed to be employees,

| or & rep jve of the Ci . If, in accordance with Applicable Law, any member of Trillium
Personnel ar Sub-Supplier Personnel is, at any point during or after the Term, deemed to be an emplayee,
member of personnel or a representative of the Customer, the Customer shall indemnify and hold the Trillium
Indemnitees harmiess for all claims, demands, losses, damages, liability, costs and expenses (including legal
and other professional fees), fines and penalties incurred by the applicable Trillium Indemnitees arising out
of or in connecticn with the Customer's employment or engagement or termination thereof of such Trillium
Personnel or Sub-Supplier Personnel.

Cumulative and Equitable Remedies. Trilllum's rights and remedies provided in the Contract are cumulative
and not exclusive of any rights and remedies provided by Applicable Law and shall not be affected by
termination of the Contract. The Customer recognizes that any breach or threatened breach of the Contract
may cause Trillium irreparable harm for which damages may not be an adequate remedy. Accordingly, In
addition to any other ies and d ilable to Trillium, the Customer acknowledges and agrees
that Trillium is entitlad to the remedies of specific performance, injunction and other equitable relief without
proof of special damages.

it and ing. Trillium may at any time assign, transfer, subcontract or otherwise deal in
any other manner with any or all of its rights or obligations under the Contract without the Customer’s prior
consent. The Customer shall execute any reasonably required by Trillium to give effect to Trillium’s
rights under this clause, The Customer may not assign, transfer, mortgage, charge. subcontract, delegate,
declare a trust over or deal in any other manner with any of its rights or obligations under the Contract without
the prior written approval of Trillium,

No Partnership. The parties are independent persons and are not partners, principal and agent or employer
and empioyee and the Contract does not establish any joint venture, trust, fiduclary or other relationship
between them, ather than the contractual relationship expressly provided for in it. Neither party shall have,
nor shall represent that it has, any authority to make any commitments on the other party’s behalf.

Variation. Mo variation of the Contract shall be binding unless expressly agreed in wiiting and executed by a
duly authorized signatory on behall of each of Trillium and the Customer, respectively, Changes to the
Contract are subject to clause 2.3,

Severability and Survival. All terms of the Contract are severable, and any provision of the Contract held to be
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of
such i idity, ill=gality, or bility without affecting the validity, legality, and enforceability of the
remaining provisions hereaf or thereof. The invalidity of & particular provision in a particular jurisdiction shall
not invalidate such pravision in any other jurisdiction. Those provisions that are expressed, or by their nature
are required, to survive expiry or termination of the Contract, shall survive expiry or termination of the
Contract.

Entire Agreement. The Contract constitutes Lhe entire agreement between Trillium and the Customer and
supersedes any prior oral or written s and ions between Trillium and the Customer
relating to its subject matter. Each party agrees that it shall have no remedies in respect of any statement,
representation, assurance of warranty (whether made innocently or negligently) that is not set out in the
Contract. Each party agrees that it shall have no claim for innocent or negligent misrepresentation or negligent

based on any in the Contract. The United Nations Convention on Contracts for the
International Sale of Goods does not apply to the sale of any Goeods by Trillium to the Customer under the
Contract,

Americas. If Trilllum is based in North or South America (the “Americas”), the Contract will be governed by
and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, without giving effect to any choice of law or
conflict provision or rule that would cause the laws of any other jurisdiction to be applied, Where this clause
17.1 applies, all disputes arising out of or in connection with the Contract must be brought in & state or federal
court sitting in Harris County, Texas, and each party hereby irrevocably submits itself to the exclusive
jurisdiction of each such court in any such action or proceading and waives any objection it may now or
hereafter have to venue or convenience of forum. THE PARTIES HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT
TO TRIAL BY JURY,

Outside of the Americas. If Trillium is based outside of the Americas, the Contract will be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of England. Where this clause 17.2 applies, all disputes arising out of
or in connection with the Contract shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration under the London
Court of International Arbitration Rules ("LCIA Rules™), which LCIA Rules are deemed incorporated by
referenced into this clause. The number of arbitrators shall be one (1). The seat, or legal place, of arbitration
shall be London, England. The language used in the arbitral proceedings shall be English, The governing law
of this arbitration agreement shall be English law.
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QUOTATION

Quoted To:
St. Johns WWTP Quote Number: 222454
950 N Old US 27 Quote Date: Nov 18, 2024
St. Johns, Ml 48879
Page: 1
Customer ID Good Thru Payment Terms Sales Rep
ST. JOHNS WWTP 12/18/24 Net 30 Days Hidrostal
Quantity Item Description Unit Price Amount
Sludge Transfer Pump to Replace Existing 27,620.00

Wemco 4x4 Model C Pump
Pump Condition: 400 gpm at 45 feet TDH

One (1) Hidrostal Screw Centrifugal Pump,
Model D3K-S with 30 HP TEFC NEMA
Premium Efficient Motor on Horizontal Steel
Base.

Hi-Chrome Impeller and Suction Liner
Automatic Greaser for Pump Bearings
V-Belts and Sheaves with Belt Guard
Factory Pump Performance Testing

Pump 4" suction flange

Pump 4" discharge flange with 3" x 4" fitting

Freight included
Start-up services included
Lead time 12 weeks

Subtotal 27,620.00
Sales Tax
Quote Accepted By: TOTAL 27,620.00




DETROIT
p pUMp Proposal #C101024WWMR1

PROJECT NAME: St. Johns Wemco Pump Replacement
LOCATION: St.Johns WWTP, Michigan

DATE: 11/1/24

St. Johns WWTP
950 N. Oid US 27
St. Johns, MI. 48879

ATTN: Patrick Andrews & Jordan Whitford

Detroit Pump is pleased to offer for your consideration the following Wemco Solids Handling Mounted

Dry Pit Pump with the outlined, For the above reference subject matter.

Pump:
e Wemco 4 x4 Model C
e CW Rotation with Packing.
e Ni-Hard (650 Brinell) Pump Casing.
e Ni-Hard Impeller.
e Steel Shaft, 416 SST Shaft Sleeve.
e Epoxy 2 Coat Paint Finish (Blue)
e Baldor Motor 30HP, 460/3/60, 1760RPM, 286T TEFC

e A36Bentform Baseplate, 20”x47”, 3/8” Thick, 4” Grout Hole, 3” Flange with (4) Anchor Holes,
Motor Slide Base 286T Frame, Epoxy Coating of Base Plate, Assembly of Pump/Motor

Price of the above Package...............533,990.00

*** Terms and Conditions ***

Delivery: Approval Drawings/Data 4 Weeks
Equipment 28 Weeks After Return of Approved Submittal
Terms of Payment: Pro Rata 100% 30 Day from the date of shipment to the job site
FOB: Shipping Point
Freight: Included
Taxes: Not Included
Warranty: 12 months after start-up not to exceed 24 Months from shipment
Start-Up: 1 Eight-hour day of supervisory start-up and training.
Miscellaneous: This proposal does not include installation anchor bolts P, wiring, field painting,

tanks, or other items not specifically outlined above. Owner to reuse belts, shives,

and belt guard.

Orders are subject to review and acceptance by Detroit Pump

Should you have any additional questions or concerns, feel free to contact me at 248-701-3873.

Regards,

Sue Cariter

Sue Carter

Detroit Pump DetroitPump.com
23751 Amber Ave. Pump.Sales@DetroitPump.com

Warren, M| 48089 (248) 544-4242

Engineering Department
Raymond Lim
December 3, 2024
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Mechanical * Sheet Metal » HVAC » Fire Protection ¢+ Service
P.O. Box 82100 * 2509 29th St SW » Wyoming, MI 49519
Ph (616) 538-3231 « Fax (616) 538-2797
www.franklinholwerda.com

TO: St. Johns WWTP

10120ld U.S. 27
St. Johns, MI 48879

Attn: Patrick Andrews

PROPOSAL & AGREEMENT

This Date: 11/20/2024 , we hereby propose
to furnish Labor and/or Material to complete the work
outlined herein for the sum of:

Fifteen Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty Five dollars

Michigan Sales & Use Tax:

T ax Included

Terms: Net 30
PRICES QUOTED ARE SUBJECT TO REVIEW
AFTER 30 DAYS FROM THE ABOVE DATE

Sludge Pum
Project: g P

Franklin Holwerda Company has reviewed the requirements of the work desired.

We will provide the necessary labor, material and equipment to do the following:
Replace pump with exact pump. 3 3,825.00
Replace pump with different dimensions requiring piping modifications. $ 12,000.00
No electrical or painting included with either installation.

Thank you for the opportunity to quote the above project. If you have any

questions, please feel free to call (616) 538-3231.

Sincerely,

Douglas Holt

CONTRACTOR'S GUARANTEE ACCEPTANCE OF BID

We guarantee all material used in this contract to be as specified
above and the entire job to be done in a neat, workmanlike
manner. Any variations from plan or alterations requiring extra
labor or material will be performed only upon written order and
billed in addition to the sum covered by this contract. Agreements
made with our workmen are not rec?gzed

The above specifications, terms and contract are satisfactory, and (1) (we)
hereby authorize the performance of this work.

Date:

Signed:

Date: _11/20/2028; FHC: L&w 7/\(%/

0:\Doug\Doug 2024\AAA - Master 2

THIS CONTRACT IS VOID 30 DAYS FROM DATE UNLESS GREEN COPY IS SIGNED AND RETURNED TO BIDDER.

CUSTOMER COPY



CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN
REQUEST FOR COMMISSION ACTION

December 9, 2024
Department: Public Works Attachments: Andy Vandervest | Submitted to
Merit Bonus CA for
Review
Subject: Andy Vandervest Merit Bonus | / X/ [ ]
[ ]
[ ]
Prepared by: Jeremy Ritter Approved by: Chad A. Gamble, P.E.,
Supervisor of Department of Public City Manager
Works

SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHT: Andy previously worked in the Water Department and has
previous Drinking Water Certification through the State of Michigan. He wanted to continue
with this exam to further his education with the D-3 Water Certification. Andy took the test at
the beginning of November and was able to pass to become a Certified Drinking Water Operator
for the State of Michigan with the D-3 lisence.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: The Merit Bonus practice is for employees who better
themselves to be a better asset to the city. Andy did this by passing his State of Michigan Certified
Water Operator License of a D-3 certification.

STRATEGIC PLAN OBJECTIVE: N/A

FISCAL IMPACT: Funds are available in the Department of Public Works operating Budget for
the Bonus.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the $900 Merit Bonus to Andy Vandervest in recognition
of his successful completion of his D-3 Certified Drinking Water operator.



Merit Bonus Appraisal Form

Employee Name: Andy Vandervest Title: Operator 11
Department: Public Works I%Ir:;rrr)llt?ey:e I n grz?tgfoymem I 0 I 8 I / l 0 I 2 I / | 2 I 0 l 2|1

Instructions: A merit bonus is given to an employee, on a year-to-year basis, who does an exceptional job throughout the year. If a
Department Head/Supervisor wishes to recommend an employee with a merit bonus, this form must be filled out and given to the City
Manager. Employee may take merit bonus in a separate check electronically deposited or have it deposited in his or her City deferred
comp program or any other City approved program. If approved, the merit bonus will be payable the first pay period in July.

COMMENTS:
1. Did employee's performance appraisal rate a good or
above on all applicable areas?
No
COMMENTS:

2. Has employee passed the 90-day orientation period?

@

3. At least two of the following must have taken place this past year, please check all that applied and comment below:
Superior effort in his or her daily duties.
Takes on additional duties in a positive manner.
Specific job related accomplishments (training, licenses, certifications, etc.).
Cost/time saving practices.
[J Completed a special project in a fiscal year.
[J Has made comments or ideas on ways to be more efficient in current City programs or policies.

COMMENTS:
Andy was able to pass his D-3 Drinking Water Certification for the State of Michigan.

Use Page 2 for Additional Comments



Additional Comments:

Dept Head/Supervisor Signature: ,//a,” %’

Date:

S

City Manager's Signature:

Date:

City Personnel Committee / /
Approved On:

“

City Commission

Approved On:




CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN
REQUEST FOR COMMISSION ACTION

DECMEBER 9, 2024

Department: Parks and Recreation Attachments: Submitted to
CA for
Review

Subject: Fantasy Forest Lighting and [ X ] Lighting and Camera [ N/A]

Camera Sole Source Vendor Proposal

Prepared by: Bill Schafer, Approved by: Chad A. Gamble, P.E.,

Parks and Recreation Director City Manager

SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHT: The Fantasy Forest 2.0 Core Team (FFCT) has spent the last 10
months gathering community input, developing a master plan, and fundraising. Community input
was collected through a public open house and an online survey. Based on this feedback, the team
collaborated with Great Lakes Recreation and Wade Trim Engineers to create a master plan that
preserves the spirit of the current playscape while prioritizing universal accessibility and durable

materials designed to last a generation. This plan was approved by the Commission on April 22,
2024.

An essential element of the master plan includes protective measures such as a lighting and camera
installation plan. ESM, a trusted vendor for camera systems throughout the city, has been proposed
as the sole source provider for these installations. This decision is based on ESM’s excellent
customer service, proven track record, and seamless integration with the city’s existing systems.
The lighting and camera systems are critical to safeguarding this $2.4 million investment.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: Since its opening in the fall of 2000, Fantasy Forest has been
a key attraction in the City Park. However, as a wooden structure, the playground has been
deteriorating over the past 23 years, with increasing maintenance and repair needs. Each year,
these repairs have become more extensive and costly. The new playground is designed to provide
the community and region with a “destination” for families and children to enjoy.

Over the years, Fantasy Forest has experienced significant vandalism, including repeated graffiti
and two fires requiring fire department intervention. One fire caused extensive damage,
necessitating the rebuilding of the front entrance and replacement of a partially melted slide. At
the time, the lack of cameras near Fantasy Forest prevented the identification of those responsible.
Proper lighting and camera coverage are now considered essential to protecting this investment.

Currently, the city employs ESM cameras and equipment in the Main City Park, Depot Area, and
downtown. These cameras have proven effective in identifying individuals involved in vandalism.
Expanding this system to include Fantasy Forest will enhance security and deter criminal activity.



STRATEGIC PLAN OBJECTIVE: A primary objective within the city’s strategic plan for law
enforcement and security is to implement proactive measures that aid in crime detection and
prevention. By protecting city resources, the plan ensures maximum community benefit. Existing
cameras have already demonstrated their effectiveness in identifying vandals. Adding cameras to
Fantasy Forest, monitored by the recreation and police departments, aligns with this objective and
is expected to yield similar positive results.

FISCAL IMPACT: To date, funding for Phase I of Fantasy Forest 2.0 totals approximately $1.6
million. This funding has been sourced from the City of St. Johns, the St. Johns Area Community
Fund, multiple grants, and ongoing community fundraising efforts. The City has committed
$275,000 to the project, with the remaining funds to be secured through additional grants and
fundraising initiatives. The price of the proposed camera and lighting systems will be incorporated
with the phase 1 costs of Fantasy Forest 2.0 budget.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Commission approve ESM as the
designated sole source vendor for lighting and camera equipment for the Fantasy Forest 2.0 Project
and all other City Park camera and lighting needs.

It is further recommended that the proposed contract with ESM’s for the installation of the camera
and lighting system, as shown in their proposal, be awardee for the amount of $136,000.



ESM Estimate
PO Box 237

Fowler, MI 48835 Date Estimate #
' 11/28/2024 40054

Name / Address

City of St Johns
100 E State St
St Johns, MI 48879

Project

Description Qty Cost Total

Run a trench around new play area in park, to all new ground box 1 136,600.00 136,600.00
locations and all pole locations, Install 3 - 2" conduits in trench, ;

pull electrical to 14 ground boxes and 12 pole locations in 1
conduit, pull low voltage to all security camera locations in another
conduit (1 conduit to be left empty for future expansion). Pour
concrete pole bases and set 12' poles in 12 different locations.
Install double bull on top of each pole with 2 - H.O. LED motion
controlled area lights on each pole. Mount 18 new cameras and tie
back into existing system located in maintenance building. Total
cost includes all labor and material to complete above scope of
work per MI Code

Run low voltage from restroom to pavilion. Trench under sidewalk, 1 6,260.00 6,260.00
mount 2 cameras under pavilion, mount 1 camera overlooking
veterans memorial, mount another camera overlooking band shell
area. Total cost includes all labor and material to complete above
scope of work per MI Code

Total $142,860.00 ‘

Page 1
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3 2425 E. Grand River Ave.,
; Maner Suite 1, Lansing, MI 48912
{ @ 517.323.7500
-
Costerisan E e

December 2, 2024

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Commission
City of St. Johns, Michigan

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of City of St. Johns, Michigan (the City), for the year ended June 30, 2024. Professional standards
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated August 15, 2024.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended June 30,
2024. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those
expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible receivable balances is based on past experience
and future expectation for collection of various account balances.

Management's calculation of depreciation/amortization expense for the current period is based on an
estimate of the useful lives of the capital assets.

Management’s calculation of the net pension liability and related deferrals are calculated based on
actuarial studies which utilized certain actuarial assumptions.

Management's calculation of the current and noncurrent compensated absence liability is based on an
estimate of employees’ use of compensated absences.



We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these accounting estimates in determining that
they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. We did not identify any sensitive disclosures.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result
of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to
each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated December 2, 2024.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of
an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to
check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no
such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
retention.



Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison
information, and pension schedules, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplement the
basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
RSI.

We were engaged to report on the other supplementary information, which accompanies the financial
statements but is not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary
information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on introductory and statistical sections, which accompany the financial
statements but are not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on them.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Commission and management of the City of St. Johns
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

I ane; Coslociran. Pc


tsterrett
Signature


ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE
FINANCIAL REPORT

CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN

PREPARED BY
KRISTINA KINDE, CITY TREASURER

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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December 2, 2024
To the Mayor, Members of the City Commission, and Citizens of the City of St. Johns:

We are pleased to present the City of St. Johns' Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2024, along with the Independent Auditor’s Report, in compliance with Michigan state law. State law
mandates that local governments publish a complete set of financial statements within six months of the fiscal year-
end, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited by a licensed certified public
accounting firm following generally accepted auditing standards. This ACFR complies with these state law
requirements.

The City’s management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and accuracy of the information in this
report, which is supported by robust internal controls established for this purpose. Given that the cost of internal
controls should not exceed their anticipated benefits, the goal is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatements.

Maner Costerisan, the City’s independent auditor, issued an unmodified, “clean” opinion on the City’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. The independent auditor’s report appears at the beginning of
the financial section. Following this report is the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), which provides a
narrative overview, introduction, and analysis of the financial statements. The MD&A is complementary to this
transmittal letter and should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the Government

St. Johns is a home rule city operating under the Commission-Manager form of government. The City Commission
consists of the Mayor and four members who enact local laws, set policies, and approve the annual budget. The City
Manager, appointed by the Commission, is responsible for the City’s daily operations.

The City Commission adopts a final budget before each fiscal year begins on July 1. The annual budget serves as the
foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. For the General Fund, budgets are adopted at the department
level, while for all other Governmental Funds, they are adopted at the fund level, in alighment with Michigan's Public
Act 621.

The City provides a full range of municipal services, including police and fire protection, waste and recycling collection,
water supply, sewage treatment, storm sewer maintenance, road infrastructure, economic development, park
management, recreational programs, other community facilities, and administrative services. Internal services include
motor pool operations and financial management.
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The City’s three component units: the Downtown Development Authority (DDA), Local Development Finance
Authority (LDFA), and Principal Shopping District (PSD) are reported separately in the government-wide financial
statements to emphasize their legal separation from the primary government. The DDA and PSD foster business
development and coordinate holiday events and other celebrations downtown, while the LDFA supports business
growth in the City’s industrial area.

St. Johns, Michigan, located 18 miles north of downtown Lansing, is a historic community founded in 1856. Covering
about 4.02 square miles, with a population of around 8,000 and roughly 44 miles of streets, the City is known as the
Mint City for its unique agricultural heritage. St. Johns combines small-town charm with easy access to Lansing and
serves as the county seat for Clinton County. For more information, visit cityofstjohnsmi.com.

Financial Condition

The General Fund is the primary operating fund for the City. Over recent years, the General Fund’s balance has
remained steady with minimal change in the total fund balance. (see the Statistical Section of the financial
statements).

Local Economy

The City hosts a diverse range of businesses, including retail, commercial, and manufacturing sectors, and is located
near the Lansing-East Lansing Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), which includes Clinton, Ingham, and Eaton
counties. The current unemployment rate for this area is 3.8%. The City’s residential and manufacturing sectors are
growing, with approximately 24 residential units completed in the Central Business District over the past year and an
expected 45 more in the coming year. Economic growth continues with the planned investment of $25 million
towards the redevelopment of the former Federal Mogul building into the Prevail Solar manufacturing facility. The
industrial park is also experiencing a heightened level of activity, with potential resale and reactivation of the old
Save-A-Lot facility and the City’s remaining property holdings. If these initiatives proceed as hoped, around 350 new
jobs are anticipated, strengthening the City’s economic outlook.

Tax Abatements

Tax abatements and credits remain vital tools in the City’s economic development strategy. Credits, such as
brownfield and Public Act 198 incentives, encourage initial investments that ultimately enhance the community and
revitalize properties. Although temporary, these tax credits contribute to increased property values, higher DDA
funding, and broader economic benefits like local services and retail activity. These outcomes bolster the City’s
resilience and community strength.

Long-term Financial Planning

The City’s Charter provides a 10-mill cap. Under the Headlee Amendment, local governments must apply a Headlee
rollback factor annually, resulting in a cumulative factor that reduces the authorized millage rate. On November 8,
2024, voters were asked to approve an additional 0.2182 mills to restore the City’s millage rate to its cap of 10 mills.
The proposal did not pass and thus the revenues the City receives will continue at the 9.7818 mill rate until further
reduced by Headlee and Proposal A.
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Financial Policies

In August 2016, the City Commission adopted a Fund Balance Policy, based on recommendations from the
Government Financial Officers Association. This policy aims for an unassigned fund balance between 15% and 20%
of annual expenditures, ensuring reserves for unexpected costs. Currently, the City’s General Fund Balance stands at
$3,207,862, representing around 58% of expenditures.

Major Initiatives

The City successfully completed another year of street improvements with increased funding via a dedicated street
millage. Voters initially approved a 4-mill, 4-year program in 2014, followed by a 3-mill, 5-year program in 2017, and
a 3-mill, 6-year program in 2022. The improvements can be seen across the City, contributing to economic
development and enhancing parking downtown. There is no better example than “infrastretching” millage dollars
into increased economic opportunity than the recently completed Brush Street reconstruction project. In addition
to new sections of sidewalk, curbs and gutters, and a roadway, this project added 24 parking spaces to the Central
Business District.

The City continues to develop its geographic information system (GIS) for infrastructure management, adding new
features and datasets annually. This year, sidewalk location and condition, potable water service line data material,
and sanitary sewer lining layers were all added. GIS data aids budget decisions and long-term capital planning.

The Wilson Community Center project was approved in 2023, establishing a public-private partnership (P3) with
Dymaxion Development Company. This partnership will transform the former Rodney B. Wilson High School property
into a: community center, retaining gym and auditorium spaces, adding a community room, and approximately 45
apartments. The project was briefly paused to allow time for the application of Federal Historic Tax Credits. These
funds when received by Dymaxion will preserve the building’s character and adding funding for a high-quality final
product. Construction is expected to begin in Spring 2025, with the City’s unit completed by the first quarter of 2026.

A generational project continued towards its targeted construction in the Spring of 2025. The current Fantasy Forest
playscape equipment is over 20 years old and has reached its lifespan. The extreme makeover of Fantasy Forest in
the St. Johns City Park will establish one of the most significant universally accessible playscape in the state of
Michigan. The Fantasy Forest 2.0 project was guided by the Fantasy Forest Core Team (FFCT), representing a broad
range of community skill sets. The FFCT, in conjunction with and approval by the City Commission, developed a $2.4
million master-planned renovation. With support from the St. Johns Area Community Fund, a DNR SPARK grant,
community crowd funding, and other grants, the community raised over $1.7 million to date towards its master plan
goal. Construction of Fantasy Forest 2.0 will begin in the Spring of 2025.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded the City of St. Johns the Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2023. The City has received this award annually since 2000. To qualify, a governmental unit must publish an
accessible, well-organized Annual Comprehensive Financial Report that meets program standards, including GAAP
and legal requirements. The Certificate of Achievement is valid for one year. We believe this year’s report meets the
requirements and are submitting it to the GFOA for consideration.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Commission
City of St. Johns, Michigan

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of City of St. Johns, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise City of St. Johns’ basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of St. Johns, as of June
30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of City of St. Johns and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about City of St. Johns’ ability to continue as a going
concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that
may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of City of St. Johns’ internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

» Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about City of St. Johns’ ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and pension schedules, as identified in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise City of St. Johns’ basic financial statements. The accompanying other supplementary information, as
identified in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, other supplementary information, as
identified in the table of contents, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and
we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial
statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are
required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 2, 2024, on
our consideration of City of St. Johns’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of City of St. Johns’
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of St. Johns’ internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

W ane; Costociran Pc

December 2, 2024
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a discussion and analysis of the City’s financial performance and position, providing an overview
of the activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. This analysis should be read in conjunction with the
Independent Auditors Report, our letter of transmittal, and with the City’s financial statements. This discussion
provides comparisons with the previous fiscal year as required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Please note some of the financial highlights as of and for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.

Total net position $ 24,337,073
Change in net position 2,876,020
Total fund balance in the governmental funds 6,758,323
Change in fund balance in the governmental funds 3,114,948
Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund 1,624,795
Change in fund balance in the General Fund 522,157
Total investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 29,793,103
Net change in capital assets 386,585
Total long-term debt outstanding 13,177,969
Payments on long-term debt (1,046,796)

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The annual financial report of the City consists of the following components: 1) Independent Auditors Report;
2) Management’s Discussion and Analysis and 3) the Basic Financial Statements (government-wide financial
statements, fund financial statements, notes to the financial statements), Required Supplementary Information
such as budget to actual comparisons for the General Fund and major Special Revenue Funds, and Other
Supplementary Information including combining financial statements for all nonmajor governmental funds,
budget to actual comparisons for all nonmajor governmental funds, and combining financial statements for all
fiduciary funds, and budget to actual comparisons for all nonmajor governmental funds.

Government-wide Financial Statements (Reporting the City of St. Johns as a Whole)

The set of government-wide financial statements are made up of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities, which report information about the City as a whole, and about its activities. Their purpose is to
assist in answering the question, is the City, in its entirety, better or worse off as a result of this fiscal year's
activities? These statements, which include all non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, are reported on the accrual
basis of accounting, similar to a private business. This means revenues are accounted for when they are earned
and expenses are accounted for when incurred, regardless of when the actual cash is received or disbursed.

The Statement of Net Position presents all of the City’s assets and deferred outflows, less liabilities and deferred

inflows, the difference of which is known as “net position”. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
measure whether the City’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City of St. Johns’ net position changed during
the current fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported based on the period for which the underlying
events giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Therefore, revenues and
expenses are reported in these statements for some items that will only result in cash flows in future financial
periods, such as uncollected taxes and earned but unused employee annual leave.

Both statements report the following activities:

» Governmental Activities - Most of the City of St. Johns’ basic services are reported under this category.
Taxes, charges for services, and intergovernmental revenue primarily fund these services. Most of the
City’s government departments such as public safety, the City Commission, public works, and recreation
and library programs are reported under these activities. This also includes the activities such as the
Major and Local Street maintenance, and Drug Enforcement.

» Business-type Activities - These activities operate like private businesses. The City charges fees to
recover the cost of the services provided. The City’s Water and Sewer Fund is an example of such
activities.

» Discretely Presented Component Units - The Discretely Presented Component Units are legally
separate organizations for which the City Commission appoints the authority’s board and there is a
degree of financial accountability to the City.

As stated previously, the government-wide statements report on an accrual basis of accounting. However, the
governmental funds report on a modified accrual basis. Under modified accrual accounting, revenues are
recognized when they are measurable and available to pay obligations of the fiscal period; expenditures are
recognized when they are due to be paid from available resources.

Because of the different basis of accounting between the fund statements (described below) and the
government-wide statements, reconciliations between the two statement types are provided in the financial
statements. The following summarizes the most common impacts of transitioning from modified accrual to full
accrual accounting:

» Capital assets used in governmental activities (depreciation/amortization) are not reported on the fund
financial statements of the governmental funds; however, depreciation/amortization expense is
reported on the government-wide statements.

» Capital outlay spending results in capital assets on the government-wide statement but is reported as
expenditures on the fund financial statements of the governmental funds.

» Long-term liabilities, such as reserves for sick and annual leave (compensated absences), etc. appear as
liabilities on the government-wide statements; however, they will not appear on the fund financial
statements unless current resources are used to pay a specific obligation.

» Bond proceeds are reported as liabilities on the government-wide statements but are recorded as other
financing sources on the fund financial statements.

In addition, it should be noted that the government-wide financial statements include the net value of the City’s

general capital assets such as land, buildings, equipment, infrastructure, etc. These values are not included in
the fund financial statements.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fund Financial Statements (Reporting the City’s Major Funds)

The fund financial statements provide information on the City’s major (significant) funds, and aggregated
nonmajor funds. Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the Fund Financial Statements
presentation more familiar.

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that the City uses to keep track of
specific sources of funding and spending for a particular purpose. State law or policy requires some separate
funds, such as funds required by grant agreements. Funds are also utilized to track specific operations; these
include the enterprise funds, which includes the Water and Sewer Fund.

The basic financial statements report major funds as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) in separate columns. Statement 34 defines a “major fund” as the General Fund, and any governmental
or enterprise fund which has either total assets, total liabilities, total revenues or total expenditures/expenses
that equal at least ten (10) percent of those categories for either the governmental funds or the enterprise funds
and where the individual fund total also exceeds five (5) percent of those categories for governmental and
enterprise funds combined. The major funds for City include the General Fund, Major Street Fund, Street Millage
I Capital Projects Fund, and the Water and Sewer Fund. All other funds are classified as nonmajor funds and
are reported in aggregate by the applicable fund type. The City includes detailed information on its nonmajor
funds in other supplementary sections of this report.

The City of St. Johns funds are divided into four categories - governmental, proprietary, component unit, and
fiduciary - and use different accounting approaches:

» Governmental Funds - Most of the City’s basic services are reported in the governmental funds. The
focus of these funds is how cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash flow in
and out during the course of the fiscal year and how the balances left at year-end are available for
spending on future services. Consequently, the governmental fund financial statements provide a
detailed short-term view that helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that
may be expended in the near future to finance the City’s programs. Governmental funds include the
General Fund, as well as Special Revenue Funds (where use of fund balance is restricted), Debt Service
Funds (used to report debt tax millage collections and payment of long-term debt), and Capital Projects
Funds (used to report major capital acquisitions and construction).

» Proprietary Funds - Services, for which the City charges customers a fee, are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds use the same accrual basis of accounting used in the government-
wide statements and by private business. The City has two types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds
reportactivities that provide supplies and/or services to the general public, such as the Water and Sewer
Fund. Internal service funds report activity associated with goods and services provided to other funds
and departments of the City on a cost reimbursement basis, such as the Mobile Equipment Fund.

» Fiduciary Funds - The City acts as a trustee or fiduciary in certain instances. The City’s fiduciary
activities are reported in separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Position. These funds are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. The government-
wide statements exclude the fiduciary fund activities and balances because these assets are not available
to the City to fund its operations.

» Discretely Presented Component Units - The Discretely Presented Component Units are legally
separate organizations for which the City Commission appoints the authority’s board and there is a
degree of financial accountability to the City. The Downtown Development Authority, Principal
Shopping District, and Local Development Finance Authority are examples of such activities.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN
MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the detail provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

Following the Basic Financial Statements is additional Required Supplementary Information (RSI), which further
explains and supports the information in the financial statements. RSI includes budgetary comparison schedules
for the General Fund and the major special revenue funds. It also includes required schedules for both of the
City’s defined benefit pension plan.

Other Supplementary Information

Other Supplementary Information includes combining financial statements for nonmajor governmental funds.
These funds, except for the fiduciary funds, are added together, by fund type, and are presented in aggregate
single columns in the appropriate basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY OF ST. JOHNS AS A WHOLE

The following table shows, in a condensed format, a comparative analysis of the net position as of June 30, 2024,
and 2023.

Net Position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
ASSETS
Current and other assets $ 7,684,259 $ 5,288,738 $ 6435631 $ 5,734,564 $ 14,119,890 $ 11,023,302
Capital assets 15,287,744 14,349,215 14,505,359 15,057,303 29,793,103 29,406,518
TOTAL ASSETS 22,972,003 19,637,953 20,940,990 20,791,867 43,912,993 40,429,820
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 828,086 1,086,215 573,645 792,384 1,401,731 1,878,599
LIBAIBLITIES
Current 705,525 1,604,413 1,020,266 1,346,295 1,725,791 2,950,708
Noncurrent 8,621,829 6,002,221 10,630,031 11,894,437 19,251,860 17,896,658
TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,327,354 7,606,634 11,650,297 13,240,732 20,977,651 20,847,366
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - - - - - -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 13,169,326 13,065,689 5,681,122 5,515,516 18,850,448 18,581,205
Restricted 3,550,461 957,002 1,217,374 1,196,056 4,767,835 2,153,058
Unrestricted (2,247,052) (905,157) 2,965,842 1,631,947 718,790 726,790
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 14,472,735 $ 13,117,534 $ 9,864,338 $ 8,343,519 $ 24,337,073 $ 21,461,053

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The City’s assets and
deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $24,337,073 as of June
30, 2024. A portion of the City’s net position, $718,790, reflects its balance of unrestricted net position.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City’s net position invested in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment), less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that are still outstanding was $18,850,448 at June 30, 2024. The City uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although
the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed
to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net position, $4,767,835 represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used.

Overall net position increased by $2,876,020 during the current year as indicated below.
Changes in Net Position for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

The condensed financial information on the following page was derived from the government-wide Statement
of Activities and reflects how the City’s net position changed between fiscal years 2024 and 2023:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
REVENUES
Program revenue
Charges for services $ 1,880,514 $ 1,887,062 $ 6,008,657 $ 5,856,833 $ 7,889,171 $ 7,743,895
Operating grants and
contributions 2,306,089 1,335,241 - - 2,306,089 1,335,241
Capital grants and
contributions 195,824 - - - 195,824 -
General revenues
Property taxes 3,502,246 3,485,501 - - 3,502,246 3,485,501
State shared revenue 968,946 946,648 - - 968,946 946,648
Investment earnings 23,597 6,094 33,774 18,411 57,371 24,505
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 35,094 (21,138) - - 35,094 (21,138)
Miscellaneous 136,654 98,194 74,114 85,421 210,768 183,615
Transfers 27,043 26,923 (27,043) (26,923) - -
TOTAL REVENUES 9,076,007 7,764,525 6,089,502 5,933,742 15,165,509 13,698,267
EXPENSES
General government 1,868,990 1,996,375 - - 1,868,990 1,996,375
Public safety 2,156,969 2,073,002 - - 2,156,969 2,073,002
Public works 2,477,106 2,392,896 - - 2,477,106 2,392,896
Health and welfare 92,376 140,382 - - 92,376 140,382
Recreation and culture 1,093,200 397,141 - - 1,093,200 397,141
Water and sewer - - 4,568,683 4,981,796 4,568,683 4,981,796
Interest on long-term debt 32,165 11,303 - - 32,165 11,303
TOTAL EXPENSES 7,720,806 7,011,099 4,568,683 4,981,796 12,289,489 11,992,895
Change in net position 1,355,201 753,426 1,520,819 951,946 2,876,020 1,705,372
Net position, beginning of the year 13,117,534 12,364,108 8,343,519 7,391,573 21,461,053 19,755,681
Net position, end of the year $ 14,472,735 $ 13,117,534 $ 9,864,338 $ 8,343,519 $ 24,337,073 $ 21,461,053
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Governmental Activities

Fiscal year 2024 results showed an increase in net position of $1,355,201 to $14,472,735. This is an increase of
approximately 10% from the prior fiscal year. The largest revenue source was property taxes which consists of
approximately 40% of the total revenues. The largest expenses are related to public works and public safety
which make up approximately 32% and 28%, respectively, of the total expenses. Key elements of the increase
in net position are as follows:

» Operating grants and contributions increased approximately $970,000, due to an ARPA grant utilized in
the current year.

» Capital grants increased approximately $195,000, due to a new trail grant.

» General government expenses decreased by approximately $127,000 due to Wilson Center capital
purchases now a part of Recreation and culture.

Business-type Activities

Fiscal year 2024 results showed an increase in net position of $1,520,819 to $9,864,338. This is an increase of
approximately 18% from the prior fiscal year. Key elements of the increase in net position are as follows:

» Charges for services increased approximately $152,000, due mainly to increased water and sewer rates
and usage.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY OF ST. JOHNS’ MAJOR AND NONMAJOR FUNDS

As the City completed fiscal year 2024, its governmental funds reported a positive combined fund balance. The
net changes are summarized in the following chart:

Governmental Funds

Nonmajor
Major Governmental
Fund Balance as of: General Street Wilson Center Funds Total
June 30, 2024 $ 3,207,862 | $ 546,838 | $ 2,076,708 | $ 926,915 | $ 6,758,323
June 30,2023 $ 2685705 (% 545,579 | $ -19 412,091 | $ 3,643,375
Change $ 522,157 | $ 1,259 [ $ 2,076,708 | $ 514,824 | $ 3,114,948

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. Unless otherwise required by statue, contractual
agreement, or Commission policy, all City revenues and expenditures are recorded in the General Fund. At the
end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance had increased approximately 19%, due primarily to an
increase in grants.

Major Street Fund
The Major Street Fund accounts for revenues received from the State of Michigan for the City’s share of State

gasoline and weight taxes, which is used for maintenance of major streets. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the total fund balance had increased less than 1% as a result of an increase in Act 51 funding.
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Wilson Center Fund

The Wilson Center Fund accounts for the acquisition of capital assets or construction of the Wilson Center
project not being financed by proprietary funds. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance was
$2,076,708.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City’s budget is a dynamic document. Although adopted in May (prior to the start of the fiscal year), the
budget is amended during the course of the fiscal year to reflect changing operational demands.

Actual General Fund revenues and other financing sources totaled $6,309,422, or $166,882 (3%) less than the
final amended budget which was increased from the original budget by $619,030. General Fund actual
expenditures and other financing uses came in at $5,787,265 and the final amended budget was $6,457,437,
which was approximately 10% more than actual. The final amended budget was 7% higher than the originally
adopted budget after new information became available requiring the amendments. The significant variances
related to the General Fund’s budget are noted below.

Variance Variance
Final between between
Original Amended Original and Final Budget
Budget Budget Final Budgets Actual and Actual
Revenue and Other Financing Sources
Taxes $ 2,640,452 $ 2,642,352 $ 1,900 $ 2,624,255 $ (18,097)
Intergovernmental 1,905,426 2,161,586 256,160 2,048,106 (113,480)
Sale of capital assets 30,000 30,000 - - (30,000)
Expenditures
Public safety
Police department 1,782,882 1,820,073 37,191 1,767,700 52,373
Public works
Department of public works 457,597 587,736 130,139 499,179 88,557
Recreation and culture
City parks 167,577 169,077 1,500 124,002 45,075
Capital outlay 1,315,500 1,038,736 (276,764) 622,262 416,474

» Actual tax revenue was lower than the final budgeted amount due to board of review adjustments and
TIF captures.

» Budgeted intergovernmental revenues were amended during the year when the City decided to spend
the remainder of the ARPA funding. Actual intergovernmental revenue was lower than the final
budgeted amount because the City did not receive a grant that was applied for improvements to the
basketball, tennis and pickleball courts.

> Budgeted sale of capital assets was lower than budget as the proceeds for the fire truck occurred in the
mobile equipment internal service fund instead of the general fund.

» Amounts budgeted for police department expenditures were amended during the year when a grant was

received for body worn cameras was received. Actual police expenditures were lower than the final
budgeted amount due to defined benefit costs being less than budgeted.
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» Amounts budgeted for public works expenditures were amended during the year when time worked by
public works employees was higher than budgeted and parking lot improvements increased. Actual
public works expenditures were lower than the final budgeted amount due to actual wages coming in
lower than estimated.

» Budgeted expenditures for City parks were amended during the year when internet services were
upgraded at the depot. Actual city park expenditures were lower than the final budgeted amount due
to better time management with park maintenance.

» Budgeted expenditures for capital outlay were amended during the year when a grant for improvements
to the basketball, tennis, and pickleball courts was notreceived. Actual capital outlay expenditures were
lower than budgeted amount due to Higham/Brush parking lot not being completed.

Water and Sewer Fund

The City’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail. The Water and Sewer Fund, the City’s sole enterprise fund, accounts for the
operations and maintenance required to provide water and sewer services to the general public with the costs

(expenses, including depreciation) being financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Enterprise Funds

Water
Net Position as of: and Sewer
June 30, 2024 $ 9,864,338
June 30, 2023 $ 8,343,519
Change $ 1,520,819

At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance had increased approximately 18% as a result of
increased water charges due to usage and rates.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets - As of June 30, 2024, the City’s investment in capital assets includes land, land improvements,
buildings and improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment, drainage flowage rights, infrastructure, water
and sewer systems, and construction in progress. (These capital assets do not include those of the discretely
presented component units). Refer to Note 5 of the notes to the financial statements for more detailed
information related to capital assets.
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The summary of capital assets below shows the net capital assets for both governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2024:

June 30, 2023 Change June 30, 2024
Governmental Activities
Land $ 1,301,113 $ - $ 1,301,113
Construction in progress 310,046 614,300 924,346
Land improvements, net 520,450 242,545 762,995
Buildings and improvements, net 1,703,658 (94,601) 1,609,057
Vehicles, net 1,778,805 (230,347) 1,548,458
Furniture, net 141,047 89,073 230,120
Equipment - right to use, net - 130,302 130,302
Drainage flowage rights, net 362,690 3,771 366,461
Infrastructure, net 8,231,406 183,486 8,414,892
Total governmental activities 14,349,215 938,529 15,287,744
Business-type Activities

Land 169,161 - 169,161
Construction in progress 47,540 (29,347) 18,193
Water system, net 3,167,640 116,404 3,284,044
Sewer system, net 11,037,445 (671,051) 10,366,394
Equipment, net 635,517 32,050 667,567
Total business-type activities 15,057,303 (551,944) 14,505,359
Capital assets, net $ 29,406,518 $ 386,585 $ 29,793,103

The net increase/(decrease) in the City’s investment in capital assets for the governmental and business-type
activities in the current year was a result of the following:

City Annual Street millage program

Wilson Center purchase and improvements
New volleyball court at city park.

Electrical upgrades in park

Installation of recirculation tank at splash park
Walker Road lane extension

Purchase of new DPW vehicles

Scott Road trail connection

Purchase of two new water trucks
Purchase of new wastewater truck

New high service pump replacement
Engineering design for tertiary filter 1
Influent pump 3 VFD replacement

CIPP Lining of Sanitary Sewer

VVVVVVVVYVYVVVYY
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Long-term Obligations - At the end of the current year, the City’s primary government had one long-term
obligations outstanding aside from compensated absences. Refer to Note 6 to the financial statements for more
detailed information related to long-term debt.

June 30, 2023 Change June 30, 2024

Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds $ 141,000 $ 2,952,899 $ 3,093,899
Direct borrowing and direct placements 1,142,526 (16,299) 1,126,227
Compensated absences 196,797 18,527 215,324
Total governmental activities 1,480,323 2,955,127 4,435,450

Business-type Activities
General obligation bonds 9,415,000 (700,000) 8,715,000
Direct borrowing and direct placements 279,043 (36,200) 242,843
Compensated absences 89,811 1,811 91,622
Total business-type activities 9,783,854 (734,389) 9,049,465
Total long-term obligations $ 11,264,177 $ 2,220,738 $ 13,484,915

Long-term debt for the acquisition of a new capital project bond for the Wilson Center project and the leasing of a
Caterpillar Wheel Loader was obtained during the current fiscal year while all other debt decreased during the
fiscal year as a result of scheduled debt service payments.

Limitations on Debt

State statue limits the City’s debt obligations to 10 percent of the current state equalized value (SEV), net of
certain adjustments. The City’s SEV as of June 30, 2024, net of adjustments, was approximately $358 million;
therefore, the City’s debt limitation was approximately $35 million. The City remains below its legal debt limit
by approximately $31 million. The City’s computation of the legal debt limit is shown in the statistical section of
this report.

CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS, DECISIONS, OR CONDITIONS & EFFECTS
The following factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for the 2025 fiscal year:

Healthcare costs will increase with the rise in premiums being approximately 10%.
Taxable values are increasing resulting in fairly stable property tax revenue.

Cost of employee fringe benefits.

Capital projects in capital improvement plan

Rising costs due to inflation

VVYVYYVYY

CONTACTING THE CITY OF ST. JOHNS
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a

general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If
there are questions about this report, or a need for additional information, contact the City at (989) 224-8944.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2024

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,211,966 $ 2,966,958 $ 8,178,924 $ 884,874
Investments 267,428 277,934 545,362 -
Receivables, net 221,371 1,725,814 1,947,185 -
Due from other governmental units 517,261 - 517,261 26,978
Internal balances (19,608) 19,608 - -
Inventory 15,400 156,566 171,966 -
Prepaids 140,876 825 141,701 -
Total current assets 6,354,694 5,147,705 11,502,399 911,852
Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash - 1,287,926 1,287,926 -
Investments 888,340 - 888,340 -
Equity interest in ambulance service authority 441,225 - 441,225 -
Capital assets not being depreciated /amortized 2,225,459 187,354 2,412,813 -
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation/amortization 13,062,285 14,318,005 27,380,290 -
Total noncurrent assets 16,617,309 15,793,285 32,410,594 -
TOTAL ASSETS 22,972,003 20,940,990 43,912,993 911,852
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on refunding - 133,606 133,606 -
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 828,086 440,039 1,268,125 -
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 828,086 573,645 1,401,731 -
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 237,356 87,043 324,399 1,205
Accrued liabilities 72,801 22,571 95,372 2,084
Deposits payable - 16,930 16,930 -
Due to other governmental units 8,290 - 8,290 -
Accrued interest payable 50,001 70,552 120,553 -
Current portion of compensated absences 163,165 65,820 228,985 -
Current portion of long-term debt 173,912 757,350 931,262 -
Total current liabilities 705,525 1,020,266 1,725,791 3,289
Noncurrent liabilities
Noncurrent portion of compensated absences 52,159 25,802 77,961 -
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt 4,046,214 8,200,493 12,246,707 -
Net pension liability 4,523,456 2,403,736 6,927,192 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 8,621,829 10,630,031 19,251,860 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,327,354 11,650,297 20,977,651 3,289
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 13,169,326 5,681,122 18,850,448 -
Restricted
Streets 753,498 - 753,498 -
Garbage 230,188 - 230,188 -
Drug law enforcement 1,341 - 1,341 -
Debt service - 1,217,374 1,217,374 -
Capital projects 2,565,434 - 2,565,434 -
Unrestricted (2,247,052) 2,965,842 718,790 908,563
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 14,472,735 $ 9,864,338 $ 24,337,073 $ 908,563

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type Component
Functions/Programs Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Units
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government $ 1,868,990 $ 317,740 $ 137,329 $ - $ (1,413921) $ - $ (1,413,921 -
Public safety 2,156,969 120,731 831,442 3,900 (1,200,896) - (1,200,896) -
Public works 2,477,106 1,367,642 1,189,002 191,924 271,462 - 271,462 -
Health and welfare 92,376 - 63,821 - (28,555) - (28,555) -
Recreation and culture 1,093,200 74,401 84,495 - (934,304) - (934,304) -
Interest on long-term debt 32,165 - - (32,165) - (32,165) -
Total governmental activities 7,720,806 1,880,514 2,306,089 195,824 (3,338,379) - (3,338,379) -
Business-type activities
Water and sewer 4,568,683 6,008,657 - - - 1,439,974 1,439,974 -
Total primary government $ 12,289,489 $ 7,889,171 $ 2,306,089 $ 195,824 (3,338,379) 1,439,974 (1,898,405) -
Component units
Downtown development authority $ 46,653 $ - $ 10,000 $ - - - - (36,653)
Principal shopping district 62,397 - 95,497 - - - - 33,100
Local development finance authority 12,852 - - - - - - (12,852)
Total component units $ 121,902 $ - $ 105,497 $ - - - - (16,405)
General revenues
Property taxes 3,502,246 - 3,502,246 310,892
State shared revenue 968,946 - 968,946 -
Investment earnings 23,597 33,774 57,371 2,255
Gain on sale of capital assets 35,094 - 35,094 -
Other 136,654 74,114 210,768 -
Transfers 27,043 (27,043) - -
Total general revenues and transfers 4,693,580 80,845 4,774,425 313,147
Change in net position 1,355,201 1,520,819 2,876,020 296,742
Net position, beginning of the year 13,117,534 8,343,519 21,461,053 611,821
Net position, end of the year $ 14,472,735 $ 9,864,338 $ 24,337,073 908,563

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2024
Special Capital
Revenue Projects
Nonmajor
Major Wilson Governmental
General Street Center Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,602,822 $ 362,095 $ 2,101,708 $ 909,783 $ 5,976,408
Investments 267,428 - - - 267,428
Receivables
Accounts 217,421 - - - 217,421
Special assessments - - - 3,950 3,950
Due from other governmental units 213,739 256,481 - 47,041 517,261
Due from other funds 132,208 10,370 - 50,649 193,227
Prepaid expenditures 140,876 - - - 140,876
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,574,494 $ 628,946 $ 2,101,708 $ 1,011,423 $ 7,316,571
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 117,298 $ 78,843 $ 25,000 $ 11,535 $ 232,676
Accrued liabilities 67,218 947 - 3,026 71,191
Due to other governmental units 8,290 - - - 8,290
Due to other funds 173,826 2,318 - 65,997 242,141
TOTAL LIABILITIES 366,632 82,108 25,000 80,558 554,298
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - - - 3,950 3,950
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 140,876 - - - 140,876
Restricted - 546,838 2,076,708 926,915 3,550,461
Assigned 1,442,191 - - - 1,442,191
Unassigned 1,624,795 - - - 1,624,795
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3,207,862 546,838 2,076,708 926,915 6,758,323
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES $ 3,574,494 $ 628,946 $ 2,101,708 $ 1,011,423 $ 7,316,571

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE
SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2024

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 6,758,323

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported as assets in the governmental funds.

The cost of capital assets is $ 25,764,895
Accumulated depreciation/amortizaton is (11,399,539)
Capital assets, net 14,365,356

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Fund are included in the
governmental activities in the government-wide statement of net position.

Net position of governmental activities accounted
for in the internal service fund 549,303

Long-term receivables are not available to pay for current period expenditures and are
therefore deferred inflows of resources in the funds. 3,950

Equity interest in Clinton Area Ambulance Service Authority is not a current financial
resource and therefore is not reported as an asset in the governmental funds. 441,225

Governmental funds report actual pension expenditures for the fiscal year, whereas the
governmental activities will recognize the net pension liability as of the measurement
date. Pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be deferred in the
statement of net position. In addition, resources related to changes of assumptions,
differences between expected and actual experience, and differences between projected
and actual pension plan investment earnings will be deferred over time in the government-
wide financial statements. These amounts consist of:

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 828,086

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. Long-term liabilities at year-end

consist of:
Capitalized bond premiums (93,899)
Accrued interest payable (39,872)
Compensated absences (215,324)
Long-term debt (3,600,957)
Net pension liability (4,523,456)
(8,473,508)
Net position of governmental activities $ 14,472,735

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Special Capital
Revenue Projects
Nonmajor
Major Wilson Governmental
General Street Center Funds Total
REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,624,255 $ - $ - $ 991,333 3,615,588
Special assessments - - - 2,252 2,252
Licenses and permits 116,937 - - - 116,937
Intergovernmental 2,048,106 1,000,016 - 346,643 3,394,765
Charges for services 1,031,448 - - 575,125 1,606,573
Fines and forfeitures 11,980 - - - 11,980
Investment earnings and rent 40,860 605 1,271 1,479 44,215
Other 155,403 1,155 - 2,996 159,554
TOTAL REVENUES 6,028,989 1,001,776 1,271 1,919,828 8,951,864
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 1,850,043 - - - 1,850,043
Public safety 2,018,908 - - 611 2,019,519
Public works 499,179 815,869 - 1,195,334 2,510,382
Health and welfare 92,376 - - - 92,376
Recreation and culture 310,290 - 648,584 28,147 987,021
Debt service 80,420 - 89,445 143,089 312,954
Capital outlay 622,262 - - - 622,262
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,473,478 815,869 738,029 1,367,181 8,394,557
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 555,511 185,907 (736,758) 552,647 557,307
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of debt - - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Premium related to issuance of debt - - 93,899 - 93,899
Transfers in 280,433 305,142 - 544,348 1,129,923
Transfers out (313,787) (489,790) (280,433) (582,171) (1,666,181)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (33,354) (184,648) 2,813,466 (37,823) 2,557,641
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 522,157 1,259 2,076,708 514,824 3,114,948
Fund balances, beginning of year 2,685,705 545,579 - 412,091 3,643,375
Fund balances, end of year $ 3,207,862 $ 546,838 $ 2,076,708 $ 926,915 $ 6,758,323

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 3,114,948

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives as
depreciation/amortization expense. In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital outlay $ 1,950,458
Depreciation/amortization expense (1,047,428)
Excess of capital outlay over depreciation/amortization expense 903,030

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds.

Change in net position of internal service fund 43,904

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the funds. The change in long-term receivables reported in the funds is: (1,975)

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. These activities consist of:

Change in equity interest in the Clinton Area Ambulance Service Authority 63,821

Certain transactions related to long-term debt are reported as expenditures or other financing
sources/uses in governmental funds, but the borrowings increase long-term liabilities in the
statement of net position. In the current year, these amounts consist of:

Direct borrowings (3,000,000)
Premium on bond issuance (93,899)
Principal retirement 195,907
Excess of direct borrowings over principal retirement (2,897,992)

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. These activities

consist of:
(Increase) in accrued interest payable (13,661)
(Increase) in compensated absences (18,527)
Decrease in net pension liability 419,782
(Decrease) in deferred outflows of resources related to pensions (258,129)
129,465
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 1,355,201

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivables, net
Due from other funds
Inventory
Prepaids

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash
Capital assets not being depreciated/amortized
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation/amortization

Total noncurrent assets
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on refunding
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Due to other funds
Accrued interest payable
Current portion of compensated absences
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Noncurrent portion of compensated absences
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt
Net pension liability

Total noncurrent liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities
Enterprise Internal

Fund Service Fund
Water Mobile
and Sewer Equipment

$ 2,966,958 $ 123,898
277,934 -
1,725,814 -
173,826 30,000
156,566 15,400
825 -
5,301,923 169,298
1,287,926 -
187,354 -
14,318,005 922,388
15,793,285 922,388
21,095,208 1,091,686
133,606 -
440,039 -
573,645 -
87,043 4,680
22,571 1,610
16,930 -
154,218 694
70,552 10,129
65,820 -
757,350 110,609
1,174,484 127,722
25,802 -
8,200,493 414,661
2,403,736 -
10,630,031 414,661
11,804,515 542,383
5,681,122 397,118
1,217,374 -
2,965,842 152,185

$ 9864338 $ 549,303




CITY OF ST. JOHNS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Water plant operation
Water distribution
Wastewater plant operation
Administrative expenses
Mobile equipment operation
Depreciation/amortization expense

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Other revenue
Interest and fees expense
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
TRANSFERS
Transfers in
Transfers out
TOTAL TRANSFERS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities
Enterprise Internal

Fund Service Fund
Water Mobile
and Sewer Equipment

$ 6,008,657 $ 3,111

808,781 -
554,846 -
1,076,977 -
630,147 -
- 382,056
1,209,709 168,309
4,280,460 550,365
1,728,197 (547,254)
33,774 151

- 35,094

74,114 9
(288,223) (7,397)
(180,335) 27,857
1,547,862 (519,397)
- 563,301
(27,043) -
(27,043) 563,301
1,520,819 43,904
8,343,519 505,399
$ 9,864,338 $ 549,303




CITY OF ST. JOHNS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers and users
Cash paid to/for employees
Cash paid to suppliers/vendors

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt (payment) of interfund balances

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital asset acquisitions
Principal paid on long-term debt
Proceeds from sale of assets
Interest and fees paid on long-term debt

NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of investments
Maturity of investments
Interest received
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Classification on the Statement of Net Position

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities
Enterprise Internal
Fund Service Fund
Water Mobile
and Sewer Equipment
$ 5,769,267 $ 3,120
(1,484,279) (95,521)
(2,236,394) (281,678)
2,048,594 (374,079)
(23,402) 630,076
(657,765) (69,962)
(736,200) (114,689)
- 54,545
(294,364) (7,074)
(1,688,329) (137,180)
(277,934) -
435,978 -
33,774 151
191,818 151
528,681 118,968
3,726,203 4,930
$ 4,254,884 $ 123,898
$ 2,966,958 $ 123,898
1,287,926 -
$ 4,254,884 $ 123,898




CITY OF ST. JOHNS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONCLUDED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Cash generated from other revenue
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventory
Prepaids
Deferred outflows of resources
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Compensated absences
Net pension liability

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Business-type Governmental
Activities Activities
Enterprise Internal

Fund Service Fund
Water Mobile
and Sewer Equipment

$ 1,728,197 $ (547,254)

74,114 9
1,209,709 168,309
(313,504) -

(20,542) 7,128

(25) -

218,739 -
(349,974) (2,631)

7,631 360

1,850 -

1,811 -
(509,412) -

$ 2,048,594 $§ (374,079)




CITY OF ST. JOHNS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2024

Custodial
Fund
Current
Tax Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,370
LIABILITIES
Due to other governmental units 7,370
NET POSITION $ -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Custodial
Fund
Current
Tax Fund
ADDITIONS
Collections for other governmental units $ 8,215,039
DEDUCTIONS
Distributions to other governmental units 8,215,039
CHANGE IN NET POSITION -
Net position, beginning of year -
Net position, end of year $ -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other governmental units

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Unrestricted

CITY OF ST. JOHNS
COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2024

Local
Downtown Principal Development
Development Shopping Finance
Authority District Authority Total
$ 89,486 $ 54,746 $ 740,642 $ 884,874
- - 26,978 26,978
89,486 54,746 767,620 911,852
- 1,205 - 1,205
1,042 1,042 - 2,084
1,042 2,247 - 3,289
$ 88,444 $ 52,499 $§ 767,620 $§ 908,563

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Program
Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Local
Operating Downtown Principal Development Total
Grants and Development Shopping Finance Component
Functions/Programs Expenses Contributions Authority District Authority Units
Component Units
Community and economic development
Downtown development authority $ 46,653 $ 10,000 $ (36,653) $ - - (36,653)
Principal shopping district 62,397 95,497 - 33,100 - 33,100
Local development finance authority 12,852 - - - (12,852) (12,852)
Total $ 121,902 $ 105,497 (36,653) 33,100 (12,852) (16,405)
General revenues
Property taxes 35,015 - 275,877 310,892
Investment earnings 255 190 1,810 2,255
Total general revenues 35,270 190 277,687 313,147
Change in net position (1,383) 33,290 264,835 296,742
Net position, beginning of the year 89,827 19,209 502,785 611,821
Net position, end of the year $ 88,444 $ 52,499 767,620 $ 908,563

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of St. Johns (the “City”) is the county seat of Clinton County, Michigan, and has a population of
approximately 7,700. The City of St. Johns operates with a City Commission/Manager form of government and
provides services to its residents in many areas including general government, law enforcement, highways and
streets, human services, and utilities services.

The City has five City Commissioners who are elected at large for overlapping four-year terms. The Commission
elects two of its members to serve as Mayor and Vice Mayor. The Commission appoints the City Manager, City
Clerk, Finance Director/Treasurer, and Assessor.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to city governments. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The City’s more significant accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements present the financial activities of the City (primary government) and its component units, entities
for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Discretely presented component units
are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are
legally separate from the City. All component units are included in the City’s financial statements and are
not audited separately.

Discretely Presented Component Units

These component units are reported in a separate column to emphasize that, while legally separate, the City
remains financially accountable for the entity or the nature and significance of the relationship between the
entity and the City is such that exclusion of the entity would render the financial statements misleading or
incomplete. The financial statements contain the following discretely presented component units:

Principal Shopping District (PSD) - The PSD is governed by a board of no less than eight and no more
than twelve directors. The members of the governing board are recommended by the DDA board and
appointed by the City Commission. In addition, the Clinton County Board of Commissioners appoints
one County representative to the board. The purpose of the PSD is to facilitate programs for an improved
growth environment in and near downtown St. Johns, and to assist the downtown area in becoming a
stronger mixed-use urban center by encouraging a variety of retail, service, professional, residential,
and recreational opportunities. The City has the ability to significantly influence operations of the PSD
and also has a potential financial benefit or burden. The PSD is legally separate and fiscally independent
of the City. The PSD is included in the City’s audited financial statements and separate financial
statements have not been issued.

Downtown Development Authority (DDA) - The DDA is governed by a board of no less than eight and no
more than twelve directors. The members of the governing board are recommended by the DDA board
and appointed by the City Commission. In addition, the Clinton County Board of Commissioners
appoints one County representative to the board. The City also has the ability to significantly influence
operations of the DDA. Additionally, the DDA’s budget is subject to approval by the City Commission.
The DDA may issue debt payable solely from tax increment revenues. The full faith and credit of the City
may be given for the debt of the DDA. The DDA is included in the City’s audited financial statements and
separate financial statements have not been issued.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (concluded)

Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) - The LDFA is governed by a ten member board, seven of
whom are appointed by the Chief Executive Officer, subject to approval by the City Commission, one of
whom is appointed by the Clinton County Board of Commissioners, and two of whom are appointed by
the chief executive officer of St. Johns Public Schools. The purpose of the LDFA is to eliminate the causes
of unemployment, under-employment, and joblessness and to promote economic growth in the City,
pursuant to Act 281 of the Public Acts of Michigan, 1986, as amended. The City has the ability to
significantly influence operations of the LDFA and also has a potential financial benefit or burden. The
LDFA is legally separate and fiscally independent of the City. The LDFA is included in the City’s audited
financial statements and separate financial statements have not been issued.

Joint Venture

The City participates in the following activities which are considered to be joint ventures in relation to the
City, due to the formation of an organization by contractual agreement between two or more participants
that maintain joint control, financial interest, and financial responsibility.

Clinton Area Ambulance Service Authority (CAASA) - The City is a member of the Clinton Area
Ambulance Service Authority (the Authority). The participating municipalities include City of St. Johns,
City of Ovid, Village of Fowler, Village of Maple Rapids, Township of Bengal, Township of Bingham,
Township of Dallas, Township of Duplain, Township of Essex, Township of Greenbush, Township of
Lebanon, and Township of Ovid. The Authority is considered a Municipal Emergency Service Authority
as provided in the Emergency Services to Municipalities Act, 1988 PA 57, and MCL 124.601. The
remaining formation and operating guidelines, etc. are detailed in the Authority’s Articles of
Incorporation and Bylaws and are maintained in the Authority’s administrative offices. The Board is
comprised of fourteen members, two members from the City of St. Johns and one member from each of
the remaining municipalities. A Director oversees the day-to-day operations of the Authority.

CAASA has no stockholders and all monies received are to be used for certain specified purposes in
accordance with the joint venture agreement between the constituent municipalities. CAASA is intended
to operate as much as possible from revenues derived from operations. However, each municipality is
responsible for remitting an annual financial contribution pursuant to a formula based upon a per capita
contribution based upon each incorporation municipality’s population as determined by the most recent
U.S. Department of Census figures.

Due to the City having ongoing financial responsibilities, their equity interest in the Authority has been
included in the government-wide financial statements. The City’s equity interest in the Authority was
$441,225 as of the year ended March 31, 2024, the most recent financial statements available, as calculated
based on the formation agreement. CAASA’s government-wide total assets at March 31, 2024, were
$1,726,563 and total liabilities were $305,164, which resulted in net position of $1,421,399.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint Venture (concluded)

The formation agreement states that at termination and dissolution CAASA, each participating
municipality would receive a percentage of the net position after reasonable dissolution costs are
deducted and if there were any remaining debts the participating municipalities would be obligated to
pay these outstanding balances. Upon dissolution, the net position remaining would be distributed
among the then active participating municipalities according to their historical contribution amounts to
the Authority as detailed in the agreement. Based on an analysis of the recent contributions made for
the year ended March 31, 2024, the City had contributed approximately 31.04% of the total
contributions. Therefore, their proportionate share of the net position of CAASA at March 31, 2024, has
been recorded in the government-wide financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2024.

Financial statements of CAASA can be obtained from their administrative office.

Basis of Presentation

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities (the government-wide financial statements)
present information for the primary government and its component units as a whole. All non-fiduciary
activities of the primary government are included (i.e., fiduciary fund activities are not included in the
government-wide financial statements). For the most part, interfund activity has been eliminated in the
preparation of these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities presents the direct functional expenses of the primary government and its
component units and the program revenues that support them. Direct expenses are specifically associated
with a service, program, or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Program revenues are associated with specific functions and include charges to recipients of goods or
services and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements
of that function. Revenues that are not required to be presented as program revenues are general revenues.
This includes all taxes, interest, and unrestricted State revenue sharing payments and other general
revenues and shows how governmental functions are either self-financing or supported by general
revenues.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements present the City’s individual major funds and aggregated nonmajor funds.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. The emphasis of fund
financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column.
All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Major individual
governmental funds and the major individual enterprise fund are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of Presentation (concluded)
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (concluded)
The City reports the following Major Governmental Funds:
The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenues sources

include property taxes, license and permits, fines, and state shared revenue.

The Major Street Fund accounts for revenues received from the State of Michigan for the City’s share of
State gasoline and weight taxes, which is used for maintenance of major streets.

The Wilson Center Fund accounts for the construction of the Wilson Center project from the issuance of
bonds.

The City reports the following Major Proprietary Fund:
The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the operations and maintenance required to provide water and
sewer services to the general public. The costs (expenses, including depreciation) are financed or
recovered primarily through user charges.

Additionally, the City reports the following Fund Types:

The Special Revenue Funds account for revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures
for specific purposes other than debt service, capital projects, or permanent funds.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and
interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

The Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition of capital assets or construction of major capital
projects not being financed by proprietary funds.

The Internal Service Fund accounts for the mobile equipment used by departments within the City and
the related expenses incurred on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Custodial Fund accounts for assets held by the City as a custodian for other governments, private
organizations, or individuals. The City’s custodial fund is the Current Tax Fund.

Measurement Focus

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented using the
economic resources measurement focus, similar to that used by business enterprises or not-for-profit
organizations. Because another measurement focus is used in the governmental fund financial statements,
reconciliations to the government-wide financial statements are provided that explain the differences in
detail.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Measurement Focus (concluded)

All governmental funds are presented using the current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets, deferred outflows of resources, current liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds
present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other
financing uses) in fund balance.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported
in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless
of the measurement focus applied.

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when they become susceptible to accrual (when they become both “measurable” and
“available to finance expenditures of the current period”). The length of time used for “available” for purposes
of revenue recognition in the governmental fund financial statements is 60 days. Revenues that are considered
measurable but not available are recorded as a receivable and unavailable revenue. Significant revenues
susceptible to accrual are special assessments and certain intergovernmental revenues. Expenditures are
generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for interest on long-term debt which is recorded when due.

All proprietary (i.e., enterprise and internal service) funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when
they are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds
are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the costs of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and other costs of running the activity. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The fiduciary funds financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, except for the recognition of certain liabilities to the beneficiaries of a
fiduciary activity. Liabilities to beneficiaries are recognized when an event has occurred that compels the
City to disburse fiduciary resources.

If/when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s practice to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The General and Special Revenue Funds’ budgets shown as required supplementary information were
prepared on the same modified accrual basis used to reflect actual results. The Special Revenue, Debt
Service, and Capital Project Funds’ budgets shown as other supplementary information were prepared on
the same modified accrual basis used to reflect actual results. This basis is consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The City employs the following procedures
in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements.

a.  Prior to April 1, the City Manager submits to the Commission a proposed budget for the fiscal year
beginning the following July 1.

b. A public hearing is then conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

¢. No later than the first Commission meeting in June, the budget is required to be legally enacted
through passage of a resolution.

d. The budget is legally adopted at the department level for the General Fund and total expenditure
level for the Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Capital Project Funds; however, they
are maintained at the account level for control purposes.

e. The City Manager, or designee, is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within departmental
appropriation accounts; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any department
must be approved by the City Commission.

f  Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation,
is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental funds. There were
no encumbrances at year-end.

g Budgeted amounts are reported as originally adopted or amended by the City Commission during
the year. Individual amendments were appropriately approved by the City Commission as required.

h. Budget appropriations lapse at year end.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents consist of checking, certificates of deposit with an original maturity of less than
90 days from the date of purchase, and liquidity investment accounts. The cash equivalents are recorded at
cost, which approximates fair value.

Investments include certificates of deposit with an original maturity of greater than 90 days from the date
of purchase. Investments are recorded at fair value.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (concluded)

In accordance with Michigan Compiled Laws, the City is authorized to invest in the following investment
vehicles:

a

Bonds, securities, and other obligations of the United States or an agency or instrumentality of the
United States.

Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipts of a State or
nationally chartered bank or a State or Federally chartered savings and loan association, savings bank,
or credit union whose deposits are insured by an agency of the United Sates government and which
maintains a principal office or branch office located in this State under the laws of this State or the
United States, but only if the bank, savings and loan association, savings bank or credit union is eligible
to be a depository of surplus funds belonging to the State under Section 6 of 1855 PA 105, MCL 21.146.

Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the three highest classifications established
by not less than two standard rating services and which matures not more than 270 days after the
date of purchase.

The United States government or federal agency obligations repurchase agreements.

Bankers’ acceptances of United States banks.

Mutual funds composed of investment vehicles, which are legal for direct investment by local units of
government in Michigan.

Section 5 or 6 of Act No. 105 of the Public Acts of 1855, as amended, being Section 21.145 and 21.146
of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

Michigan Compiled Laws allow for collateralization of government deposits, if the assets for pledging are
acceptable to the State Treasurer under Section 3 of 1855 PA 105, MCL 21.143, to secure deposits of State
surplus funds, securities issued by the Federal Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage
Association, or Government National Mortgage Association.

Receivables

Receivables consist of amounts due related to charges for services, special assessments, and other amounts
owed to the City at year-end.

Due from Other Governmental Units

Due from other governmental units consists of amounts due from the State of Michigan for various payments
and grants and receivables for charges for services provided to local governmental units.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The City is a lessee for noncancelable leases of equipment. The City recognizes a lease liability and an
intangible right-to-use the lease asset in the government-wide financial statements. The City recognizes
lease liabilities that are considered material and have an initial, individual value that the City would
recognize as a capital asset.

At the commencement of a lease, the City initially measures the lease liability at the present value of
payments expected to be made during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the
principal portion of lease payments made. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the
lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus certain
initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life.

Key estimates and judgements related to leases include how the City determines (1) the discount rate it uses
to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments.

a. The City uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate. When the interest rate
charged by the lessor is not provided, the City generally uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate
as the discount rate for leases.

b. The lease term includes the noncancelable period of the lease. Lease payments included in the
measurement of the lease liability are composed of fixed payments and purchase option price that the
City is reasonably certain to exercise.

The City monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and will
remeasure the lease asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect the
amount of the lease liability.

Lease assets are reported with other capital assets and lease liabilities are reported with long-term
obligations on the statement of net position.

The City’s leases contained no variable payment terms and there was no residual value guarantee.
Inventories

Inventories in the enterprise fund consist of water department supplies which are stated at the lower of cost
or market on the first in - first out basis. Inventory in the internal service fund consist of consumable mobile

equipment supplies which are stated at the lower of cost or market on the first in - first out basis. The cost
of such inventories is recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

Prepaids

Prepaid expenditures in the governmental funds, such as insurance premiums, which are expected to be
written off within the next fiscal year, are included in net current assets. Reported prepaid expenditures are
equally offset by nonspendable fund balance, which indicates they do not constitute “available spendable
resources” even though they are a component of fund balance.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital Assets

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT AND COMPONENT UNIT

Capital assets are recorded (net of accumulated depreciation/amortization, if applicable) in the
government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types. Capital assets are those with an initial
individual cost of $10,000 or more and an estimated useful life of more than one year. Capital assets are not
recorded in the governmental funds. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as
expenditures in governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. All purchased capital assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an
estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. Donated capital assets are valued at their
estimated acquisition value on the date received.

Land and construction in progress, if any, are not depreciated/amortized. Right to use assets of the City are
amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease period or the estimated useful lives.
The other capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 10-40 years
Buildings and improvements 20-50 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Furniture and equipment 3-15 years
Equipment - right to use 2-5 years
Drainage flowage rights 25-50 years
Infrastructure 25-50 years
Water system 5-50 years
Sewer system 5-50 years

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue is reported in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.

Compensated Absences

[tis the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave in varying
amounts. In the event of termination, individual employees have vested rights to receive payment for
unused vacation and sick leave. All vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide
financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Long-term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are recognized as a liability in the government-wide
financial statements and proprietary fund types when incurred. The portion of those liabilities expected to
be paid within the next year is a current liability with the remaining amounts shown as noncurrent. Bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from debt proceeds received, are reported as expenses.
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NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Long-term Obligations (concluded)

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due or when resources have been
accumulated in a fund for payment early in the following year. For other long-term obligations, only that
portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability
of a governmental fund. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Net Pension Liability

The City offers a defined benefit pension plan to its employees. The City records a net pension liability for
the difference between the total pension liability calculated by the actuary and the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position. For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the pension plan and additions to/deductions from the pension plan’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the pension plan. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets and liabilities, the statement of financial position or balance sheet will, when
applicable, report separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.
Deferred outflows of resources, a separate financial statement element, represents a consumption of net
assets or fund balance, respectively, that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that time. Deferred inflows of resources, a separate
financial statement element, represents an acquisition of net assets or fund balance, respectively, that
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
The City has several items that qualify for reporting in these categories and are reported in the government-
wide financial statement of net position, the governmental funds, or proprietary funds balance
sheet/statement of net position.

The City reports deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, when applicable, which
correspond to the City’s net pension liability and are related to differences between expected and actual
experience, changes in assumptions, differences between projected and actual plan investment earnings,
and contributions subsequent to the measurement date. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an
outflow or inflow of resources in the period to which they apply.

The City also reports deferred outflows of resources related to deferred charges on refunding, which results

from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price, which is deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.
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NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (concluded)

The City also reports deferred inflows of resources, one of which arises only under a modified accrual basis
of accounting and qualify for reporting in this category. The City reports unavailable revenue in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from revenues
collected subsequent to 60 days after year end. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period that the amounts become available.

Property Tax

The City bills and collects its own property taxes and also taxes for other governmental units. The City’s
property tax revenue recognition policy and related tax calendar disclosures are highlighted in the
following paragraph:

Property taxes are levied on July 1 and December 1 and are payable without penalty through August 14
and February 14, respectively. The July 1 levy is composed of the County’s levy, State Education Tax
assessment, City’s millages and assessments. The December 1 levy is composed of the rest of the County
levies, district library, transit, school district, and intermediate school district taxes. All real property
taxes not paid to the City by March 1 are turned over to the Clinton County Treasurer for collection. The
County Treasurer purchases the receivables of all taxing districts on any delinquent real property taxes.
Delinquent personal property taxes are retained by the City for subsequent collection. City property tax
revenues are recognized as revenues in the fiscal year levied.

The City is permitted by charter to levy taxes up to 10 mills ($10 per $1,000 of taxable valuation) for general
governmental services other than the payment of debt service. The City is also permitted to levy additional
mills specifically designated for streets and sidewalks, solid waste, and economic development. For the year
ended June 30, 2024, the City levied 9.8103 mills per $1,000 of assessed valuation for general operations,
3.0000 mills for streets and sidewalks, 0.7000 mills for solid waste, and 0.1848 mills for economic
development. The total ad valorem and special acts taxable value for the 2023 levy for property within the
City was $286,223,056.

Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds, including
expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets, and service debt. The
accompanying financial statements generally reflect such transactions as operating transfers. Transfers
between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government- wide
financial statements. Balances for transfers that have not yet cleared as of the balance sheet date are
considered interfund receivables and payables.

Restricted Net Position
Restrictions of net position shown in the government-wide financial statements indicate restrictions that

have been imposed by outside sources which preclude a portion of net position from their use for
unrestricted purposes.
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NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fund Balance Classifications

Fund balance classifications comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is
bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. The
following are the five fund balance classifications under this standard:

Nonspendable - assets that are not available in a spendable form such as inventory, prepaid
expenditures, and long-term receivables not expected to be converted to cash in the near term. It also
includes funds that are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact such as the corpus of a
permanent fund or foundation.

Restricted - amounts that are required by external parties to be used for a specific purpose. Constraints
are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws, regulations or enabling legislation.

Committed - amounts constrained on use imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level of
decision-making authority (i.e., Board, Council, etc.).

Assigned - amounts intended to be used for specific purposes. This is determined by the governing body,
the budget or finance committee or a delegated municipality official.

Unassigned - all other resources; the remaining fund balance after nonspendable, restrictions,
commitments, and assignments. This class only occurs in the General Fund, except for cases of negative
fund balances. Negative fund balances are always reported as unassigned, no matter which fund the
deficit occurs in.

Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures

For committed fund balance, the City’s highest level of decision-making authority is the City Commission.
The formal action that is required to be taken to establish a fund balance commitment is a resolution by the
City Commission.

For assigned fund balances, the City Commission has authorized the City Manager the ability to assign
amounts to a specific purpose. Currently, assigned fund balance represents funds intended to be used by
the City for specific purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.

The City Commission has adopted a minimum fund balance policy in which the General Fund maintains an
unassigned fund balance equal to 15% - 20% of expenditures. The use of fund balance is appropriate to
cover large capital projects or emergency expenditures where funds are not available in the current
approved operating budget.

For the classification of fund balances, the City considers restricted amounts to have been spent when an
expenditure is incurred for the purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available. Also for the classification of fund balances, the City considers committed, assigned, or unassigned
amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of
those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.
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NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)
Estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The deposits and investments referred to below have been reported in either the cash and cash equivalents or
investments captions on the financial statements, based upon criteria disclosed in Note 1. The following
summarizes the categorization of these amounts as of June 30, 2024:

Primary Component Fiduciary
Government Units Funds Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,178,924 $ 884,874 $ 7,370 $ 9,071,168
Cash - restricted 1,287,926 - - 1,287,926
Investments - current 545,362 - - 545,362
Investments - noncurrent 888,340 - - 888,340
$ 10,900,552 $ 884,874 $ 7,370 $ 11,792,796

As of June 30, 2024, the City had cash, cash equivalents, and investments summarized by the following
categorization:

Deposits
Checking $ 7,734,640
Certificates of deposit 1,433,702
Petty cash 1,400
Investments 2,623,054

$ 11,792,796

As of June 30, 2024, the City had deposits and investments subject to the following risk:

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be
returned to it. As of June 30, 2024, $8,611,246 of the City’s bank balance of $9,555,201 was exposed to
custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be
able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside

party.

The City will minimize custodial credit risk, which is the risk of loss due to the failure of the security issue
or backer, by; limiting investments to the types of securities allowed by law; and investing through pre-
approved third-party custodians.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City will minimize concentration of credit risk, which is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of
the City investment in a single issuer, by diversifying the investment portfolio by security type and
institution in order that potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated from
the remainder of the portfolio.

Foreign Currency Risk

The City is not authorized to invest in investments which have this type of risk.

Interest Rate Risk

In accordance with its investment policy, the City will minimize interest rate risk, which is the risk that the
market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in market interest rates, by designing the
investment portfolio with the objective of obtaining a rate of return throughout the budgetary and economic
cycles, considering the investment risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.

As of June 30, 2024, the primary government had the following investments containing interest rate risk:

Weighted
Average Maturity
Investment Type Fair Value (Years)
Michigan CLASS Investment Pool $ 2,623,054 0.0822

One day maturity equals .0027, one year equals 1.00.
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (concluded)

Credit Risk

State law limits investments in certain types of investments to a prime or better rating issued by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSRO’s). Obligations of the U.S. government or obligations
explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit risk and do not require
disclosure of credit quality.

As of June 30, 2024, the primary government had the following investments containing credit risk:

Standard

& Poor's
Investment Type Fair Value Rating
Michigan CLASS Investment Pool $ 2,623,054 AAAmM

Investments in Entities that Calculate Net Asset Value Per Share

The City holds shares or interests in an investment pool where the fair value of the investments is
measured on a recurring basis using net asset value per share (or its equivalent) of the investment
companies as a practical expedient.

The Michigan CLASS investment pool invest in U.S. Treasury obligations, federal agency obligations of the
U.S. government, high-grade commercial paper (rated “Al” or better), collateralized bank deposits,
repurchase agreements (collateralized at 102 percent by treasuries and agencies), and approved money
market funds. The program is designed to meet the needs of Michigan public sector investors. It
purchases securities that are legally permissible under state statues and are available for investment by
Michigan counties, cities, townships, school districts, authorities, and other public agencies.

At the year ended June 30, 2024, the fair value, unfunded commitments, and redemption rules of
those investments are as follows:

Redemption
Unfunded Frequency Redemption
Investment Type Fair Value Commitments if Eligible Notice Period
Michigan CLASS Investment Pool $ 2,623,054 $ - No restrictions None
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NOTE 3 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The amount of interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2024, are as follows:

Due From Other Funds

Governmental Business-type
Nonmajor Internal Water
General Major Governmental Service and Sewer
Fund Street Fund Funds Fund Fund Total
Due To Other Funds
Governmental
General Fund - $ - $ - $ $ 173,826 $ 173,826
Major Street Fund 2,318 - - - 2,318
Nonmajor governmental funds 4,978 10,370 50,649 65,997
Internal service fund 694 - - 694
Business-type
Water and Sewer Fund 124,218 - - 30,000 154,218
Total $ 132,208 $ 10,370 $ 50,649 $ 30,000 $§ 173,826 $§ 397,053

Amounts appearing as interfund payables and receivables arise from two types of transactions. One type of
transaction is where a fund will pay for a good or service that at least a portion of the benefit belongs to another
fund. The second type of transaction is where one fund provides a good or service to another fund. Balances at
the end of the year are for transfers that have not cleared as of the balance sheet date.

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity is classified as interfund transfers.
For the purpose of the statement of activities, all interfund transfers between individual governmental funds

have been eliminated.

Transfers In

Governmental
Nonmajor Internal
General Major Governmental Service
Fund Street Fund Funds Fund Total
Transfers Out
Governmental
General Fund $ - $ 136,339 $ 87,853 $ 89,595 $ 313,787
Major Street Fund - - 169,525 320,265 489,790
Wilson Center Fund 280,433 - - - 280,433
Nonmajor governmental funds - 168,803 259,927 153,441 582,171
Business-type
Water and Sewer Fund - - 27,043 - 27,043
Total $ 280,433 $ 305,142 $ 544,348 $ 563,301 $ 1,693,224

Transfers are used to: (1) move revenues from the fund that is required to collect them to the fund that is
required or allowed to expend them; (2) move receipts restricted to or allowed for debt service from the funds
collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due; and (3) use unrestricted
revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance
with budgetary authorizations. Significant transfers that occurred during the fiscal year related to the Nonmajor
governmental fund (Street Millage III Fund) transferred taxes collected to the Major Street fund and nonmajor
governmental funds.

54



NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Primary Government

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles
Furniture
Equipment - right to use
Drainage flowage rights
Infrastructure

Subtotal

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization for:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles
Furniture
Equipment - right to use
Drainage flowage rights
Infrastructure

Subtotal

Net capital assets being
depreciated/amortized

Capital assets, net

CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Balance
July 1, 2023 Additions Deletions Reclassifications June 30, 2024
$ 1,301,113 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,301,113
310,046 998,872 - (384,572) 924,346
1,611,159 998,872 - (384,572) 2,225,459
1,734,456 315,284 - - 2,049,740
3,373,952 11,291 - - 3,385,243
3,847,480 89,008 (256,673) - 3,679,815
382,711 122,165 (19,103) - 485,773
49,861 153,297 - - 203,158
529,268 15,007 - - 544,275
15,128,458 468,794 - 384,572 15,981,824
25,046,186 1,174,846 (275,776) 384,572 26,329,828
(1,214,006) (72,739) - - (1,286,745)
(1,670,294) (105,892) - - (1,776,186)
(2,068,675) (299,904) 237,222 - (2,131,357)
(241,664) (33,092) 19,103 - (255,653)
(49,861) (22,995) - - (72,856)
(166,578) (11,236) - - (177,814)
(6,897,052) (669,880) - - (7,566,932)
(12,308,130) (1,215,738) 256,325 - (13,267,543)
12,738,056 (40,892) (19,451) 384,572 13,062,285
$ 14,349,215 $ 957,980 $ (19451) §$ - $ 15,287,744
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (concluded)

Primary Government (concluded)

Business-type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated
Water system
Sewer system
Equipment
Subtotal
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Water system
Sewer system
Equipment
Subtotal

Net capital assets being depreciated

Capital assets, net

CITY OF ST. JOHNS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Balance
July 1, 2023 Additions Deletions Reclassifications June 30, 2024
$ 169,161 $ - $ $ - $ 169,161
47,540 70,249 (99,596) 18,193
216,701 70,249 (99,596) 187,354
7,656,439 221,159 99,596 7,977,194
29,733,308 187,029 - 29,920,337
1,509,783 179,328 - 1,689,111
38,899,530 587,516 99,596 39,586,642
(4,488,799) (204,351) - (4,693,150)
(18,695,863) (858,080) - (19,553,943)
(874,266) (147,278) - (1,021,544)
(24,058,928) (1,209,709) - (25,268,637)
14,840,602 (622,193) 99,596 14,318,005
$ 15,057,303 $ (551,944) _$ $ - $ 14,505,359

Depreciation/amortization expense was charged to the following functions:

General government
Public safety

Public works
Recreation and culture
Water and Sewer

Total depreciation/amortization expense
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$ 63,845 $ -

223,261 -

849,866 -

78,766 -

- 1,209,709
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

A summary of changes in long-term obligations is as follows:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2023 Additions Deletions June 30, 2024 One Year
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental activities
General obligation bonds
2017 Refunding Bonds $ 141,000 $ - $ (141,000) $ - $ -
2024 General Obligation Bonds - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 -
Bond premiums - 93,899 - 93,899 6,260
Direct borrowing
and direct placements
Installment purchase agreements
Pumper 655,864 - (54,907) 600,957 57,043
Fire truck 222,095 - (24,853) 197,242 25,617
Dump truck 81,868 - (32,198) 49,670 32,927
Street sweeper 182,699 - (23,733) 158,966 24,488
Lease payable - 153,297 (33,905) 119,392 27,577
Compensated absences 196,797 84,846 (66,319) 215,324 163,165
Total governmental activities 1,480,323 3,332,042 (376,915) 4,435,450 337,077
Business-type activities
General Obligation Bonds
2013 Refunding Revenue Bonds 1,420,000 - (250,000) 1,170,000 300,000
2016 Refunding Revenue Bonds 5,210,000 - (325,000) 4,885,000 290,000
2019 Revenue Bonds 2,785,000 - (125,000) 2,660,000 130,000
Direct borrowing
and direct placements
Installment purchase agreement
Vactor truck 279,043 - (36,200) 242,843 37,350
Compensated absences 89,811 33,549 (31,738) 91,622 65,820
Total business-type activities 9,783,854 33,549 (767,938) 9,049,465 823,170
Total reporting entity $ 11,264,177 $ 3,365,591 $ (1,144,853) $ 13,484,915 $ 1,160,247

Significant details regarding outstanding long-term debt (including current portion) are presented below:

Primary Government

Governmental Activities

$3,000,000 Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds dated June 25, 2024, due in
annual installments ranging from $130,000 to $265,000 from October 1, 2025
through October 1, 2039, with interest ranging from 4.00% to 4.50%, payable semi-

annually.

Plus bond premium on 2024 General Obligation Bonds
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
Primary Government (continued)

Governmental Activities (concluded)

$655,864 Installment purchase agreement dated July 10, 2022, due in annual
payments of $80,420 through July 10, 2032, including interest of 3.89%. This
installment purchase agreement was for the purchase of a pumper tanker fire
truck. The agreement contains provisions that in an event of default the lender has
various options including obtaining judgment for not less than the entire unpaid
balance at time of default or redelivery of any and all equipment and collateral. $ 600,957

$376,615 Installment purchase agreement dated November 19, 2015, due in
annual payments of $31,833 through November 1, 2030, including interest of
3.10%. This installment purchase agreement was for the purchase of a pumper
tanker fire truck. The agreement contains provisions that in an event of default the
lender has various options including obtaining judgment for not less than the
entire unpaid balance at time of default or redelivery of any and all equipment and
collateral. 197,242

$159,283 Installment purchase agreement dated October 26, 2020, due in semi-
annual payments of $16,930 through October 26, 2025, including interest of 2.25%.
This installment purchase agreement was for the purchase of a dump truck. The
agreement contains provisions that in an event of default the City will use any and
all other resources available for payments. 49,670

$630,683 Installment purchase agreement dated September 1, 2018, due in annual
payments of $74,616 through September 1, 2029, including interest of 3.18%. This
installment purchase agreement is allocated between governmental and business-
type activities. The allocation is roughly 39.60% governmental activities and
60.40% business-type activities. The portion allocated to the governmental
activities was for the purchase of a street sweeper. The agreement contains
provisions that in an event of default the lender has various options including
declaring the entire unpaid balance due immediately, require prompt return or
secure possession of real property, and charge the City for reasonable fees and
other expenses as a result of the default. 158,966

$153,297 Lease payable dated October 9, 2023, is for a period expiring May 14,
2029. Annual payments 33,905, including interest of 5.289%. The lease agreement
is for the right to use a wheel loader. The agreement contain provisions that in an
event of default the City will immediately return all equipment. 119,392

$ 1,126,227
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
Primary Government (continued)

Business-type Activities

$2,845,000 Water Supply and Sewage Disposal System Revenue Refunding Bonds
dated July 16, 2013, due in annual installments ranging from $285,000 to $300,000
through October 1, 2027, with interest of 3.15%, payable semi-annually. $ 1,170,000

$6,535,000 Water Supply and Sewage Disposal System Revenue Refunding Bonds
dated October 20, 2016, due in annual installments ranging from $290,000 to
$755,000 through October 1, 2032, with interest of 2.65%, payable semi-annually. 4,885,000

$3,130,000 Water Supply and Sewage Disposal System Revenue Refunding Bonds
dated August 27, 2019, due in annual installments ranging from $130,000 to
$210,000 through October 1, 2039, with interest of 3.39%, payable semi-annually. 2,660,000

$ 8,715,000

$630,683 Installment purchase agreement dated September 1, 2018, due in annual
payments of $74,616 through September 1, 2029, including interest of 3.18%. This
installment purchase agreement is allocated between governmental and business-
type activities. The allocation is roughly 39.60% governmental activities and
60.40% business-type activities. The portion allocated to the business-type
activities was for the purchase of a vactor truck. The agreement contains
provisions that in an event of default the lender has various options including
declaring the entire unpaid balance due immediately, require prompt return or
secure possession of real property, and charge the City for reasonable fees and
other expenses as a result of the default. $ 242,843

Compensated Absences

In accordance with the City personnel policies and/or contracts negotiated with the various employee groups of
the City, individual employees have vested rights upon termination of employment to receive payment for
unused vacation and sick leave under formulas and conditions specified in the respective personnel policies
and/or contracts. At June 30, 2024, the dollar amount of these vested rights, including related payroll taxes,
amounted to $306,946. Of this amount, $215,324 and $91,622 are shown as accrued liabilities within the
government-wide financial statements’ governmental and business-type activities, respectively, in accordance
with criteria disclosed in Note 1. All City departments and funds with employees liquidate vacation and normal
sick leave as a direct payout. These liabilities are expected to be liquidated primarily by the General Fund and
Water and Sewer Fund.
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (concluded)
Primary Government (concluded)
The following is a summary of annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above obligations:

Governmental Activities
Direct Borrowing

General Obligation Bonds and Direct Placements
Principal Interest Principal Interest
2025 $ - $ 94,846 $ 167,652 $ 41,915
2026 130,000 121,113 156,748 35,888
2027 155,000 115,413 145,485 30,221
2028 160,000 109,113 151,186 24,520
2029 170,000 102,513 123,208 18,593
2030-2034 955,000 403,063 381,948 32,797
2035-2039 1,165,000 187,394 - -
2040 265,000 5,963 - -

$ 3,000,000 $ 1,139,418 $ 1,126,227 $ 183,934

Business-type Activities
Direct Borrowing

General Obligation Bonds and Direct Placements
Principal Interest Principal Interest
2025 $ 720,000 $ 245711 $ 37,350 $ 7,718
2026 735,000 223,982 38,538 6,530
2027 765,000 201,664 39,764 5,304
2028 785,000 178,672 41,028 4,040
2029 825,000 155,572 42,333 2,735
2030-2034 3,715,000 425,715 43,830 1,389
2035-2039 960,000 118,709 - -
2040 210,000 3,560 - -

$ 8,715,000 $ 1,553,585 $ 242,843 $ 27,716

NOTE 7 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The City’s defined benefit pension plan provides certain retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. The City participates in the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (MERS) of
Michigan. MERS is an agent multiple-employer, statewide public employee pension plan established by the
Michigan’s Legislature under Public Act 135 of 1945 and administered by a nine-member Retirement Board.
MERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. This report may be obtained accessing MERS website at www.mersofmich.com.
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NOTE 7 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For the purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (MERS) of Michigan and additions to/deductions from MERS’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by MERS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Benefits Provided

General Police/Fire City Manager Water/Sewer
Open or closed to new hires Closed Closed Closed Closed
Benefit multiplier 2.50% multiplier 2.50% multiplier 2.25% multiplier 2.50% multiplier

(80% max) (80% max) (80% max) (80% max)

Normal retirement age 60 60 60 60
Vesting 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
Early retirement (unreduced) Age 50 / 25 years of | Age 50 / 25 years of N/A Age 50 / 25 years of

service; service service;

Age 55 / 20 years of Age 55 / 20 years of

service service
Early retirement (reduced) Age 55/ 15 years of | Age 55/ 15 years of | Age 50 / 25 years of | Age 55/ 15 years of

service service service; service

Age 55 / 15 years of
service

Final average compensation (FAC) 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years
Employer contributions $25,992 per month | $27,931 per month $876 per month $29,125 per month
Employee contributions 0.00% 0.00% 4.50% 0.00%
RS50% Elected Yes Yes Yes Yes
Act 88 No No No No

Benefit terms, within the parameters established by MERS, are generally established and amended by authority
of the City Commission, generally after negotiations of these terms with the affected unions. Benefit terms may
be subject to binding arbitration in certain circumstances.

At the December 31, 2023, valuation date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries receiving benefits 53
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 3
Active employees 9
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NOTE 7 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued)
Contributions

Article 9, Section 24 of the State of Michigan constitution requires that financial benefits arising on account of
employee service rendered in each year be funded during that year. Accordingly, MERS retains an independent
actuary to determine the annual contribution. The employer is required to contribute amounts at least equal to
the actuarially determined rate, as established by the MERS retirement board. The actuarially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the year, with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer may establish contribution rates
to be paid by its covered employees.

At June 30, 2024, all divisions were closed to new employees. The City had annual employer contributions
totaling $1,137,088, including $130,000 in voluntary contributions, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2024, there were no amounts outstanding by the City for contributions to the pension plan required
for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Net Pension Liability

The City’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2023, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an annual actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2023, annual actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation: 2.50%
Salary increases: 3.00% plus merit and longevity, 3.00% in the long-term.
Investment rate of return: 7.18%, net of investment and administrative expense including inflation.

Although no specific price inflation assumptions are needed for the valuation, the 3.00% long-term wage
inflation assumption would be consistent with a price inflation of 3.00% - 4.00%.

Mortality rates used were based on a version of Pub-2010 and fully generational MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience
study of 2014-2018.

Changes in Assumptions

Change in discount rate from 7.25% to 7.18%.

Changes in Benefits

There were no changes in benefit terms during plan year 2023.
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NOTE 7 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued)

Projected Cash Flows

Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay all
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method in
which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment and
administrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The target allocation and best estimates of geographic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Total Expected

Target Allocation Gross Long-term Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return
Global Equity 60.00% 4.38% 2.63%
Global Fixed Income 20.00% 2.00% 0.40%
Private investments 20.00% 7.00% 1.40%
100.00% 4.43%
Inflation 2.50%
Assumed investment rate of return 6.93%
Administrative expenses netted above 0.25%
Investment rate of return (discount rate) 7.18%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 7.18%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed
upon for employees and the actuarially determined rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments
of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued)

Net Pension Liability

Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement year were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a)-(b)
Balances at December 31, 2022 $ 18,886,562 $ 11,030,176 $ 7,856,386
Changes for the year
Service cost 78,174 - 78,174
Interest on total pension liability 1,321,253 - 1,321,253
Difference between expected and actual experience 98,678 - 98,678
Changes in assumptions 126,410 - 126,410
Contributions - employer - 1,114,434 (1,114,434)
Contributions - state grant - 211,808 (211,808)
Net investment income - 1,253,383 (1,253,383)
Benefit payments, including employee refunds (1,402,946) (1,402,946) -
Administrative expense - (25,916) 25,916
Net changes 221,569 1,150,763 (929,194)
Balances at December 31, 2023 $ 19,108,131 $ 12,180,939 $ 6,927,192

Sensitivity of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Net Pension Liability of the employer, calculated using the discount rate of 7.18%, as
well as what the City’s Net Pension Liability would be using a discount rate that is 1% point lower or 1% higher
than the current rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

Net pension liability $ 8,908,034 $ 6,927,192 $ 5,252,310
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (concluded)

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the City recognized pension expense of $877,920. The City reported deferred
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments $ 634,581 $ -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date* 633,544 -
Total $ 1,268,125 $ -

* The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the year ending June 30,
2025.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year Ending Pension
June 30, Expense
2025 $ 116,627
2026 239,930
2027 369,507
2028 (91,483)
$ 634,581

NOTE 8 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The City of St. Johns is the sponsor of a defined contribution retirement plan for the sole benefit of its employees.
The plan is administered by the Michigan Municipal Employees Retirement System. The plan was established
by the City Commission. Plan provisions and contribution requirements can be amended by the City
Commission. Non-union employees hired after May 31, 2003, receive 10% of their wages as a contribution to
the plan. Union employees hired after July 1, 2007, received 14% of their wages as a contribution to the plan.
During the year ended June 30, 2024, the City of St. Johns made contributions for all eligible participating
employees. To be eligible to participate, an employee must be full-time. Elected officials and volunteer
firefighters are not eligible for this plan.

City contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2024, were $217,166.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City participates in a pool, the Michigan Municipal League Workers’ Compensation Fund, with other
municipalities for workers’ compensation losses. The pool is organized under Public Act 317 of 1969, as
amended. In the event the pool’s claims and expenses for a policy year exceed the total normal annual premiums
for said years, all members of the specific pool’s policy year may be subject to special assessment to make up the
deficiency. The City has not been informed of any special assessments being required in any of the past three
fiscal years.

The City also participates in a State pool, the Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool, with other
municipalities for property, liability, auto, crime, data breach, bonding, and casualty losses. The poolis organized
under Public Act 138 of 1982, as amended. State pool members’ limits of coverage are detailed in their policy
agreements with the authority. In the event the pool’s claims and expenses for a policy year exceed the total
normal annual premiums for said years, all members of the specific pool’s policy year may be subject to special
assessment to make up the deficiency. The City has not been informed of any special assessments being required
in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 10 - LEASE COMMITMENT

In December 1998, the City entered into a construction agreement with Clinton County to construct a new
courthouse. At the same time, the Building Authority entered into a ground lease with Clinton County that
provides the City administrative office space for a term of 99 years, at a rate of $1 per year.

The terms of the construction agreement dictate that the City shall pay 7.43% of the cost of improvements
incurred by the County. The terms of the ground lease dictate that the County or City may terminate the lease
on or after the December 31 occurring not earlier than ten years following occupancy (“termination date”). For
ten years following the termination date, the County or City may terminate the lease subject to varying
percentage payments reimbursing the City for its pro rata share of the cost of improvements. After the tenth
year following the termination date, either party may terminate the lease subject to 100% reimbursement of the
City’s pro rata share of the cost of improvements. As the lease is not an exchange or exchange-like transaction,
it is not recorded on the financial statements in accordance with GASB No. 87.

NOTE 11 - TAX ABATEMENTS

The Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts Act, (known as the Industrial Facilities
Exemption) PA 198 of 1974, as amended, provides a tax incentive to manufacturers to enable renovation and
expansion of aging facilities, assist in the building of new facilities, and to promote the establishment of high tech
facilities. An Industrial Development District (IDD) or a Plant Rehabilitation District (PRD) must be created prior
to initiating a project so it is essential that you consult your local assessor before commencing a project. An
Industrial Facilities Exemption (IFE) certificate entitles the facility to exemption from ad valorem real and/or
personal property taxes for a term of 1-12 years as determined by the local unit of government. Applications
are filed, reviewed, and approved by the local unit of government, but are also subject to review at the State level
by the Property Services Division and the Michigan Economic Development Corporation. The State Tax
Commission (STC) is ultimately responsible for final approval and issuance of certificates. Exemptions are not
effective until approved by the STC. Accordingly, such agreements meet the criteria of "tax abatements" under
accounting standards.
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NOTE 11 - TAX ABATEMENTS (concluded)

The Michigan Renaissance Zone Act (the “Act”), P.A. 376 of 1996, established the Michigan Renaissance Zone
initiative to foster economic opportunities in the state; facilitate economic development; stimulate industrial,
commercial, and residential improvements; prevent physical and infrastructure deterioration of defined areas;
and provide for the reuse of unproductive or abandoned industrial properties. Most state and local taxes,
including both real and personal property tax, are abated within Renaissance Zones for a specified number of
years.

The Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA), PA 146 of 2000, as amended, provides property tax
exemptions for commercial and commercial housing properties that are rehabilitated and meet the
requirements of the Act. Properties must meet eligibility requirements including a statement of obsolescence
by the local assessor. The property must be located in an established Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District.
Exemptions are approved for a term of 1-12 years as determined by the local unit of government. The property
taxes for the rehabilitated property are based on the previous year’s (prior to rehabilitation) taxable value. The
taxable value is frozen for the duration of the exemption. Applications are filed, reviewed, and approved by the
local unit of government, but are also subject to review at the State level by the Property Services Division. The
State Tax Commission (STC) is responsible for final approval and issuance of OPRA certificates. Exemptions are
not effective until approved by the STC.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the City had one entity with tax abatements that exceeded 10% of the total
amount abated. That was a Renaissance Zone with 100% property tax reduction for an agricultural processing
company allowing for additional investments in equipment, facilities, and employment. The abatement
amounted to $255,264.

The City has the following tax abatements for the year ended June 30, 2024:

Streets and Solid Economic
Operating Sidewalks Waste Development Total
Renaissance Zone $ 182,855 $ 55,917 $ 13,047 $ 3,445 $ 255,264
Obsolete Property Rehabiliation Act 9,221 2,820 658 174 12,873

$ 192,076 $ 58,737 $ 13,705 $ 3,619 $ 268,137

There are no provisions to recapture taxes; however, the abatement may be eliminated if taxes are not paid
timely.
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NOTE 12 - CALCULATION OF NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Net investment in capital assets represents the following:

Governmental Business-type
Net Investment in Capital Assets Activities Activities
Capital assets, net $ 15,287,744 $ 14,505,359
Less
Outstanding principal of capital related debt (4,126,227) (8,957,843)
Unamortized original issue premiums (93,899) -
Plus
Unspent proceeds from issuance of debt 2,101,708 -
Deferred charges on refunding - 133,606
Net investment in capital assets $ 13,169,326 $ 5,681,122

NOTE 13 - DETAILS OF FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

Fund balance classifications shown in the governmental fund financial statements indicate constraints imposed
on the fund balance, if any. The following are the various constraints on fund balance as of June 30, 2024.

Nonmajor
Major Wilson Governmental
General Street Center Funds Total
Fund Balances

Nonspendable

Prepaids $ 140876 $ - $ - $ - $ 140876
Restricted

Streets - 546,838 - 206,660 753,498

Garbage - - - 230,188 230,188

Drug law enforcement - - - 1,341 1,341

Capital projects - - 2,076,708 488,726 2,565,434
Assigned

Capital purchases - fire 535,500 - - - 535,500

Capital purchases - equipment 701,667 - - - 701,667

Capital purchases - general 205,024 - - - 205,024
Unassigned 1,624,795 - - - 1,624,795

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 3,207,862 $ 546,838 $ 2,076,708 $ 926,915 $ 6,758,323
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NOTE 14 - UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following statements that management
believes could have an effect on the financial statements when adopted.

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. This Statement requires that
liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not been used and (2) leave that
has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash means. A liability should be recognized
for leave that has not been used if (a) the leave is attributable to services already rendered, (b) the leave
accumulates, and (c) the leave is more likely than not to be used for time off or otherwise paid in cash or
settled through noncash means. This Statement also establishes guidance for measuring a liability for leave
that has not been used, generally using an employee’s pay rate as of the date of the financial statements. The
City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted
during the 2024-2025 fiscal year.

In December 2023, the GASB issued Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures. This Statement requires a
government to assess whether a concentration or constraint makes the government vulnerable to the risk
of a substantial impact. Additionally, this Statement requires a government to assess whether an event or
events associated with a concentration or constraint that could cause the substantial impact have occurred,
have begun to occur, or are more likely than not to begin to occur within 12 months of the date the financial
statements are issued. If a government determines that those criteria for disclosure have been met for a
concentration or constraint, it should disclose information in notes to financial statements in sufficient detail
to enable users of financial statements to understand the nature of circumstances disclosed and the
government’s vulnerability to the risk of substantial impact. The City of St. Johns is currently evaluating the
impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted during the 2024-2025 fiscal year.

In April 2024, the GASB issued Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements. This Statement
establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements - or modifies existing requirements -
related to the following:

a. Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A);
i.  Requires that the information presented in MD&A be limited to the related topics discussed in
five specific sections:
1) Overview of the Financial Statements,
2) Financial Summary,
3) Detailed Analyses,
4) Significant Capital Asset and Long-Term Financing Activity,
5) Currently Known Facts, Decisions, or Conditions;
ii.  Stresses detailed analyses should explain why balances and results of operations changed rather
than simply presenting the amounts or percentages by which they changed;
ili. ~ Removes the requirement for discussion of significant variations between original and final
budget amounts and between final budget amounts and actual results;

b. Unusual or infrequent items;

c. Presentation of the proprietary fund statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position;
i.  Requires that the proprietary fund statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net
position continue to distinguish between operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses
and clarifies the definition of operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses;
ii. Requires that a subtotal for operating income (loss) and noncapital subsidies be presented before
reporting other nonoperating revenues and expenses and defines subsidies;
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NOTE 14 - UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (concluded)

d. Information about major component units in basic financial statements should be presented separately
in the statement of net position and statement of activities unless it reduces the readability of the
statements in which case combining statements of should be presented after the fund financial
statements;

e. Budgetary comparison information should include variances between original and final budget amounts
and variances between final budget and actual amounts with explanations of significant variances
required to be presented in the notes to RSI.

The City of St. Johns is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements
when adopted during the 2025-2026 fiscal year.

In September 2024, the GASB issued Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets. This Statement
requires certain types of capital assets to be disclosed separately in the capital assets note disclosures
required by Statement No. 34. Lease assets recognized in accordance with Statement No. 87, Leases, and
intangible right-to-use assets recognized in accordance with Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-
Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements, should be disclosed separately by major class of
underlying asset in the capital assets note disclosures. Subscription assets recognized in accordance with
Statement No. 96, Subscription-based Information Technology Arrangements, also should be
separately disclosed. In addition, this Statement requires intangible assets other than those three types to
be disclosed separately by major class. This Statement also requires additional disclosures for capital
assets held for sale. The City of St. Johns is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have
on the financial statements when adopted during the 2025-2026 fiscal year.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Variances with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,640,452 $ 2,642,352 $ 2,624,255 $ (18,097)
Licenses and permits 119,000 119,000 116,937 (2,063)
Intergovernmental 1,905,426 2,161,586 2,048,106 (113,480)
Charges for services 1,058,315 1,068,515 1,031,448 (37,067)
Fines and forfeitures 2,000 5,000 11,980 6,980
Interest and rent 25,081 36,081 40,860 4,779
Other 77,000 133,337 155,403 22,066
TOTAL REVENUES 5,827,274 6,165,871 6,028,989 (136,882)
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Legislative 510,702 645,380 637,894 7,486
Administration 1,083,402 1,143,108 1,123,613 19,495
Municipal building 90,000 90,000 88,536 1,464
Total general government 1,684,104 1,878,488 1,850,043 28,445
Public safety
Police department 1,782,882 1,820,073 1,767,700 52,373
Fire department 253,797 255,077 251,208 3,869
Total public safety 2,036,679 2,075,150 2,018,908 56,242
Public works
Department of public works 457,597 587,736 499,179 88,557
Health and welfare
Ambulance 92,376 92,376 92,376 -
Recreation and culture
Recreation department 194,405 199,600 186,288 13,312
City parks 167,577 169,077 124,002 45,075
Total recreation and culture 361,982 368,677 310,290 58,387
Debt service
Principal - 54,907 54,907 -
Interest - 25,513 25,513 -
Total debt service - 80,420 80,420 -
Capital outlay 1,315,500 1,038,736 622,262 416,474
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,948,238 6,121,583 5,473,478 648,105
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (120,964) 44,288 555,511 511,223
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONCLUDED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Variances with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in $ - $ 280,433 $ 280,433 $ -
Transfers out (105,354) (335,854) (313,787) 22,067
Sale of capital assets 30,000 30,000 - (30,000)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (75,354) (25,421) (33,354) (7,933)
Net change in fund balance (196,318) 18,867 522,157 503,290
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,685,705 2,685,705 2,685,705 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 2,489,387 $ 2,704,572 $§ 3,207,862 $ 503,290
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
MAJOR STREET FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Variances with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 813,583 $ 1,119,083 $ 1,000,016 $ (119,067)
Investment earnings - 35 605 570
Other 1,000 1,000 1,155 155
TOTAL REVENUES 814,583 1,120,118 1,001,776 (118,342)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public works
Street maintenance 468,677 959,358 673,938 285,420
Traffic service maintenance 23,329 41,929 29,053 12,876
Winter maintenance 35,203 35,203 32,780 2,423
Administrative 79,924 79,924 80,098 (174)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 607,133 1,116,414 815,869 300,545
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 207,450 3,704 185,907 182,203
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 183,056 360,787 305,142 (55,645)
Transfers out (389,656) (489,790) (489,790) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (206,600) (129,003) (184,648) (55,645)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 850 (125,299) 1,259 126,558
Fund balance, beginning of year 545,579 545,579 545,579 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 546,429 $ 420,280 $ 546,338 $ 126,558
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF MICHIGAN
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

LAST TEN MEASUREMENT DATES

(AMOUNTS WERE DETERMINED AS OF 12/31 OF EACH FISCAL YEAR)

2023

2022

2021

2020

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Total pension liability
Service cost $ 78,174 $ 80,648 $ 87,947 $ 89,136 $ 86,150 88,334 $ 94,111 $ 102,314 104,868 $ 102,554
Interest 1,321,253 1,340,993 1,342,772 1,310,216 1,322,437 1,309,890 1,356,935 1,349,463 1,322,685 1,315,290
Difference between expected and actual experience 98,678 (301,872) 148,578 (88,748) 115,202 101,999 (699,069) (5,998) 73,277 -
Changes of assumptions 126,410 - 626,216 485,592 542,432 - - - 685,498 -
Benefit payments including employee refunds (1,402,946) (1,378,682) (1,368,218) (1,366,270) (1,350,700) (1,333,955) (1,340,279) (1,356,279) (1,342,352) (1,316,382)
Net change in total pension liability 221,569 (258,913) 837,295 429,926 715,521 166,268 (588,302) 89,500 843,976 101,462
Total pension liability, beginning 18,886,562 $ 19,145,475 18,308,180 17,878,254 17,162,733 16,996,465 17,584,767 17,495,267 16,651,291 16,549,829
Total pension liability, ending $ 19,108,131 $ 18,886,562 $ 19,145,475 $ 18,308,180 $ 17,878,254 $ 17,162,733 $ 16,996,465 $ 17,584,767 17,495,267 $ 16,651,291
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 1,114,434 $ 1,533,390 $ 1,763,964 $ 1,009,906 $ 1,518,342 $ 1,407,512 $ 1,077,978 $ 762,754 702,800 $ 663,817
Contributions - employee - - - - - - - 3,938 4,095 4,054
Contributions - state grant 211,808 - - - - - - - - -
Net investment income (loss) 1,253,383 (1,384,336) 1,481,025 1,347,170 1,151,920 (356,262) 1,051,371 851,897 (120,666) 533,601
Benefit payments including employee refunds (1,402,946) (1,378,682) (1,368,218) (1,366,270) (1,350,700) (1,333,955) (1,340,279) (1,356,279) (1,342,352) (1,316,382)
Administrative expense (25,916) (22,968) (17,502) (19,425) (19,818) (17,035) (16,672) (16,847) (18,062) (19,451)
Other - (349,597) - - - - - - - -
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,150,763 (1,602,193) 1,859,269 971,381 1,299,744 (299,740) 772,398 245,463 (774,185) (134,361)
Plan fiduciary net position, beginning 11,030,176 $ 12,632,369 10,773,100 9,801,719 8,501,975 8,801,715 8,029,317 7,783,854 8,558,039 8,692,400
Plan fiduciary net position, ending $ 12,180,939 $ 11,030,176 $ 12,632,369 $ 10,773,100 $ 9,801,719 $ 8,501,975 $ 8,801,715 $ 8,029,317 7,783,854 $ 8,558,039
City's net pension liability $ 6,927,192 $ 7,856,386 $ 6,513,106 $ 7,535,080 $ 8,076,535 $ 8,660,758 $§ 8,194,750 $ 9,555,450 9,711,413 $ 8,093,252
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability 64% 58% 66% 59% 55% 50% 52% 46% 44% 51%
Covered payroll $ 638,452 $ 668,649 $ 797,343 $ 762,818 $ 734,094 $ 751,578 $ 801,333 $ 865,538 889,705 $ 870,041
City's net pension liability as a
percentage of covered payroll 1085% 1175% 817% 988% 1100% 1152% 1023% 1104% 1092% 930%
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Actuarial determined contributions

Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)
Covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage
of covered payroll

) The actuarially determined contribution was calculated based on projected covered payroll. Employer contributions were made in full based on actual covered payroll.
Accordingly, the actuarially-determined contribution has been expressed above as a percentage of actual payroll.

CITY OF ST. JOHNS
MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF MICHIGAN
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST TEN MEASUREMENT DATES
(AMOUNTS WERE DETERMINED AS OF 6/30 OF EACH FISCAL YEAR)

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
$ 1,007,008 $ 1,226,480 $ 1,200,600 $ 1,037,328 $ 962,484 $ 987,300 $ 844,980 $ 762,754 $ 702,800 $ 663,817
1,137,008 1,539,280 1,518,100 1,354,828 1,379,984 1,520,012 1,077,978 762,754 702,800 663,817
$ (130,0000 § (312,800) $ (317,500) $ (317,500) $ (417,500) § (532,712) § (232,998) $ - $ - $ -
$ 690,530 $ 767,291 $ 812,276 $ 766472 $ 766,778 $ 765,340 $ 803,255 $ 870,370 $ 877,622 $ 879873
165% 201% 187% 177% 180% 199% 134% 88% 80% 75%
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NOTE 1 - MICHIGAN EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions:

Valuation date December 31, 2023
Measurement date December 31, 2023

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll

Remaining amortization period 11 years

Asset valuation method 5-year smoothed market

Inflation 2.50%

Discount rate 7.18%

Salary increases 3.00% plus merit and longevity, 3.00% in the long-term

Long-term expected rate of return 7.18%, net of investment and administrative expense including
inflation

Mortality Pub-2010 and fully generational MP-2019

Changes of benefits terms There were no changes of benefit terms for the plan year 2023.

Changes in assumptions Change in discount rate from 7.25% to 7.18%

NOTE 2 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The City’s budgeted expenditures in the General Fund, Special Revenue funds, Debt Service fund, and Capital
Projects funds have been shown at the functional classification level. The approved budgets of the City have
been adopted at the department level for the General Fund and total expenditure level for the Special Revenue,
Debt Service, and Capital Projects funds.

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the City incurred expenditures in excess of the amounts appropriated in
various funds as follows:

Amounts Amounts
Appropriated Expended Variance
Drug Law Enforcement Fund
Public safety $ - $ 611 $ 611
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FUND DESCRIPTIONS

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to record the proceeds associated with specific revenues that are legally
restricted and committed for specific purposes.

The Local Street Fund accounts for revenues received from the State of Michigan for the City’s share of State
gasoline and weight taxes, which is used for maintenance of local streets.

The Garbage Fund accounts for the proceeds of garbage collection that are legally restricted to expenditures for
the purpose of garbage collection.

The Drug Law Enforcement Fund accounts for all revenues received by the City for drug forfeiture activities,
which finance the City drug law enforcement program activities and related public safety activities.

Debt Service Fund

Debt Services Funds account for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on
long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

The Capital Improvement Bonds Fund is used to account for payment of principal and interest of bonds related
to the 2007 Capital Improvement Bonds.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major
capital purchases not financed by proprietary funds.

The Fantasy Forest Fund accounts for funds received and expended for the construction of a city-owned
playground structure.

The Street Millage 11l Fund accounts for the proceeds of the street property taxes that are restricted to repairs
and maintenance of the City's streets.

The Revolving Special Assessment Fund accounts for small capital projects that are repaid through assessments
to residents. Costs and repayment of projects are monitored through this fund.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2024
Debt
Special Revenue Service Capital Projects
Capital Revolving
Drug Law Improvement Fantasy Street Special
Local Street Garbage Enforcement Bonds Forest Millage 111 Assessment Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 117,200 $ 235,278 $ 1,341 $ - $ 59,200 $ 478,663 $ 18,101 $ 909,783
Special assessments receivable - - - - - - 3,950 3,950
Due from other governmental units 47,041 - - - - - - 47,041
Due from other funds 50,649 - - - - - - 50,649
TOTAL ASSETS $ 214,890 $ 235,278 $ 1,341 $ - $ 59,200 $ 478,663 $ 22,051 $§ 1,011,423
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURACES, AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 5,316 $ - $ - $ - $ 6,219 $ - $ - $ 11,535
Accrued liabilities 1,740 1,286 - - - - - 3,026
Due to other funds 1,174 3,804 - - - 61,019 - 65,997
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,230 5,090 - - 6,219 61,019 - 80,558
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - - - - - - 3,950 3,950
FUND BALANCES
Restricted 206,660 230,188 1,341 - 52,981 417,644 18,101 926,915
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES $ 214,890 $ 235,278 $ 1,341 $ - $ 59,200 $ 478,663 $ 22,051 $§ 1,011,423
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Debt
Special Revenue Service Capital Projects
Capital Revolving
Drug Law Improvement Fantasy Street Special
Local Street Garbage Enforcement Bonds Forest Millage I11 Assessment Total
REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ 189,112 $ - $ - $ - $ 802,221 $ - $ 991,333
Special assessments - - - - - - 2,252 2,252
Intergovernmental 293,402 9,088 - - - 44,153 - 346,643
Charges for services - 575,125 - - - - - 575,125
Investment earnings 24 1,392 3 - 16 - 44 1,479
Other 860 2,136 - - - - - 2,996
TOTAL REVENUES 294,286 776,853 3 - 16 846,374 2,296 1,919,828
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety - - 611 - - - - 611
Public works 579,401 615,933 - - - - - 1,195,334
Recreation and culture - - - - 28,147 - - 28,147
Debt service - - - 143,089 - - - 143,089
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 579,401 615,933 611 143,089 28,147 - - 1,367,181
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (285,115) 160,920 (608) (143,089) (28,131) 846,374 2,296 552,647
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 326,927 - - 142,421 75,000 - - 544,348
Transfers out - (153,441) - - - (428,730) - (582,171)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 326,927 (153,441) - 142,421 75,000 (428,730) - (37,823)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 41,812 7,479 (608) (668) 46,869 417,644 2,296 514,824
Fund balances, beginning of year 164,848 222,709 1,949 668 6,112 - 15,805 412,091
Fund balances, end of year $ 206,660 $ 230,188 $ 1,341 $ - $ 52,981 $ 417,644 $ 18,101 $ 926,915
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
LOCAL STREET FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Variances with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 294,925 $ 294,925 $ 293,402 $ (1,523)
Investment earnings - - 24 24
Other 1,000 1,000 860 (140)
TOTAL REVENUES 295,925 295,925 294,286 (1,639)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public works
Street maintenance 622,391 653,633 441,893 211,740
Traffic service maintenance 13,373 24,937 18,179 6,758
Winter maintenance 32,907 32,907 18,388 14,519
Administrative 109,273 109,273 100,941 8,332
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 777,944 820,750 579,401 241,349
EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (482,019) (524,825) (285,115) (242,988)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 482,906 482,906 326,927 (155,979)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 887 (41,919) 41,812 83,731
Fund balance, beginning of year 164,848 164,848 164,848 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 165,735 $ 122,929 $ 206,660 $ 83,731
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS

GARBAGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Other

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current

Public works

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variances with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

190,408 $ 190,433 $ 189,112 $ (1,321)
3,500 4,500 9,088 4,588
574,910 574,910 575,125 215

- 125 1,392 1,267

1,000 1,150 2,136 986
769,818 771,118 776,853 5,735
625,962 650,057 615,933 34,124
143,856 121,061 160,920 (28,389)
(143,408) (168,442) (153,441) 15,001
448 (47,381) 7,479 54,860
222,709 222,709 222,709 -
223,157 $ 175,328 $ 230,188 $ 54,860
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IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES
Investment earnings

EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

CITY OF ST. JOHNS
DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variances with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ - 8 - 3 $ 3
- - 611 (611)
- - (608) (608)

1,949 1,949 1,949 -
$ 1,949 $ 1,949 1,341 $ (608)
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variances with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES $ - - - 8 -
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal 141,000 141,000 141,000 -
Interest 2,089 2,089 2,089 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 143,089 143,089 143,089 -
EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (143,089) (143,089) (143,089) -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 143,089 143,089 142,421 (668)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - (668) (668)
Fund balance, beginning of year 668 668 668 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 668 668 - $ (668)
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
FANTASY FOREST CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Variances with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment earnings $ - $ - $ 16 $ 16
EXPENDITURES - 75,000 28,147 46,853
EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES - (75,000) (28,131) 46,869
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in - 75,000 75,000 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - 46,869 46,869
Fund balance, beginning of year 6,112 6,112 6,112 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 6,112 $ 6,112 $ 52,981 $ 46,869
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
WILSON CENTER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Variances with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES $ - $ - $ 1,271 $ 1,271
EXPENDITURES
Current
Recreation and culture - 717,000 648,584 68,416
Debt service
Bond issuance costs - 118,295 89,445 28,850
TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 835,295 738,029 97,266
EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES - (835,295) (736,758) 98,537
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers out - (280,433) (280,433) -
Issuance of debt - 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
Premium related to issuance of debt - 93,899 93,899 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES - 2,813,466 2,813,466 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - 1,978,171 2,076,708 98,537
Fund balance, beginning of year - - - -
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ 1,978,171 $ 2,076,708 $ 98,537
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS

STREET MILLAGE III CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Variances with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 811,818 $ 811,818 $ 802,221 $ (9,597)
Intergovernmental - 31,000 44,153 13,153
TOTAL REVENUES 811,818 842,818 846,374 3,556
EXPENDITURES - - - -
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 811,818 842,818 846,374 3,556
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers out (598,962) (598,962) (428,730) 170,232
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 212,856 243,856 417,644 173,788
Fund balance, beginning of year - - - -
Fund balance, end of year $ 212,856 $ 243,856 $ 417,644 $ 173,788
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
REVOLVING SPECIAL ASSESSMENT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Variances with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Special assessments $ 2,250 $ 2,250 $ 2,252 $ 2
Investment earnings - - 44 44
TOTAL REVENUES 2,250 2,250 2,296 46
EXPENDITURES - - - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 2,250 2,250 2,296 46
Fund balance, beginning of year 15,805 15,805 15,805 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 18,055 $ 18,055 $ 18,101 $ 46
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
COMPONENT UNIT FUNDS
BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2024

Local
Downtown Principal Development
Development Shopping Finance
Authority District Authority Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 89,486 $ 54,746 $ 740,642 $ 884,874
Due from other governmental units - - 26,978 26,978
TOTAL ASSETS $ 89,486 $ 54,746 $ 767,620 $ 911,852
LIABILIATIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ 1,205 $ - $ 1,205
Accrued liabilities 1,042 1,042 - 2,084
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,042 2,247 - 3,289
FUND BALANCES
Unassigned 88,444 52,499 767,620 908,563

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 89,486 $ 54,746 $ 767,620 $§ 911,852

Note: Reconciliations of the balance sheet to the statement of net position for the component units are not
required as the fund balances were equal to the net position as of June 30, 2024.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
COMPONENT UNIT FUNDS
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Local
Downtown Principal Development
Development Shopping Finance
Authority District Authority Total
REVENUES
Taxes $ 35,015 $ - $ 275877 $ 310,892
Intergovernmental 10,000 - - 10,000
Investment earnings 255 190 1,810 2,255
Other - 95,497 - 95,497
TOTAL REVENUES 45,270 95,687 277,687 418,644
EXPENDITURES
Current
Community and economic development 46,653 62,397 12,852 121,902
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (1,383) 33,290 264,835 296,742
Fund balances, beginning of year 89,827 19,209 502,785 611,821
Fund balances, end of year $ 88,444 $ 52,499 $ 767,620 $ 908,563

Note: Reconciliations of the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances to the statement
of activities for the component units are not required as the net changes in fund balances were equal to the
changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2024.

91



STATISTICAL SECTION
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
STATISTICAL INFORMATION AND CONTINUING DISCLOSURE INDEX

This part of the City of St. Johns’ annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and required
supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 94-100

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s
financial performance has changed.

Revenue Capacity 101-104

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant
local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity 105-109
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the

City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in
the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 110-111

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information 112-114

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides
and the activities it performs.

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual comprehensive financial
reports for the relevant year.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Governmental activities
Net investment
in capital assets $ 6,713,405 $ 8,036,749 $ 8,517,535 $ 9,347,297 $ 10,113,212 $ 10,883,269 $ 12,162,680 $ 12,952,539 $ 13,065,689 $ 13,169,326
Restricted 1,243,761 731,998 689,664 866,424 1,040,645 1,145,645 732,107 847,922 957,002 3,550,461
Unrestricted (deficit) (3,222,810) (3,533,847) (3,894,379) (3,442,469) (3,206,153) (2,884,923) (2,120,565) (1,436,353) (905,157) (2,247,052)
Total governmental
activities net position $ 4,734,356 $ 5,234,900 $ 5,312,820 $ 6,771,252 $ 7,947,704 $ 9,143,991 $ 10,774,222 $ 12,364,108 $ 13,117,534 $ 14,472,735
Business-type activities
Net investment
in capital assets $ 5,443,887 $ 5,383,065 $ 5167,990 $ 4909221 $ 4,874,133 $ 4,272,845 $ 4,937,040 $ 4,805,158 $ 5,515,516 $ 5,681,122
Restricted 1,267,273 1,273,055 1,495,705 1,297,632 1,099,042 1,166,811 1,173,176 918,621 1,196,056 1,217,374
Unrestricted (deficit) (316,146) (853,900) (1,267,218) (623,091) (627,322) 77,476 376,007 1,667,794 1,631,947 2,965,842
Total business-type
activities net position $ 6,395,014 $ 5,802,220 $§ 5,396,477 $ 5,583,762 $§ 5,345,853 $§ 5,517,132 $§ 6,486,223 $ 7,391,573 $ 8,343,519 $ 9,864,338
Primary government
Net investment
in capital assets $ 12,157,292 $ 13,419,814 $ 13,685,525 $ 14,256,518 $ 14,987,345 $ 15,156,114 $ 17,099,720 $ 17,757,697 $ 18,581,205 $ 18,850,448
Restricted 2,511,034 2,005,053 2,185,369 2,164,056 2,139,687 2,312,456 1,905,283 1,766,543 2,153,058 4,767,835
Unrestricted (3,538,956) (4,387,747) (5,161,597) (4,065,560) (3,833,475) (2,807,447) (1,744,558) 231,441 726,790 718,790
Total primary government
net position $ 11,129,370 $ 11,037,120 $ 10,709,297 $ 12,355,014 $ 13,293,557 $ 14,661,123 $ 17,260,445 $ 19,755,681 $ 21,461,053 $ 24,337,073

Source: City of St. Johns Basic Financial Statements.

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 68 during fiscal year 2015.
Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 87 during fiscal year 2022.
Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 96 during fiscal year 2023.
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EXPENSES
Governmental activities

General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Recreation and culture
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental
activities expenses

Business-type activities
Water and sewer

Total primary
government expenses

CITY OF ST. JOHNS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
$ 1215504 $ 1,640,111 $ 1626729 $ 1,370917 $ 1,849,522 $ 2,091,111 $ 1,700922 $ 1486890 $ 1996375 $ 1,868,990
1,465,663 1,734,544 1,777,613 1,367,562 1,324,342 1,557,120 1,732,836 1,853,281 2,073,002 2,156,969
1,987,632 2,137,325 2,103,309 1,972,143 2,142,768 2,241,780 2,229,720 2,604,215 2,392,896 2,477,106
23,595 39,608 54,630 33,743 54,758 55,428 47,190 47,802 140,382 92,376
909,829 772,324 748,442 319,239 458,453 380,473 347816 352,623 397,141 1,093,200
101,805 82,107 67,377 78,603 5,728 22,759 21,616 15,908 11,303 32,165
5,704,028 6,406,019 6,378,100 5,142,207 5,835,571 6,348,671 6,080,100 6,360,719 7,011,099 7,720,806
3,784,439 4,059,601 4,219,907 3,680,513 4,367,430 4,233,135 4,373,400 4,860,679 4,981,796 4,568,683
$ 9488467  $10465620  $10598007 $ 8822720  $10,203,001  $10581,806  $ 10,453,500  $ 11,221,398  $ 11,992,895  $ 12,289,489
continued
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PROGRAM REVENUE
Governmental activities
Charges for services
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Recreation and culture
Operating grants
and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total governmental activities
program revenues

Business-type activities
Charges for services
Water and sewer
Capital grants and contributions

Total business-type activities
program revenues

Total primary government
program revenues

NET (EXPENSES) REVENUE
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government
net (expense) revenue

CITY OF ST. JOHNS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

$ 249347 $ 181,187 $ 186006 $ 222210 $ 261,934 $ 245849 $ 2505597 $ 258805 $ 146815 $ 317,740
77,899 101,458 92,218 122,208 120,259 117,009 119,999 115,443 147,527 120,731
1,319,356 1,354,647 1,372,273 1,026,859 1,310,660 1,300,070 1,290,936 1,323,900 1,482,850 1,367,642
83,410 87,554 46,781 49,593 - - - - - -

- - - - 25,330 19,453 8,086 63,786 109,870 74,401
1,035,542 981,267 892,971 1,284,404 1,609,373 2,022,365 1,912,311 1,420,480 1,335,241 2,306,089
- 432,819 40,946 62,392 - - - - - 195,824
2,765,554 3,138,932 2,631,195 2,767,666 3,327,556 3,704,746 3,581,929 3,182,414 3,222,303 4,382,427
3,367,116 3,491,444 3,725,054 3,825,370 3,987,169 4,277,466 5,294,583 5,702,692 5,856,833 6,008,657
3,367,116 3,491,444 3,725,054 3,825,370 3,987,169 4,277,466 5,294,583 5,702,692 5,856,833 6,008,657
6,132,670 6,630,376 6,356,249 6,593,036 7,314,725 7,982,212 8,876,512 8,885,106 9,079,136 10,391,084
(2,938,474) (3,267,087) (3,746,905) (2,374,541) (2,508,015) (2,643,925) (2,498,171) (3,178,305) (3,788,796) (3,338,379)
(417,323) (568,157) (494,853) 144,857 (380,261) 44,331 921,183 842,013 875,037 1,439,974

$ (3,355,797)

$ (3,835,244)

$ (4,241,758)

$ (2,229,684)

$ (2,888,276)

$ (2,599,594)

$ (1,576,988)

$ (2,336,292)

$ (2,913,759)

$ (1,898,405)
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GENERAL REVENUES
Governmental activities

Taxes
State shared revenue
Investment earnings (loss)
Gain on sale of capital assets
Other
Special item - disposal of operations
Transfers

Total governmental
activities general revenues

Business-type activities
Investment earnings (loss)
Gain on sale of capital assets
Other
Transfers

Total business-type
activities general revenues

Total primary government
general revenues

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities

Business-type activities

Total primary government

Source: City of St. Johns Line Basic Financial Statements.

CITY OF ST. JOHNS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (UNAUDITED) (CONCLUDED)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
$ 2962510  $2979,385  $ 2800215  $ 2,882,943  $ 2,720,724  $ 2,980,885  $ 3,127,224  § 3,322,052  § 3485501  $ 3,502,246
695,460 694,890 725,154 751,862 781,138 764,376 872,877 940,573 946,648 968,946
2,117 2,929 5,320 8,867 11,640 24,674 12,946 (1,330) 6,094 23,597
- - - - 122,471 23,300 57,700 31,100 (21,138) 35,094
197,891 193,325 265,877 166,859 21,331 19,574 30,052 97,003 98,194 136,654
- (402,417) - - . . - - . -
28,259 28,259 28,259 22,442 27,163 27,403 27,603 26,763 26,923 27,043
3,886,237 3,496,371 3,824,825 3,832,973 3,684,467 3,840,212 4,128,402 4,416,161 4,542,222 4,693,580
1,552 3,885 9,101 11,515 20,754 18,836 5,023 2,051 18,411 33,774
- - - - 3,000 15,000 - - - -
74,158 88,716 108,268 53,355 145,761 120,515 70,488 88,049 85,421 74,114
(28,259) (28,259) (28,259) (22,442) (27,163) (27,403) (27,603) (26,763) (26,923) (27,043)
47,451 64,342 89,110 42,428 142,352 126,948 47,908 63,337 76,909 80,845
3,933,688 3,560,713 3,913,935 3,875,401 3,826,819 3,967,160 4,176,310 4,479,498 4,619,131 4,774,425
947,763 229,284 77,920 1,458,432 1,176,452 1,196,287 1,630,231 1,237,856 753,426 1,355,201
(369,872) (503,815) (405,743) 187,285 (237,909) 171,279 969,091 905,350 951,946 1,520,819
$ 577,891 $ (274,531) _$ (327,823) _$ 1645717 $ 938,543  $ 1,367,566 _$ 2,599,322 _$ 2,143,206 _$ 1,705,372 _$ 2,876,020
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General Fund
Nonspendable
Assigned
Unassigned

Total General Fund

All other governmental funds
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned (deficit)

Total all other governmental funds

CITY OF ST. JOHNS
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
$ 75240 $ 36101 $ 87,790 $ 32020 $ 60962 $ 80501 $ 87,558 $ 132,897 $ 62831 $ 140,876
1,000,000 1,000,000 866,000 - - - - 1,465,524 1,468,524 1,442,191
1,110,725 1,214,733 1,248,570 1,980,769 2,175,033 2,258,089 2,777,449 1,356,415 1,154,350 1,624,795
$ 2,185965 _$ 2,250,834 $ 2,202,360 _$ 2,012,789 _$ 2235995 $ 2,338,590 _$ 2,865,007 _$ 2,954,836 _$ 2,685,705 _$ 3,207,862
$ 3,637 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
1,274,773 731,998 689,664 866,424 1,041,313 1,146,313 722,900 848,590 957,670 3,550,461
53,529 - - - - - - - - -
(220,947) (275,718) (412,408) (125,297) (363,422) - (90,486) (530,155) - -
$ 1,110,992 $ 456,280 $ 277,256 $ 741,127 $ 677,891  $ 1,146313 $ 632414 $ 318435 $ 957,670 _$ 3,550,461

Source: City of St. Johns Basic Financial Statements
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REVENUES
Taxes
Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and rents
Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXEPNDITURES
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Recreation and culture
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

CITY OF ST. JOHNS
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (UNAUDITED)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
$ 3,001,810 $ 2979385  $ 2800215 § 2882943  $ 2745039  $ 2982861  $ 3,129,199  $ 3,322,052  §$ 3485501  $ 3,615,588
- - - - - - - 2,435 2,343 2,252
117,171 16,481 18,362 22,770 141,560 128,189 134,463 127,903 114,861 116,937
1,634,860 1,733,976 1,659,071 2,086,068 1,970,801 2,538,308 2,235,056 2,241,418 2,274,704 3,394,765
1,534,362 1,545,567 1,585,772 1,495,230 1,519,899 1,505,251 1,483,874 1,545,834 1,708,802 1,606,573
33,629 40,955 34,392 25,939 25,629 19,546 22,504 30,554 20,765 11,980
23,912 25,627 28,872 33,977 34,264 48,513 31,905 18,165 29,107 44,215
294,033 256,078 302,710 215,644 441,041 268,007 122,042 142,456 124,632 159,554
6,639,777 6,598,069 6,429,394 6,762,571 6,878,233 7,490,675 7,159,043 7,430,817 7,760,715 8,951,864
1,306,690 1,352,896 1,410,140 1,518,998 1,593,261 1,571,587 1,622,160 1,531,884 1,739,438 1,850,043
1,433,635 1,518,968 1,656,139 1,595,507 1,684,724 1,778,214 1,863,571 1,998,754 2,161,036 2,019,519
1,522,377 1,572,503 1,519,479 1,468,507 2,587,201 2,677,921 3,129,696 2,916,832 2,122,734 2,510,382
23,595 40,284 54,630 33,743 54,758 55,428 47,190 47,802 53,886 92,376
833,274 655,916 281,026 293,499 401,712 308,998 290,636 618,917 382,566 987,021
1,150,794 1,321,621 1,327,672 1,232,138 158,788 335,382 95,820 332,095 1,180,163 622,262
425,109 340,872 361,653 1,415,453 345,270 202,453 194,360 194,000 199,000 310,865
107,777 89,847 74,412 68,910 25,874 17,078 13,395 9,613 5,742 2,089
6,803,251 6,892,907 6,685,151 7,626,755 6,851,588 6,947,061 7,256,828 7,649,897 7,844,565 8,394,557
$ (163,474) _$ (294,838) _$ (255757) _$ (864,184) $ 26645 $ 543,614 $ (97,785) _$ (219,080) _$ (83,850) _$ 557,307

continued
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CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (UNAUDITED) (CONCLUDED)

CITY OF ST. JOHNS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of debt $ - $ - - $ 1,116,042 $ $ - $ - $ - $ 655,864 $ 3,000,000
Premium related to issuance of debt - - - - - - - - - 93,899
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - - - 106,162 - 82,700 - - -
Transfers in 426,921 546,216 328,624 326,633 1,254,832 335,782 1,267,448 1,379,435 496,039 1,129,923
Transfers out (398,662) (517,957) (300,365) (304,191) (1,227,669) (308,379) (1,239,845) (1,384,505) (694,949) (1,666,181)
Total other financing sources (uses) 28,259 28,259 28,259 1,138,484 133,325 27,403 110,303 (5,070) 456,954 2,557,641
Special item - disposal of operations - (323,264) - - - - - -
Net change in fund balance $ (135,215) $ (266,579) (227,498) $ 274,300 $ 159,970 $ 571,017 $ 12,518 $ (224,150) $ 373,104 $ 3,114,948
Debt services as a percentage
of noncapital expenditures 9.43% 7.73% 8.14% 23.21% 5.55% 3.32% 2.90% 3.24% 3.23% 4.97%

Source: City of St. Johns Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS

ASSESSED TAXABLE VALUES (HISTORY OF PROPERTY VALUES) (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Taxable Value
Direct Tax asa
Tax Fiscal Special Rate Total Percentage
Year Tear Residential Commercial Industrial Developmental Personal Act Parcels Total (mills)m SEV of SEV
2014 2015 $ 131,636,561 $ 43,814,183 $ 4,254,867 $ 325,085 14,454,400 $ 4,742,800 $ 199,227,896 15.1775 207,224,500 96.1%
2015 2016 130,490,412 42,824,938 4,248,343 296,801 15,299,600 4,107,079 197,267,173 15.1763 212,672,100 92.8%
2016 2017 133,344,131 44,042,207 3,623,843 - 14,746,700 3,271,398 199,028,279 14.6812 219,714,225 90.6%
2017 2018 136,584,114 45,544,434 3,629,201 - 13,540,615 2,973,906 202,272,270 14.1848 236,081,315 85.7%
2018 2019 141,317,631 47,058,207 3,615,563 - 13,023,600 2,852,651 207,867,652 13.1776 249,636,600 83.3%
2019 2020 146,649,825 49,566,861 4,622,968 - 15,549,400 2,364,912 218,753,966 13.6569 261,540,900 83.6%
2020 2021 152,141,851 53,772,840 4,432,942 - 16,890,600 10,568,547 237,806,780 13.5967 284,380,600 83.6%
2021 2022 157,181,103 56,373,307 4,481,423 - 18,993,800 19,807,690 256,837,323 13.6568 310,251,500 82.8%
2022 2023 165,377,442 61,922,499 6,492,964 - 20,279,600 20,713,012 274,785,517 13.5189 330,941,600 83.0%
2023 2024 176,733,285 64,127,559 8,053,706 - 17,946,500 19,362,006 286,223,056 13.6951 358,449,400 79.9%

Source: Clinton County Equalization Department Report

Note: Tax rates are per $1,000 of taxable value
(1) Total direct tax rate includes voter approved 4.0000 mills dedicated to local streets scheduled from the 2014 through 2017 tax levy years. A voter approved 3.0000 mills dedicated to local streets
for the 2018 through 2027 tax levy years.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND

OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS (UNAUDITED)

(PER $1,000 OF TAXABLE VALUE)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
City of St. Johns
Clinton
County
St.Johns Regional State

Tax Economic Public Clinton Educational Clinton Education  District
Year  General') Developmentm Garbagem Library Streets'” Total Schools® County Service Agency Transit Tax Library Total
2014 9.4360 0.2570 0.5000 0.9845 4.0000 15.1775 7.0000 5.8000 3.7615 0.2000 6.0000 0.0000 37.9390
2015 9.4360 0.2558 0.5000 0.9845 4.0000 15.1763 7.0000 5.8000 3.7615 0.2000 6.0000 0.0000 37.9378
2016 9.4360 0.2530 0.5000 0.4922 4.0000 14.6812 7.0000 5.7953 3.7615 0.1998 6.0000 0.7500 38.1878
2017 9.4360 0.2488 0.5000 0.0000 4.0000 14.1848 7.0000 5.7877 3.7520 0.1998 6.0000 0.7500 37.6743
2018 9.4360 0.2416 0.5000 0.0000 3.0000 13.1776 7.0000 5.7877 3.7482 0.1998 6.0000 0.7500 36.6633
2019 9.9430 0.2310 0.5000 0.0000 2.9829 13.6569 7.0000 5.7976 3.8154 0.1996 6.0000 0.7494 37.2189
2020 9.9052 0.2200 0.5000 0.0000 2.9715 13.5967 7.0000 5.7961 3.7967 0.1984 6.0000 0.7476 37.1355
2021 9.9810 0.2100 0.5000 0.0000 2.9658 13.6568 7.0000 6.5284 3.7762 0.6963 6.0000 0.7459 38.4036
2022 9.8103 0.1936 0.6000 0.0000 2.9150 13.5189 7.0000 6.5573 3.7497 0.6924 6.0000 0.7401 38.2584
2023 9.8103 0.1848 0.7000 0.0000 3.0000 13.6951 7.0000 6.6384 3.7537 0.6924 6.0000 0.7401 38.5197

Source: Tax warrants issued by City Assessor
Note: Tax rates are per $1,000 of taxable value
(1) By charter, the City of St. Johns can levy up to 10 mills. Tax rates above represent a Headlee Rollback.

(2) Michigan ACT 359 limits the amount collected for economic development to $50,000. The millage rate is adjusted to come as close to this amount as possible.
(3) In addition to the garbage mills, each residential dwelling unit is charged $140-$215 for annual trash service.

(4) City of St. Johns voters approved 4.0000 mills dedicated to streets from the 2014 through 2017 tax years. City of St. Johns voters approved a renewed millage dedicated to streets at 3.0000 mills
from 2018 through 2022 tax years. 2019 - 2022 were reduced due to a Headlee rollback.
(5) St. Johns Public Schools' rate indicated homestead millage. For non-homestead, add 18.0000 mills.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS (UNAUDITED)

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Year Ended June 30,2015

Percent of Percent of
Total City Total City

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Company Name Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Consumers Energy $ 8,831,475 1 3.09 $ 3,764,504 5 1.89
Save-A-Lot 6,291,600 2 2.20 6,733,600 1 3.38
ITC 6,129,270 3 2.14 - -
Mahle 3,655,074 4 1.28 5,368,910 2 2.69
Loan Oak - St. Johns LLC 3,303,808 5 1.15 2,786,098 4 1.40
1035SUS 27 LLC 2,323,117 6 0.81 - -
Glick Suntree LLC 2,263,222 7 0.79 1,965,500 6 0.99
Clinton Commons 1,774,265 8 0.62 1,449,381 9 0.73
Michigan Electronic Transmission 1,726,600 9 0.60 - -
Young Family Real Estate LLC 1,699,160 10 0.59 - -
Allied Ring Co. - - 2,599,800 3 1.30
Barnard Manufacturing - - 1,078,000 7 0.54
Harry's St. Johns LLC - - 1,902,560 8 0.95
CCS/Lansing Inc - - 1,188,700 10 0.60

37,997,591 13.27 28,837,053 14.47

248,225,465 170,390,843

Total taxable value $ 286,223,056 $ 199,227,896

Source: City assessors office and 2015 financial statements
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Amount Collected in Amount

Fiscal Year of Levy Collected in

Subsequent
Fiscal Year Economic Total Years/Received Total Tax Percent
Ended June 30, General Development Garbage Library Streets Tax Levy(l) Amount Percentage from County(z) Collections Collected
2015 $ 1,835,148 $ 49,968 $ 97,238 $ 191,456 $ 777,936 $ 2,951,746 $ 2,844,685 96.37% $ 107,051 2,951,736 100.00%
2016 1,822,644 49,395 96,573 190,151 772,634 2,931,397 2,858,694 97.52% 70,139 2,928,833 99.91%
2017 1,834,749 49,179 97,209 95,689 777,762 2,854,588 2,783,754 97.52% 70,835 2,854,589 100.00%
2018 1,880,565 49,570 99,637 - 797,183 2,826,955 2,778,227 98.28% 45,994 2,824,221 99.90%
2019 1,929,475 49,388 102,241 - 613,434 2,694,538 2,642,437 98.07% 51,909 2,694,346 99.99%
2020 2,153,826 50,024 108,297 - 646,137 2,958,284 2,905,278 98.21% 46,970 2,952,248 99.80%
2021 2,237,506 47,934 112,935 - 671,228 3,069,603 2,963,603 96.55% 98,560 3,062,163 99.76%
2022 2,374,130 49,937 178,386 - 705,449 3,307,902 3,261,250 98.59% 37,652 3,298,902 99.73%
2023 2,513,396 49,585 153,708 - 746,812 3,463,501 3,354,644 96.86% 107,215 3,461,859 99.95%
2024 2,773,480 49,320 311,877 - 848,127 3,982,804 3,894,419 97.78% 88,386 3,982,805 100.00%

Source: City of St. Johns and Assessor's Warrant
(1) The table includes Ad Valorem taxes only. It excludes commercial and industrial facilities taxes as provided under Public Acts 198 and 255.

(2) Clinton County pays the City of St. Johns the full amount of the delinquent real property taxes upon settlement in March of each year.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

General Total Net Debt to
Fiscal Taxable Value Obligation Notes Revenue Notes Primary Assessed Net Debt
Year Population of Property Bonds and Loans Bonds and Loans Government Value Per Capita
2015 7,865 9§ 199,227,896 $ 2,045,000 $ 269,466 $ 10,794,132 $ 40,061 $ 13,148,659 6.60% $ 1,671.79
2016 7,865 @ 197,267,173 1,755,000 571,067 10,241,697 32,430 12,600,194 6.39% 1,602.06
2017 7,865 @ 199,028,279 1,445,000 483,601 9,910,000 24,797 11,863,398 5.96% 1,508.38
2018 7,865 @ 202,272,270 1,201,000 410,509 9,265,000 17,168 10,893,677 5.39% 1,385.08
2019 7,865 @ 207,867,652 909,000 335,949 8,765,000 9,537 10,019,486 4.82% 1,273.93
2020 7,865 @ 218,753,966 724,000 546,136 11,380,000 382,988 13,033,124 5.96% 1,693.05
2021 7,698 @ 237,806,780 534,000 691,551 10,745,000 348,129 12,318,680 5.18% 1,600.24
2022 7,698 & 256,837,323 340,000 590,712 10,090,000 314,126 11,334,838 4.41% 1,472.44
2023 7,698 & 274,785,517 141,000 1,142,526 9,415,000 279,043 10,977,569 3.99% 1,426.03
2024 7,698 @ 286,223,056 3,093,899 1,126,227 8,715,000 242,843 13,177,969 4.60% 1,711.87

Source: City of St. Johns Basic Financial Statements; 2010 Census report and Assessor's equalization reports

(1) Debt as a percentage of personal income is not reflected in this schedule because personal income data specifically for the City of St. Johns is not readily available.
Personal income data for the Lansing-East Lansing metropolitan area is presented in another Table.

(2) Source: 2010 Census report
(3) Source: 2020 Census report
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RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUSTANDING (UNAUDITED)

CITY OF ST. JOHNS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
General Bonded Debt Net Debt to

Fiscal Taxable Value Obligation Service Funds Net General Assessed Net Debt
Year Population of Property(G] BondsW® AvailableP® Bonded Debt Value Per Capita
2015 7865 ™  $ 199227896 $ 2045000 $ 85,205 $ 1,959,795 0.98% $ 249
2016 7,865 197,267,173 1,755,000 84,546 1,670,454 0.85% 212
2017 7,865 199,028,279 1,445,000 - 1,445,000 0.73% 184
2018 7,865 202,272,270 1,201,000 - 1,201,000 0.59% 153
2019 7,865 207,867,652 909,000 - 909,000 0.44% 116
2020 7,865 218,753,966 724,000 - 724,000 0.33% 92
2021 7,698 © 237,806,780 534,000 - 534,000 0.22% 69
2022 7,698 © 256,837,323 340,000 - 340,000 0.13% 44
2023 7,698 © 274,785,517 141,000 - 141,000 0.05% 18
2024 7,698 © 286,223,056 3,093,899 - 3,093,899 1.08% 402

(1) Source: City of St. Johns Basic financial Statements
(2) Amount does not include special assessment debt
(3) Amount does not include funds available for retirement of special assessment debt.
(4) Source: 2010 Census report
(5) Source: 2020 Census report
(6) Source: Clinton County equalization reports (includes amounts for Commercial Rehab & Industrial Facilities properties).
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2024

Direct and

Estimated Estimated
Debt Percent Overlapping

Governmental Unit Outstanding(l) Applicable(z) Debt

St. Johns Public Schools $ 68,010,244 28.28% $ 19,233,297
Clinton County 22,957,302 7.33% 1,682,770
Total overlapping debt 90,967,546 20,916,067
City of St. Johns 4,220,126 100.00% 4,220,126
Total direct and overlapping direct $ 95,187,672 $ 25,136,193

(1) Source: Municipal Advisory Council of Michigan. Overlapping Debt report.

(2) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property
values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another
governmental unit's taxable assessed value that is within the City's boundaries and dividing it by
each unit's total taxable assessed value.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2024

Valuation for debt limit

2024 state equalized value $ 358,449,400
Debt limit

10% of state equalized value and equivalent $ 35,844,940
Debt applicable to debt limit 4,462,969
Legal debt margin $ 31,381,971

Source: Clinton County equalization report
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
HISTORICAL LEGAL DEBT MARGIN (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Total
Net Debt

Fiscal Applicable Legal Debt

Year Debt Limit to Limit Margin Ratio
2015 $ 21,264,338 $ 2,314,466 $ 18,949,872 10.88%
2016 21,967,892 1,755,000 20,212,892 7.99%
2017 23,384,642 1,445,000 21,939,642 6.18%
2018 24,327,860 1,201,000 23,126,860 4.94%
2019 25,788,320 909,000 24,879,320 3.52%
2020 28,215,320 1,653,124 26,562,196 5.86%
2021 28,438,060 1,559,819 26,878,241 5.48%
2022 31,025,150 1,244,838 29,780,312 4.01%
2023 33,094,160 1,562,569 31,531,591 4.72%
2024 35,844,940 4,462,969 31,381,971 12.45%

Source: City of St. Johns Treasurer's office.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Per Capita Per Capita
Fiscal Personal Personal Unemployment
Year Population Income Income®® Rate
2015 7865 W § 297,792,495 $ 37,863 4.3%
2016 7,865 M 299,955,370 38,138 4.5%
2017 7,865 M 315,764,020 40,148 4.0%
2018 7,865 M - ® - 3.8%
2019 7,865 W - © - 3.7%
2020 7,865 W 339,594,970 43,178 9.5%
2021 7,698 @ 365,347,080 47,460 5.5%
2022 7,698 @ 421,850,400 54,300 5.3%
2023 7,698 @ 389,880,606 50,647 3.9%
2024 7,698 @ 414,198,588 53,806 3.9%

(1) Source: 2010 Census Report
(2) Source: 2020 Census Report

(3) Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis: Regional Economic Accounts
(4) Source: Personal income per capita and unemployment rates are presented for
the Lansing-East Lansing metropolitan area which includes the counties of

Ingham, Eaton, and Clinton.

(5) Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics

(6) Source: Data for 2018 and 2019 is not readily available
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
CONCENTRATION OF WORKFORCE (UNAUDITED)
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2024 2015
Number of Percentage Number of Percentage

Industry ]obs(l)(z) of Workforce ]obs(l)m of Workforce
Government 59,800 24.9% 57,700 25.8%
Trade, Transportation, and Utilities 36,800 15.3% 35,100 15.8%
Education and Health Services 33,300 13.8% 30,900 13.9%
Professional and Business Services 26,000 10.8% 21,400 9.6%
Manufacturing 21,000 8.7% 20,600 9.3%
Financial Activities 18,500 7.7% 15,600 7.0%
Leisure and Hospitality 19,500 8.1% 20,300 9.1%
Other Services 10,700 4.4% 10,700 4.8%
Construction and Mining 11,100 4.6% 7,600 3.4%
Information 4,000 1.7% 2,800 1.3%
Total 240,700 100.0% 222,700 100.0%

(1) Source: Michigan Bureau of Labor Market Information and Strategic Initiatives
(2) Number of jobs is presented for the Lansing-East Lansing metropolitan area which includes the
counties Ingham, Eaton and Clinton.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS

FULL TIME EQUIVALENT CITY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION (UNAUDITED)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Full-time Employees as of June 30,

Function 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
General government 8 8 8 7 7 7 8 8 8 9
Public safety” 11 12 12 11 11.0 11.5 12.5 13 10 11
Public works 22 21 19 18 18 18 17 18 18 18
Community and economic development 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 - -
Recreation and culture 8 8 3 3 3 2 1 1 1 1
Total 50 50 43 40 40 39.5 39.5 41 37 39

Source: City of St. Johns Clerk's Office

(1) The City currently has two Police Union contracts: Supervisory Police Officers and Non-Supervisory Police Officers. Supervisory Police Officers covers two sergeants and the term is from 7/1/2022 to

6/30/2026. Non-Supervisory covers five police officers and the term is from 7/1/2022 to 6/30/2026.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Function 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Public safetym

Physical arrests 272 316 296 242 203 159 145 145 73 48

Parking violations 962 893 951 822 717 581 721 931 901 628

Traffic violations 862 901 908 840 608 539 328 410 146 122

Emergency fire responses 93 109 126 167 166 222 215 206 257 255
Public works®

Street resurfacing (miles) 3.80 3.34 3.30 3.19 2.00 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.40 0.77

Number of water meters 3,252 3,262 3,317 3,334 3,342 3,342 3,342 3,421 3,447 3,475

Average daily water consumption (gallons) 658,000 588,000 713,000 725,000 725,000 725,000 725,000 728,000 1,660,000 1,710,000

Peak daily water consumption 1,120,000 1,015,000 1,410,000 1,611,800 1,600,000 1,600,000 1,600,000 1,700,000 2,140,000 1,861,000

Average daily sewage treatment 1,250,000 1,148,166 1,454,000 1,365,000 1,400,000 1,430,000 1,430,000 1,500,000 1,120,000 1,150,000
Recreation and culture®

Volumes in library collection 47,071 48,637 @) & @) @& @) & @) @

Volumes borrowed from library 82,670 86,482 @) ® @ & @) @& @) @

(1) Source: City of St. Johns Police and Fire Department annual reports
(2) Source: City of St. Johns Public Works Director and Community Development Director
(3) The Briggs District Library became a separate entity from the City of St. Johns in August 2016. Going forward, these statistics will no longer be reported in the City's financial statements.
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS
CAPITAL ASSETS STATISTICS BY FUNCTION (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Function 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Public safety M
Police protection
Number of stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Fire protection
Number of stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Public works ¥
Streets
Streets (per lane miles) 87 87 87 89 89 89 89 89 89 89
Traffic signals 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Water
Mains (miles) 52 52 52 54 56 56 56 59 59 59
Fire hydrants 432 432 432 436 467 467 467 479 479 479
Storage capacity (gallons) 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000
Sewer
Sanitary sewers (miles) 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 44 44 44
Storm sewers (miles) 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32
Treatment capacity
(million gallons per day) 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6
Recreation and culture ®
Parks (acres) 97 97 97 97 97 97 97 97 97 97
Playgrounds 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Municipal splash pad - - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Tennis courts 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Softball diamonds 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

(1) Source: City of St. Johns Police and Fire annual reports
(2) Source: City of St. Johns Public Works Director
(3) Source: City of St. Johns Recreation Director
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2425 E. Grand River Ave,,
I M aner Suite 1, Lansing, MI 48912
@ 517.323.7500
L
Costerlsan ol

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Commission
City of St. Johns, Michigan

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of City of St. Johns, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of St. Johns’ basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated December 2, 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of St. Johns’ internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of St. Johns’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of City of St. Johns’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. We identified a certain deficiency in internal control described below,
that we consider to be a significant deficiency:

2024-001 REVIEW OF JOURNAL ENTRIES

Condition: There is no evidence of review and approval of journal entries.
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2024-001 REVIEW OF JOURNAL ENTRIES (concluded)

Criteria: The intent of internal control is to assure that no one individual is able to control all aspects of a
transaction cycle (i.e., receipts, disbursements, payroll, reconciling bank accounts, adjustments to general
ledger, etc.) and the controls that are being utilized should be formally documented as proof of the control.

Cause: The creation, review, and approval of journal entries is completed by a single individual.

Effect: There is a greater risk of general errors, losses, or misappropriation of assets that could occur and
go undetected if duties and responsibilities are not appropriately arranged, separated, and documented as
they are conducted.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City review the journal entry creation, review, and approval
process internal controls. If duties cannot be adequately segregated due to the limited number of employees,
we suggest that management consider other procedures to provide a greater review and supervision of
employees.

Corrective Action Response: The City does not currently have anyone capable of reviewing journal entries.
However, the City Manager reviews the financial statements on a monthly basis and management will
continue to maintain a heightened awareness and continually review the internal controls over this area.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of St. Johns’ financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of St. Johns’ Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on City of St. Johns’ response
to the finding identified in our audit and described in this report. City of St. Johns’ response was not subjected
to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

W ane; Costociran Pc

December 2, 2024
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CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN
REQUEST FOR COMMISSION ACTION
December 12, 2024

Department: Administration Attachments: Submitted to
CA for
Review
Subject: Establishment of Building Use [ X' ] Proposed City of St. Johns [ X ]
Policy Building Use Policy
[ X ] County Access Policy [ N/A ]
[ X] County Building Use [ N/A ]
Policy

Prepared by: Chad A. Gamble, P.E., Approved by: Chad A. Gamble, P.E.,
City Manager City Manager

SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHT: The County has established building and use policies for the areas
that are controlled by the country and overall access policies for the use of the County Courthouse.
The City, upon the recommendation of the City Attorney, has developed a proposed Building Use
Policy for all City buildings and occupied space for the consideration of the City Commission to
adopt.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: The safety of the City Personnel is of paramount concern. In
reviewing the existing policies and lacking policies of the City, it was determined that the City
should develop a building use policy to clarify the rules, restrictions and use of the different spaces
occupies by City personnel. The attached policy is the result of this development process.

STRATEGIC PLAN OBJECTIVE: Continue to offer high quality services and facilities for
residents

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no fiscal impact on the City if this policy is adopted by the
Commission.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the City Commission approve the proposed Building
Use Policy.



CITY OF ST. JOHNS
CITY BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY BEHAVIOR AND USE POLICY
VER 12-1-24

I. Purpose

The City of St. Johns adopts this Policy to provide for the safety and security of the City buildings
including the Police Department, City Hall, meeting rooms and the business offices, to provide for
the safety and security of City employees and officials and to ensure the orderly conduct of City
business.

II. Applicability

This policy applies to the use of the City Offices, Police Department, and other City buildings,
including the office space, reception areas, meeting rooms and similar business areas during regular
business hours ("City Buildings") Some regulations may relate to (1) the City Buildings, (2) space
occupied by City offices or departments that are located in a building not owned by the City (“City
Occupied Space”), and (3) and the property on which the City Building is located (collectively
referred to as “City Property”). Unless specified, the regulations apply to all City Property.

This policy does not apply to city parks, city sidewalks or other spaces considered traditional public
forums, which may have their own rules.

To the extent provisions of this Policy conflict with the Open Meetings Act (OMA), those provisions
do not apply to any room in any City Building or City Occupied Space during a meeting that is open
to the public pursuant to the OMA. The public must comply with any public comment policy and
may only be removed for a breach of the peace as defined by the OMA.

III.  Policy

A. Spaces within City .Property.

a. Non-public Space. All private offices, meeting rooms and areas within City
Property s that are restricted to the public may not be entered by any person without
express permission from a City employee who is authorized to grant access to those
private areas.

b. Spaces with Specific Purposes. These spaces include vestibules, lobbies,
waiting areas, or similar spaces within City Buildings or City Occupied Space. A
person may come into these spaces in order to do business with the City or with
express permission from a City employee who is authorized to grant access to those
areas.



Violations of Law. No person may commit or attempt to commit an activity in
violation of federal, state, or local law, ordinance, or regulation while on City
Property.

Engaging in Proper Activities. Persons must be engaged in activities associated with
City business while in City Buildings, or City Occupied Space. The City business
being conducted must match the use of the particular City Buildings or City
Occupied Space.

Harassment. Staring, photographing, video recording, audio recording, following,
arguing with, talking or behaving in a manner (1) which can reasonably be expected
to disturb those using the City or staff while such staff or visitors are at the City
Property; (2) that interferes with the others’ use of the City Property or the ability of
the staff person to do his or her job; (3) that would create or may result in a hostile
work environment for City staff; and/or (4) that violates Michigan law is prohibited.

Considerate Use. Using obscene or threatening language or gestures on City
Property is prohibited.

Loud Noise. Producing or allowing any loud, unreasonable, or disturbing noises that
interfere with other staff or other visitor’s use of the City Property or which can be
reasonably expected to disturb other persons or have the intent of annoying other
persons, including yelling, cheering, talking (with others or in monologues) or noises
from electronic, entertainment, and communication devices, such as cell phones,
tablets, headphones, and radio, is prohibited.

Drugs; Alcohol. No person shall be intoxicated or under the influence of drugs or
alcohol while at the City Property. No person shall possess illegal drugs or alcohol
on City Property unless specifically authorized by the City.

Smoking; Tobacco or Marijuana Use.  Smoking, using e-cigarettes, vaping,
electronic nicotine delivery systems or chewing tobacco is prohibited at the City
Property. Using, smoking, or possessing marijuana at City Property is also
prohibited.

Photography. City will not regulate visitors who engage in casual filming and
photography while present in public areas or places with specific purposes of City
Property, subject to the provisions of this policy.

For purposes of this subsection of the policy, “public areas” are defined as areas
available to the public where individuals do not have a reasonable expectation of
privacy from being viewed by other visitors, which includes the lobby or vestibule or
outdoors space. Areas in the City Property where there is a reasonable expectation of
privacy for individuals include restrooms, private offices, staff areas not in view of
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IV.

the public, or other areas where photography is prohibited by signage. There is no
filming of private areas even if those areas can be accessed from a public area unless
authorized by the City Manager or their designee. For example, people are not
permitted to film private offices from outside of the building. For all other areas,
other than “public areas,” the person must obtain permission from the City Manager
to photograph or video.

Campaigning, Petitioning, Interviewing and Similar Activities. The City prohibits
campaigning, petitioning, interviewing, survey-taking, pamphleteering, canvassing,
protesting, and soliciting within City Buildings unless authorized by the City
Manager or their designee.

Weapons. Carrying guns, pistols, or other weapons, except as specifically permitted
and exempt from local regulation by law, on City Property is prohibited.

No Blocking of Doors, Aisles or Entrances. All doors, aisles and entrances of any
City Building or City Occupied Space must remain obstacle-free. This includes a
prohibition of running power cords across aisles or other areas that are used for
walking.

Animals. Animals are not permitted within City Buildings or City Occupied Space
other than service animals (as defined by law) for those individuals with disabilities
and those used in law enforcement. Animals may not be left unattended or be off-
leash on City Property.

Unauthorized Use. All people must leave the City Property promptly at closing time
and may not be in any City Building or City Occupied Space when it is not open to
the public. No sleeping is permitted in City Buildings or City Occupied Spaces.

Violations

Any person violating this Policy shall be asked to leave the City Property by City
Staff or Officials.

If the person refuses to leave, the police and/or building security shall be called.



COUNTY COURTHOUSE ACCESS POLICY

PURPOSE: The purpose of this policy is to:
1.1  Assure that County Courthouse is safe.

1.2 Communicate with Court/Elected Officials, Department Heads, Employees and the
Public, the policy for accessing the Courthouse.

AUTHORITY: Clinton County Board of Commissioners.

APPLICATION: This policy applies to all County or Court Elected Officials, Appointed
Officials, Department Heads, Employees, and the general public.

RESPONSIBILITY: The County Administrator/Controller and/or designee shall be
responsible for implementation of this policy.

DEFINITIONS: Access Control Systems: Hardware and software systems designed to limit
access to facilities, or portions of facilities including gates, doors, locks, padlocks, keys,
electronic card access systems and access cards.

POLICY:

6.1 Prohibition of Weapons:

6.1.1 Except for Sheriff’s Office employees required to carry weapons to fulfill their
job duties, no County employee shall possess a weapon while working.

6.1.2 Except as otherwise provided in this policy, weapons are prohibited in the
Clinton County Courthouse.

6.1.2.1 In accordance with the Administrative Order 2001-1 of the
Michigan Supreme Court and Court’s Local Administrative
Orders, firearms are not permitted in any Clinton County
courtroom, office, or other space used for official court business
or by judicial employees, including the Clinton County
Courthouse.

6.1.2.2 Law enforcement officials may possess weapons in the
Courthouse.

6.1.2.2.1 Off duty law enforcement officials attending
personal court-related business may not possess
weapons in courtrooms or court offices.

6.1.2.3 Individuals with prior written approval of the Chief Judge may
possess weapons in the Courthouse.



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.1.3 The Sheriff shall develop the necessary screening policies and procedures to
ensure that the requirements of this policy and the Court’s Local
Administrative Orders are effectively enforced.

6.1.3.1 The Sheriff’s Court Security staff shall implement these policies
and procedures.

General Access Control System Management:

6.2.1 Only Facility and Fleet Services staff may install, alter, or remove Access
Control System hardware in or on the Courthouse or Courthouse grounds.

Issuance of Keys, IDs, and Access Cards:

6.3.1 The Human Resources Manager shall issue keys and a County ID/access card
to all new employees.

6.3.1.1 Only Facility and Fleet Services and Administration employees
may create or duplicate keys or access cards.

Requests for Access Control System Changes:

6.4.1 Requests for changes to a specific employee’s access shall be made by an
Elected Official or Department Head to the Human Resources Manager.

6.4.2 Requests for physical modifications/additions to Access Control Systems shall
be made by an Elected Official or Department Head to the Facility and Fleet
Services Director. The Facility and Fleet Services Director shall have authority
to grant or deny such requests.

Employee Responsibilities:

6.5.1 All employees are responsible for taking reasonable actions to maintain the
security of the Courthouse. All employees shall notify Court Security Staff of
any security-related concerns at the Courthouse.

6.5.2 Employees shall not loan keys, IDs or access cards to anyone, including other
employees, without prior written approval.

6.5.3 All employees, except Sheriff’s Office employees, shall have their County
Employee ID visible when in the Courthouse.

6.5.3.1 Sheriff’s Office employees shall be easily identifiable. This may be
accomplished by wearing a Sheriff’s Office uniform, displaying a
Sheriff’s Office badge, or displaying a county-issued employee ID
when in the Courthouse.

Sensitive Area Access:

6.6.1 Access Control Systems and procedures shall be used to limit access to all areas
containing sensitive /confidential information.



6.6.2 Departments with access to sensitive/confidential information shall be
responsible for implementing necessary policies and procedures needed to
comply with all applicable local, state, and federal requirements.

6.7 Access Deletion:

6.7.1 Employees who lose access cards, IDs, or keys shall promptly notify
Administration so card access can be deactivated, and other actions can be taken
as needed.

6.7.2 It shall be the responsibility of each Elected Official/Department Head to
immediately notify the Human Resources Manager of an employee’s suspension
or termination. The terminated employee’s access card shall be promptly
deactivated. Keys shall be secured by the Elected Official/Department Head and
returned to the Human Resources Manager or Sheriff’s Office designee.

6.8  Courthouse After Hours Meetings:

6.8.1 The south Courthouse doors will automatically lock at 5:00 PM. Employees, or
members of the public who have been authorized to use the Courthouse for after-
hours meetings in accordance with the Building Use Policy, must check out a
south door override key from Administration. The individual to whom the key is
assigned is responsible for ensuring that the south doors are locked at the
conclusion of the event. The key must be returned to Administration the next
day.

6.9 Access to Facilities:

6.9.1 Employee access shall be limited to the facilities and areas necessary to
effectively complete the duties of their job or where members of the public have
access.

6.9.2 When a new job position is created, the Human Resources Manager, with input
from the respective Elected Official/Department Head, shall determine the
scope of access required for the position. Employees shall be informed
regarding the scope of access.

6.9.3. Areas containing sensitive IT infrastructure such as server rooms and IT closets

shall have access restricted to only those employees with job requirements
necessitating access.

Updated January 30, 2024



1.

6.1

6.2

BUILDING USE POLICY

PURPOSE: The purpose of this policy is:

1.1  To establish guidelines and procedures for the use of Clinton County facilities by
agencies, local units of government, schools, and residents. It is the intent of the
Clinton County Board of Commissioners to allow non-profit groups, local units of
government, and county residents use of available public meeting areas in county
buildings and grounds whenever feasible, provided the use presents no
maintenance problems, is consistent with policies and procedures, and presents no
additional liability to the county.

1.2 This Policy shall govern the use of any public meeting areas of facilities or land
owned, leased, or otherwise occupied exclusively or managed by Clinton County by
groups wishing to use such facilities or land for its own purposes. Public meeting
areas are those areas accessible without having to enter office or work spaces.

AUTHORITY: The Clinton County Board of Commissioners.

APPLICATION: This policy applies to all County Elected Officials, Department Heads,
Employees and the general public.

RESPONSIBILITY: The County Administrator and/or designee shall be
responsible for implementation of this policy

DEFINITIONS: None

POLICY:

Exemptions: This policy shall not be applicable to:

6.11 County agencies or departments, or committees formed by the County or by any of
its officers, agents, or employees for the purpose of carrying out the County's work;

6.12 Groups which are sponsored by the County, meaning groups which are
supported, financially or otherwise, by the County at the direction of the Board of
Commissioners;

6.13 Groups or individuals invited by the County to meet on County property for
purposes associated with the governance of Clinton County; government entities
using County facilities for public hearings, meetings with constituents, and for the
execution of government programs.

6.14 Groups which have a written agreement with the Board of Commissioners which
addresses use of specific facilities or lands. In such cases, the agreement shall
prevail.

6.15 Smith Hall and buildings and land at the county fairgrounds, use of which is
governed by a separate policy.

Permissions:




6.3

6.4

6.21

6.22

6.23

The Building and Grounds Committee shall have the authority to grant or deny
exceptions to this policy which are in accordance with state law, and to grant or
deny permission to use county facilities or land when this policy does not address
the requested use.

Permission to use County buildings, facilities and public areas for purposes not
related to the conduct of the government of the County shall be granted by the
County Administrator only in accordance with this Policy. The County
Administrator may require the approval of the Building and Grounds Director,
Risk Management Authority or other entity prior to approving or denying a
request.

Permission for use of county facilities may be granted by the County Administrator
only for meetings or other functions which are scheduled to begin and end between
the hours of 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM on business days when all county government
offices are open. If Courts wish to allow room usage by an attorney for
depositions or other business, it will be authorized by the Court scheduling
the meeting.

6.24 Application should be made to the Clinton County Administration Office, 100 E.

State Street, Suite 2100, St. Johns, MI 48879. The County Administrator shall
develop and provide to applicants forms for this purpose. The application shall
state, at a minimum, the name and address of the applicant, and of its officers; the
date, time, and site(s) requested for the use; the expected length of the use; the set
up and any county equipment required, the nature and purpose of the use; and the
number of people expected to attend the proposed activity. In addition, the
applicant shall agree to accept responsibility for damages and clean up costs, if
necessary. The County Administrator may require additional information which
s/he deems necessary. Applications must be made at least two (2) weeks before the
proposed use, but not more than sixty (60) days prior to the proposed use.
Applications not expressly accepted or rejected within two (2) weeks of the
application, or within 48 hours of the time of the scheduled use, whichever is later,
shall be deemed rejected.

Scope of Permissible Use:

6.31

6.32

Number of Uses: No group covered by this Policy will be granted Permission to
use County facilities more frequently than twelve (12) Times in any calendar
year unless specific terms and conditions are approved by the Building and
Grounds Committee of the Board.

Non-Commercial Purposes: County facilities and/or lands may not be Used for any
commercial purposes, fund raisers, or promotional purposes. No admission or
public sales are allowed unless expressly authorized by written agreement with the
Board of Commissioners.

Limitation On Use:

6.41

Permission to use a County facility or land is limited to the approved room(s) or
space described in the Facilities Use Agreement, which all users shall be required
to execute. No permission is granted to any group or individual to enter any other
room, except rest rooms, stairwells, and entry ways which must be traversed to
gain access to the meeting room. No activity will infringe on the ability of staff or



6.5

6.6

other organizations to access the facility. All groups using the facilities must limit
participation to the posted maximum "allowable" persons in room per fire
regulations.

6.42 Signs and Emblems: Signs on County property advertising the time and place of
the authorized meeting, and the name of the group will be limited in size to no
greater than 4'X4'. Signs may be put in place no sooner than one (1) hour prior to
the scheduled start of the meeting, and must be removed at the conclusion of the
meeting. No other signs, emblems, or symbols may be erected on County property
by any group or individual. A copy of facsimile of any sign or emblem to be used
shall accompany the application form.

Revocation Of Use:

6.51 Permission granted for use of any such facility or land by any group or individual
covered by this policy may be revoked up to 24 hours prior to the scheduled start
of the requested use in order to allow use of the facility or building by the County
or any excepted user.

6.52 Priority of County Use: For all such applications, priority for the use of any portion
of any County facility or land will be given to the County, and to users who meet
the definitions set out in the paragraph entitled "EXEMPTIONS", above. No use of
any County facility or land will be permitted which inhibits the regular,
uninterrupted use of any County facility or land by the County or other excepted
user by reason of conflicting need for the facility or land, generated noise, or any
other reason.

6.53 The use of County buildings and facilities shall be denied to any group which has,
at any time prior to any requested use, been responsible for, or caused, any damage
to County property through or because of acts of vandalism, violence, or rowdiness,
or has failed to clean up facilities, by any members of such group, or invitees to the
proposed meeting. Subsequent approval may require a higher insurance level or
additional security and custodial charges. However, no individual or group shall be
denied access under this section to the use of County buildings or facilities because
of damages not caused directly by the group or individual, group members, or
invited guests.

6.54 Any permission granted under this policy to use county facilities or land may be
withdrawn by the Chairperson of the Board of Commissioners in the event the
County government is closed because of inclement weather or other emergency.

Liability: Any group using any County facility or land pursuant to this Policy shall be
required to execute a release of liability for negligence for any damages caused to the
user, or its property, during the time of the use. Moreover, any such group using County
property or facilities shall be required to execute an agreement to guarantee and hold
harmless the County from any liability to third parties for injury caused by the group, or
any persons or groups invited to attend the meeting or session on County property. The
group shall be liable to the County for any and all damage to County property or injuries
to County employees, officers, or agents caused by the group, or by any of the group's
officers, agents or employees, or by any person attending or seeking to attend the
group's meeting, whether or not such damage is the result of negligence, intentional
acts, or accident. Moreover, as part of any application for use, any such user whose use



6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

for a particular function will involve 30 or more persons must provide evidence of
liability insurance available to finance the obligations assumed in this Policy, and
providing coverage in an amount to be determined by the County Administrator, made
payable to the County of Clinton.

Set Up: The authorized user is responsible for setting up the meeting place, providing
extra chairs in meeting rooms, and supplying such items as easels, bulletin boards, and
other equipment. Equipment such as bulletin boards and chalkboards owned by the
County and located in the approved meeting room may be used by the group. The user
shall be responsible for returning the furniture and fixtures in the meeting room to its
original configuration and condition after the conclusion of the meeting or other use. Use
of any electrical equipment by user shall be subject to County approval.

Clean Up: The authorized user shall be responsible for all clean up following the
conclusion of the meeting. All trash must be removed from the premises at the user's
expense, except that up to two bags of non-toxic trash may be placed in any County
trash disposal bin located on the property being used. Custodial service may be required
based upon the number of persons attending the meeting and the length and purpose of
the meeting. Costs for this service will be borne by the user. The actual cost of any clean
up required as a result of the user's failure to do so shall be charged to the user, and the
user shall accept this responsibility upon application.

Alcoholic Beverages, Smoking, and Weapons: There shall be no alcoholic beverages
served upon, consumed upon, or brought onto County property without the expressed
written consent of the Clinton County Board of Commissioners. Smoking is prohibited in
all County buildings at all times. Weapons, reproductions of weapons, and any item
capable of being conceived as a weapon (except those carried by a law enforcement
official on duty) are forbidden from being brought onto county property.

Permits: The authorized user shall be responsible for securing any permits or
approvals, such as parking permits, required in connection with the meeting or other
use.

Security: The user shall provide any security which is required by ordinance or which
the user desires in addition to any security provided by the county for its own purposes.

Equal Access: This policy shall apply to all groups and individuals applying to use
County buildings or facilities. No group or individual shall be excluded from equal
access to County buildings and facilities because of considerations of race, sex, religious
or political persuasion, or because of the political, religious, or social aims expressed by
individual or group, or by any group's members.

Implementation Authority: This Policy is implemented by the County Administrator
under general authority granted by the Board of Commissioners.




COUNTY OF CLINTON

Office of Administrative Services

100 E. State Street, Suite 2100

St. Johns, MI 48879

Phone: (989) 224-5120

Fax: (080) 224.5102 APPLICATION FOR USE OF

Email: admin@clinton-county.org CLINTON COUNTY PROPERTIES

APPLICANT INFORMATION

ORGANIZATION

CONTACT NAME

MAILING ADDRESS

CITY STATE ZIP

PHONE NUMBER FAX NUMBER E-MAIL ADDRESS

WEB SITE ADDRESS

EVENT INFORMATION (Please provide a tentative schedule of events)

NAME OF EVENT

TYPE OF EVENT

[ Rally [] News Conference [] Display
[J Musical/Singing [] Speaking Engagement [] Parade (include route)  [] Other (Specify)
BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF EVENT
EVENT DATE:
PRE-ACCESS TIME: EVENT START TIME: EVENT END TIME:

APPROXIMATE NUMBER ATTENDING:

LOCATION (Please specify)

SPECIAL SETUPS

List any special setup items that will be brought onto the county grounds (signs, banners, etc.)




COMMENTS

ALL EVENTS ARE TO BE CARRIED OUT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CLINTON COUNTY BUILDING USE POLICY AND ANY
OTHER APPLICABLE POLICIES.

The County Administrator may cancel an issued permit, even after the applicant has begun using the grounds, and may
remove the applicant from the grounds if the application is false or incomplete or if the applicant fails to comply with the
conditions specified in the permit. See attached pages of prohibited activities, policies and procedures for the County of Clinton that
must be followed.

Signature of Applicant Date

I Print Form I I Clear Form I




CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN
REQUEST FOR COMMISSION ACTION

December 9, 2024
Department: Administration Attachments: Submitted to
CA for
Review

Subject: Discussion of Fire Department [ X ] Fire Service Agreement Cost | [ n/a |
Chief Position and Impacts to Fire Service | Allocation
Agreements [ ]

[ ]
[ ] [ ]

Prepared by: Chad A. Gamble, P.E., Approved by: Chad A. Gamble, P.E.,
City Manager City Manager

SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHT:
Fire Chief Discussion: Earlier this year the current Fire Chief, Jordan Whitford, indicated his
intention to vacate this position on or about January 1, 2025. Staff discussed how the City can
replicate the professionalism, organization, talent, and overall caliber Chief Whitford has
demonstrated to the City and the Townships of Bengal, Bingham and Greenbush to which we also
have the privilege of serving.

After detailed internal discussions, meetings with fire service townships, and additional research,
it was determined that the highest probability of achieving the best and brightest talents to serve
the region is to hire a full-time fire chief. In analyzing the compensation necessary to accomplish
this task and impacts to funding this position by the City and Townships, it was quickly determined
that to sustain this full-time position additional funding is required.

For smaller communities the size of St. Johns, it is not uncommon for the Fire Chief to perform
other duties such as code enforcement, zoning permit oversight, and other inspection duties. This
led the team to look at blending the Fire Chief duties with the zoning and rental inspection duties
currently being performed by McKenna. A detailed funding analysis was developed and is
attached to this RCA.

Following past practice, the City Administration will advertise for the position, hold interviews
and present to the Commission the recommended candidate for your approval.

Fire Service Agreements Discussion

If the proposed changes to the Fire Chief position are approved, the funding of the Fire Chief
position was evaluated as discussed above. The overall duties, based on current Fire Chief
demands and time being devoted by McKenna to perform zoning, code support, and rental housing
inspections were studied and determined that this would result in an approximate 60% fire/40%
zoning & rental inspection funding breakdown of the position.

During our meeting with existing Fire Service Agreement participants, the proposed changes were
discussed and the relative ability and/or comfort level to absorb increases were debated. The
proposed increases, as laid out in the attached document, are in keeping with the general discussion



and funding limits the townships generally discussed during the meeting. We feel confident that
the proposed increases would be approved by the townships.

Noting the above, it is our intent to recommend changes to the fire service agreements to
incorporate the changes noted in the spreadsheet and include cost of living adjustments for 2 years
and then re-evaluate the contracts accordingly.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: n/a

STRATEGIC PLAN OBJECTIVE: Having an organized, certified, well-trained and well led
Fire Department is in keeping with Neighborhood goal #1 that states, “preserve, protect, and
enhance the integrity, economic viability and livability of St. John’s neighborhoods.

FISCAL IMPACT: The current costs of funding the current fire chief’s position is $21,240 plus
employment taxes. Creating a full-time position will increase the fire portion of this position by
approximately $75,000 that will include costs for the fire component of the salary and benefits.
The percentage of the position funding that will be attributable to the zoning and rental inspection
will be cost neutral +/- after a training and break-in period by way of moving duties from McKenna
to the new Chief. A significant amount of the increased Fire Chief’s salary will be offset by
increasing the fire service agreement contract amounts.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Commission approve the creation of a full-
time fire chief position that will perform the duties of the Fire Chief as well as the duties of zoning
permit reviewer and rental housing inspector.



FIRE SERVICE AGREEMENT COST ALLOCATION PROPOSED TOWNSHIP BREAKDOWN

City Bingham Bengal (1/2) Greenbush
SEV (Clinton County Equalization - 2024) 361,831,960 245,998,100 73,572,150 163,099,360
% 42.85% 29.13% 8.71% 19.31%
Population (2020 Census) 7,698 2,919 569 2,143
% 57.75% 21.90% 4.27% 16.08%
Runs 453 156 11 98
% 63.09% 21.73% 1.53% 13.65%
Fire Runs
2021 122 51 4 29
2022 169 57 3 28
2023 162 48 4 41
Totals (3 year) 453 156 11 98
Percent City Bingham Bengal Greenbush
33.33% 14.28% 9.71% 2.90% 6.44%
33.33% 19.25% 7.30% 1.42% 5.36%
33.33% 21.03% 7.24% 0.51% 4.55%
54.56% 24.25% 4.84% 16.35%

**These total %'s are used in the Contribution Calculation Estimates

2024/25 Budgeted Numbers

Total Operating (plus full time chief) 279,365.00
Total Capital 275,786.00
Total Annual Costs 555,151.00

**These Amounts are used in the Contribution Calcuation Estimates




FIRE SERVICE AGREEMENT COST ALLOCATION PROPOSED TOWNSHIP BREAKDOWN

Operating Only
Operating & 30% Capital

Current

City Recommendation

City Bingham Bengal (1/2) Greenbush
152,432.08 67,751.62 13,514.58 45,666.72
227,671.70 87,816.71 17,517.02 59,191.22
463,458.00 60,800.00 9,800.00 47,800.00

80% 10% 2% 8%
395,351.00 88,000.00 11,800.00 60,000.00

71%

16%

2%

11%



CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN
REQUEST FOR COMMISSION ACTION

December 9th, 2024

Department: Water Department Attachments: Submitted to
CA for
Review

Subject: Lead Service Line Replacement [ X]NA [ N/A ]

Plan

Prepared by: Calvin Galecka, Approved by: Chad A. Gamble, P.E.,

Water Division Supervisor City Manager

SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHT: The State of Michigan's Lead and Copper Rule (LCR) is
designed to protect public health by reducing lead and copper in drinking water. These metals
can enter water from plumbing materials. The rule sets levels for lead and copper in water
samples and, if exceeded, requires steps to reduce exposure, such as testing water quality,
improving treatment methods, and replacing lead service lines.

The City of St. Johns has met the state’s requirements under this rule and is beginning the public
notification process as required. Details of the City’s comprehensive notification and education
plan will be explained further in this document and during the presentation.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: Since 1986 Congress Amended the Safe Drinking Water Act,
prohibiting the use of pipes, solder or flux that were not “lead free” in public water systems. For
the past 30 years the City of St. Johns put in place a internal policy to remove any lead service
lines when exposed or located. As of 2018, EGLE (Department of Environment, Great Lakes and
Energy) and the State of Michigan require 5% of lead service lines to be removed and replace each
year. EGLE has set a deadline of 2040 for the removal of all known lead lines for all communities
and Cities.

The City of St. Johns’ plan for lead service Lines includes;

e Continuing to replace 5% or more lead services per year

e Replace all lead lines by the year 2032

e Continue investigation of water services identified by EGLE as “Unknown” and complete
this task by 2026.

e Continue coordinating with the Clinton County Road Commission and MDOT to
incorporate all water main and service repairs within the M-21 right-of-way in conjunction
with the 2029/2030 M-21 road reconstruction project.

e Continuing the use of phosphate in the finished treatment of potable water to further protect
the water distribution system.



STRATEGIC PLAN OBJECTIVE: Public Facilities — Goal #1: Continue to offer High Quality
Services and Facilities for Residents

FISCAL IMPACT: Continue to budget funds in our Capital Improvement Plan for replacement,
location and verification of lead service lines in the City of St. Johns. These activities are budgeted
in account #592-560-818.206

RECOMMENDATION: This item is for discussion only. The goal is to inform the Commission
about the City's ongoing efforts to address the Lead and Copper Rule (LCR) and to review the
proposed action plan. This action plan outlines the education and communication efforts the City
plans to implement that will accompany the notification letters that will soon be sent to residents,
as required in the next phase of the state's lead service replacement rules.



CITY OF ST. JOHNS, MICHIGAN
REQUEST FOR COMMISSION ACTION

December 9, 2024
Department: Administration Attachments: Submitted to
CA for
Review
Subject: Designation of City Manager to n/a [n/a ]

[ ]

[
Board of Directors for 101 W. Cass St. [
[ [ ]

Condominium Association & Signatory to
Closing Documents

[

Prepared by: Chad A. Gamble, P.E., Approved by: Chad A. Gamble, P.E.,
City Manager City Manager

SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHT: On November 13, 2024 the City received confirmation from
Dymaxion that the former Rodney B. Wilson High school building has passed the required
environmental testing. The supplying of acceptable air testing reports to the City cues a 30 day
requirement to close on the Unit #1 space as required in the Wilson Center development Purchase
Agreement.

Once the building is sold the development will then operate as a condominium association. The
condominium association requires the City to designate a representative to serve on the
Condominium Association Board of Directors to begin putting into place agreements that will
guide the operations of the building (i.e. snow clearing, maintenance and insurance for the common
space areas of the development).

In addition, the development of the closing documents and overall property transaction is fast
approaching. It is also requested by the City Attorney, for ease of the ease and fluidity of the
property transaction, to designate the City Manager to sign the closing documents.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The Wilson Center Project aims to revitalize the historic Rodney B. Wilson High School by
transforming it into a hub for community engagement and activities as well as creating
approximately 45 new apartment units. The project involves preserving the building's historic
features while upgrading its infrastructure to create spaces for living, education, recreation, and
events. With a focus on community collaboration, the renovated Wilson Center will provide
resources and activities for all ages, enhancing St. Johns' cultural and social environment while
also placing additional residents near the downtown business core.

With the notification of acceptable testing results the development will transition into the formal
operation as laid out in the Development Agreement and detailed in the Condominium Documents.

STRATEGIC PLAN OBJECTIVE:

Master Plan - Parks and Recreation

Goal #1 (Acquire, develop, maintain, and preserve sufficient open space and recreation facilities)
e. Promote, use and increase quality of City parks and other recreational facilities in both
jurisdictions.




Goal #2 (Continue to provide all residents of the City of St. Johns with high quality recreation
programs and opportunities.)

a. Update and develop recreational programs that serve the needs of persons of all ages.

c. Provide safe, high-quality recreational experiences.

FISCAL IMPACT: The designation of the City Manager to serve as the City’s representative to
the 101 W. Cass St. Condominium Association Board of Directors has no financial impacts to the

City.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Commission designate the City Manager to
serve as the City’s representative to the 101 W. Cass St. Condominium Association Board of
Directors, to be authorized to sign the closing documents, and for the Deputy City Manager to
serve as the alternate.
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